UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

ADB029131

NEW LIMITATION CHANGE

TO

Approved for public release, distribution unlimited

FROM

Distribution authorized to U.S. Gov't. agencies and their contractors; Specific authority; Jun 1978. Other requests must be referred to Commander, Rome Air Development Center, Attn: DCLD, Griffiss AFB, NY 13441.

AUTHORITY

AFRL/IFOIP ltr, 1 Jun 2004

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

UNCLASSIFIED

AD NUMBER

ADB029131

NEW LIMITATION CHANGE

TO

Distribution authorized to U.S. Gov't. agencies and their contractors; Specific authority; Jun 1978. Other requests must be referred to Commander, Rome Air Development Center, Attn: DCLD, Griffiss AFB, NY 13441.

FROM

Distribution authorized to U.S. Gov't. agencies only; Test and Evaluation; Jun 1978. Other requests shall be referred to Rome Air Development Center, Attn: DCLD, Griffiss AFB, NY 13441.

AUTHORITY

RADC/DCLD, per DTIC Form 55

THIS PAGE IS UNCLASSIFIED

27 SEP 1978

ADC-TR-78-127 Final Technical Report June 1978



16 KILOBIT MODEM EVALUATION

Frank A. Perkins Daniel D. McRae

Harris Corporation

F30602-76-C-0460

Distribution limited to U. S. Government agencies only; test and evaluation, June 1978. Other requests for this document must be referred to RADC (DCLD), Griffiss AFB NY 13441.

ROME AIR DEVELOPMENT CENTER Air Force Systems Command Griffiss Air Force Base, New York 13441 **به** ج

......

RADC-TR-78-127 has been reviewed and is approved for publication.

APPROVLD:

JOSEPH E. LAPOSA, Capt, USAF Project Engineer

APPROVED:

....

FRED I. DIAMOND, Technical Director Communications and Control Division

FOR THE COMMANDER: John G. Fluss

JOHN P. HUSS Acting Chief, Plans Office

If your address has changed or if you wish to be removed from the RADC mailing list, or if the addressee is no longer employed by your organization, please notify RADC (DCLD) Griffiss AFB NY 13441. This will assist us in maintaining a current mailing list.

Do not return this copy. Retain or destroy.

PEDADT DACHMENTAT		READ INSTRUCTIONS
REFURT DUCUMENTA	TIOR FAGE	BEFORE COMPLETING FORM
. REPORT NUMBER	2. GOVT ACCESSION NO	
RADC-TR-78-127		
TITLE (and Subtitie)		6. TYPE OF REPORT & PERIOD COVERED
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Final Technical Report
16 KILOBIT MODEM EVALUATION		4 Nov /6 - 28 Jan //
		6. PERFORMING ORG. REPORT NUMBER
		N/A
AUTHOR(.)		B. CONTRACT OF GRANT NUMBER(4)
Frank A. Perkins		
Daniel D. McRae		F30602-76-C-0460
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION NAME AND AD	DRESS	10. PROGRAM ELEMENT, PROJECT, TASK AREA & WORK UNIT NUMBERS
Harris Corporation, Electronic	Systems Division	
P.O. Box 37		62702F
Melbourne FL 32901		45192111
. CONTROLLING OFFICE NAME AND ADDRES	\$	12. REPORT DATE
Rome Air Development (DCLD)		June 1978
Griffiss AFB NY 13441		13. NUMBER OF PAGES
		402
4. MONITORING AGENCY NAME & ADDRESS(1)	different from Controlling Office)	18. SECURITY CLASS. (of this report)
Same		UNCLASSIFIED
		154. OECLASSIFICATION/DOWNGRADING SCHEDULE
		N A
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441.	this document must	be referred to RADC (DCLD),
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441.	entered in Block 20, if different i	be referred to RADC (DCLD),
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abairact) Same	entered in Block 20, if different f	be referred to RADC (DCLD),
June 1978. Other requests for Griffias AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the about Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES	entered in Block 20, if different f	be referred to RADC (DCLD),
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abeliact) Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J	entered in Block 20, 11 different f	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report)
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abeliact Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece	entered in Block 20, 11 different f loseph E. Laposa (DCI	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) LD)
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abeliact Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq	entered in Block 20, 11 different f loseph E. Laposa (DCI every and Identify by block number uualizer Weights	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) LD) **' 8 kb/s Modem
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abeliact Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo	entered in Block 20, if different i entered in Block 20, if different i loseph E. Laposa (DCI every and identify by block number jualizer Weights odem Algorithms	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) LD) *** 8 kb/s Modem
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abeliact Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo Envelope Delay Te	entered in Block 20, if different f entered in Block 20, if different f loseph E. Laposa (DCI every and identify by block numbe jualizer Weights odem Algorithms elephone Modems	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) LD) **' 8 kb/s Modem
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the abeliact 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo Envelope Delay Te Amplitude Variation Se	entered in Block 20, if different f entered in Block 20, if different f loseph E. Laposa (DCI every and identify by block numbe jualizer Weights odem Algorithms elephone Modems ecure Voice	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) LD) Pr) 8 kb/s Modem
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetrect Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo Envelope Delay Te Amplitude Variation Se Phase Jitter 16	entered in Block 20, if different f entered in Block 20, if different f loseph E. Laposa (DCI every and identify by block numbe jualizer Weights odem Algorithms elephone Modems ecure Voice is KB/S Modem	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) LD) 97) 8 kb/s Modem
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebeliacity Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo Envelope Delay Te Amplitude Variation Se Phase Jitter 16 0 ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if nece The primary objective of the 16 kb/s modem on the AUTOW design. The goal was to provi with 16 kb/s CVSD's. The mode Atlantic and Trans-Pacific Net	entered in Block 20, 11 different i entered in Block 20, 11 different i loseph E. Laposa (DCI uulizer Weights odem Algorithms elephone Modems ecure Voice b KB/S Modem this program was to VON network to establi ide good voice quality cworks and on some CO	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) LD) "" 8 kb/s Modem "" 9 perform extensive testing of lish the adequacy of the moder ty over the Network when used ope, the Pacific, on Trans- DNUS lines.
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebeliact Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo Envelope Delay Te Amplitude Variation Se Phase Jitter 16 0 ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if nece The primary objective of the 16 kb/s modem on the AUTOW design. The goal was to provi with 16 kb/s CVSD's. The mode Atlantic and Trans-Pacific Net	entered in Block 20, 11 different i entered in Block 20, 11 different i loseph E. Laposa (DCI every end identify by block numbe jualizer Weights odem Algorithms elephone Modems ecure Voice is KB/S Modem reary end identify by block numbe this program was to /ON network to establ ide good voice qualifi em was tested in Euro tworks and on some Co incouraging and provide locent to provide good	be referred to RADC (DCLD), "" " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " " "
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebetract Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo Envelope Delay Te Amplitude Variation Se Phase Jitter 16 0 ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if nece The primary objective of the 16 kb/s modem on the AUTOV design. The goal was to provi with 16 kb/s CVSD's. The mode Atlantic and Trans-Pacific Net Test results were very er that the modem design is suffi	entered in Block 20, 11 different i entered in Block 20, 11 different i loseph E. Laposa (DCI every and identify by block numbe jualizer Weights odem Algorithms elephone Modems ecure Voice b KB/S Modem every end identify by block numbe this program was to VON network to establid ide good voice qualities em was tested in Euro cworks and on some Co incouraging and provide loient to provide goo	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) .D) "" 8 kb/s Modem "" perform extensive testing of lish the adequacy of the mode ty over the Network when used ope, the Pacific, on Trans- DNUS lines. de a high level of confidence od voice quality over the UNCLASSIFIED
June 1978. Other requests for Griffiss AFB NY 13441. 7 CISTRIBUTION STATEMENT (of the ebeliacity Same 8 SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES RADC Project Engineer: Capt J 9 KEY WORDS (Continue on reverse side if nece Digital Networks Eq Key Generator Tests Mo Envelope Delay Te Amplitude Variation Se Phase Jitter 16 0 ABSTRACT (Continue on reverse side if nece The primary objective of the 16 kb/s modem on the AUTOW design. The goal was to provi with 16 kb/s CVSD's. The mode Atlantic and Trans-Pacific Net Test results were very er that the modem design is suffi	entered in Block 20, 11 different i entered in Block 20, 11 different i loseph E. Laposa (DCI every and identify by block numbe jualizer Weights odem Algorithms elephone Modems ecure Voice b KB/S Modem every end identify by block numbe this program was to VON network to establid ide good voice qualities m was tested in Euro works and on some Co incouraging and provide lotent to provide goo	be referred to RADC (DCLD), rom Report) .D) "" 8 kb/s Modem "" perform extensive testing of lish the adequacy of the mode ty over the Network when used ope, the Pacific, on Trans- DNUS lines. de a high level of confidence od voice quality over the UNCLASSIFIED

Ŷ,

UNCLASSIFIED

Ř

いいてものです。

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Date Entered)

existing AUTOVON Network as well as over planned network improvements.

In addition to excellent error rate performance, the modem demonstrated an extremely high probability of synchronization, even under very adverse conditions. The modem was able to achieve synchronization on all tested lines and considering all calls and all conditions, including extreme burst phenomena, the average synchronization probability was 96.4 percent.

Compared to presently operational 9.6 kb/s modems, the 16 kb/s modem using the same CVSD (Hy-11) provided essentially identical voice quality with error rates up to 3-5 percent as did the 9.6 kb/s system operating error free.

Only two classes of disturbances were found to significantly affect modem performance. These were harmonic distortion and fading associated with tropo links. Harmonic distortion is significant only in CONUS. Here the use of D conditioned lines, rather than existing C-3 conditioning will specify harmonic distortion to a satisfactory level. Tropo fades are significant only on European lines. For this application a good probability exists that additional or modified modem algorithms will provide significant immunity to fades. Even though the modem was found most sensitive to distortion and fading, the performance was satisfactory even on links exhibiting these characteristics.

Limited tests performed on existing digital links associated with the FKV project indicate that a high probability exists that the modem performance will not be degraded by the eventual digitization of the network.

A short HF link was tested in the Pacific resulting in adequate performance. However, the link was short and is not a true representation of HF phenomena or long links. The results, although not conclusive are encouraging.

Subsidiary program objectives included measurement of line parameters and characteristics and performance of interface tests with standard key generators to establish the level of synchronization loss relative to modem bit error rate. All of these objectives were accomplished.

Several logical recommendations regarding the 16 kb/s modem can be made. Research, Development, Test and Evaluation (RDT&E) units should be procured to provide a larger sample of modems for additional test as well as for user evaluation. Additional investigation should take place to determine modem algorithms which will improve performance in the presence of fades and high levels of harmonic distortion. Additional testing should be performed over HF simulators and active HF links to characterize modem performance as well as provide insight into additional algorithms that may provide enhanced performance

UNCLASSIFIED

SECURITY CLASSIFICATION OF THIS PAGE(When Data Entered)

CONTENTS

ì

Paragraph	Title	Page
1.0		1
1.1	Prior Study Activity	1
1.2	Objectives	1
1.3	General Outline	2
2.0	TEST PHASE	2
2.1	Test Philosophy	3
2.2	Modem Test Results	8
2.2.1	Test Results	9
2.2.2	Network Coverage	44
2.2.3	One-Way Versus Looped BER	59
2.2.4	Composite Network Considerations	66
2.2.5	Special Calls	67
2.3	Line Test Results	73
2.4	Test Procedures	112
2.4.1	Connection Procedures	112
2.4.2	Equipment Setup	113
2.4.3	Measurement Procedures	115
2.4.3.1	Bit Error Rate	115
2.4.3.2	Signal-to-Noise Ratio	115
2.4.3.3	Phase Jitter	115
2.4.3.4	Amplitude Response and Envelope Delay	116
2.4.3.5	Nonlinear Distortion	116
2.4.3.6	Transient Measurements	117
2.5	Comparison of Modes	118
3.0		128

i

CONTENTS (Continued)

Paragraph	Title	Page
3.1	Repackaging	128
3.2	Look–Up Table Investigation	128
3.3	Other Processor Modifications	129
3.4	Training Sequence Modifications	131
3.5	Description of Modes	133
4.0	KEY GENERATOR TESTS	135
4.1	Test Setup	135
4.2	Results	135
5.0		140
APPENDI	A - NETWORK DESCRIPTION	141
А	General	141
A.1	The World-Wide AUTOVON Network	142
A.2	The European Network	145
A.3	The Pacific Network	159
APPENDI	K B – TEST SCHEDULE	162
APPENDIX	C — TABLES OF DATA	164
C-1	Glossary (C-1 through C-10)	164
C-2	Glossary (Special Headings)	169
C-ŝ	Glossary (Special Headings)	169
C-6	Glossary (Special Headings)	169
C-7	Glossary (Special Headings)	170
C-10	Glossary (Special Heading)	170
APPENDI	X D - PHOTOGRAPHS	257
D-1	INTRODUCTION	257

CONTENTS (Continued)

Paragraph	Title	Page
D-2	AMPLITUDE AND ENVELOPE DELAY PHOTOGRAPHS (385) Call numbers 3002, C-1, C-2, C-4, and Numbers 1-418	257
D-3	PHASE JITTER PHOTOGRAPHS (41) Phase Jitter Cal and Call Numbers 18–313	258
D -4	AMPLITUDE VARIATION PHOTOGRAPHS (35) Call Numbers 30-313	258
D-5	EQUALIZER WEIGHT PHOTOGRAPHS (37) Call Numbers 44-313	384
APPENDI	X E – TEST SENTENCES	396
BIBLIOGR	АРНҮ	402

iii

T

TABLES

Table	Title	Page
2.2.1-1	Summary of 16 kb Test Results	10
2.2.1-2	Summary of 8 kb Test Results	12
2.2.2-1	Routings of European IST Circuits	46
2.2.2-2	Locations and Abbreviations	49
2.2.2-3	Pacific Interswitch Circuit Routes	54
2.2.2-4	Trans-Atlantic Circuits	56
2.2.2-5	Trans-Pacific Circuits	58
2.2.3-1	European IST One-Way Versus Looped BER	60
2.2.3-2	Trans-Atlantic One-Way Versus Looped BER	61
2.2.3-3	Trans-Pacific One-Way Versus Looped BER	63
2.3-1	Amplitude Variation	75
2.3-2	Phase Jitte: Spectrum	87
3.5	Mode Configurations	134
A-1	Summary of Access Line Routings	158
A-2	Summary of Access Line Circuits	160
C-1	European IST Loops (Sheet 1)	171
C-1	European IST Loops (Sheet 2)	179
C-2	European Access Loops (Sheet 1)	187
C-2	European Access Loops (Sheet 2)	191
C-3	European Remote Access Loops (Sheet 1)	195
C-3	European Remote Access Loops (Sheet 2)	197
C-4	European One-Way IST Calls (Sheet 1)	201
C-4	European One-Way IST Calls (Sheet 2)	203
C-5	Trans-Atlantic Calls (Sheet 1)	205
C-5	Trans-Atlantic Calls (Sheet 2)	211
C-6	Trans-Pacific Calls (Sheet 1)	217
C-6	Trans-Pacific Calls (Sheet 2)	221

iv

ş

TABLES (Continued)

Table	Title	Page
C-7	Pacific IST Loops (Sheet 1)	22 5
C-7	Pacific IST Loops (Sheet 2)	227
C-8	Pacific Remote Access Loops (Sheet 1)	231
C-8	Pacific Remote Access Loops (Sheet 2)	233
C-9	CONUS IST Loops (Sheet 1)	235
C-9	CONUS IST Loops (Sheet 2)	241
C-10	Special Calls (Sheet 1)	247
C-10	Special Calls (Sheet 2)	251
C-11	Comments	2 55
D-1	Cross-Reference From Table No. to Call No	259

ILLUSTRATIONS

Figure	Title	Page
2,2,1-1	Percent of European IST Loops with Error Rate Equal to or less than Ordinate	13
2.2.1-2	Percent of Pacific IST Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate	14
2.2.1-3	Percent of CONUS IST Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate	15
2.2.1-4	Percent of One-Way European IST Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate	17
2.2.1-5	Percent of One-Way Trans-Atlantic Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate	18
2.2.1-6	Percent of Trans-Pacific One-Way Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate	19
2.2.1-7	Percent of European Access Loops with Error Rate Equal to or less than Ordinate	20
2.2.1-8	Percent of European Remote Access Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate	21
2.2.1-9	Percent of Pacific Remote Access Loops with BER less than or Equal to Ordinate	22
2,2,1-10	Percent of European IST Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (With and Without Tropo)	24
2.2.1-11	Percent of One-Way European IST Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (With and Without Tropo)	2 5
2.2.1-12	Percent of European Access Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (With and Without Tropo)	26
2.2.1-13	Percent of European Remote Access Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (With and Without Tropo)	. 27
2.2.1-14	Percent of Pacific IST Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (With and Without Tropo)	. 28
2.2.1-15	Percent of Pacific Remove Access Loop Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (With and Without Tropo)	. 29
2.2.1-16	Percent of CONUS IST Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (Effect of Harmonic Distortion)	. 31

Figure	Title	Page
2.2.1-17	Percent of CONUS IST Loops with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (Measurements from RADC vs from Melbourne).	32
2.2.1-18	Percent of European IST Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (V2 vs S3 Conditioning)	33
2.2.1-19	Percent of One-Way Trans-Atlantic Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (Satellite vs Cable)	35
2.2.1-20	Percent of Trans–Pacific One–Way Calls with BER Equal to or better than Ordinate (Satellite vs Cable)	36
2.2.1-21	Percent of Pacific IST Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (Cable vs Satellite)	37
2.2.1-22	Percent of Lines with Block Through–Put Equal to or Better than Ordinate for 8 kb Operation	38
2.2.1-23	Percent of IST Loops with Equalizer S/N Ratio Equal to or less than Ordinate	39
2.2.1-24	Percent of One-Way Calls with Equalizer S/N Ratio Equal to or less than Ordinate	40
2.2.1-25	Percent of Access Loops with Equalizer S/N Ratio Equal to or less than Ordinate	41
2.2.1-26	Percent of One-Way European IST Calls with BER Equal to or less than Ordinate (Comparison of 16 kb with Previous 2.4 and 4.8 kb Measurements)	42
2.2.3	Bit Error Rates for One-Way and Looped Calls	64
2.3-1	Percent of IST Loops with Line Loss Equal to or less than Abscissa	78
2.3-2	Percent of One-Way Calls with Line Loss Equal to or less than Abscissa	79
2.3-3	Percent of Access Loops with Line Loss Equal to or less than Abscissa	80
2.3-4	Percent of IST Loops with S/N Ratio Equal to or less than Ordinate	81
2.3-5	Percent of One-Way Calls with S/N Ratio Equal to or less than Ordinate	82
2.3-6	Percent of Access Loop Calls with S/N Equal to or less than Ordinate	83

14 A

sì.

Figure	Title	Poge
2.3-7	Percent of IST Loops with Phase Jitter Equal to or less than Ordinate	84
2.3-8	Percent of One-Way Calls with Phase Jitter Equal to or less than Ordinate	85
2.3-9	Percent of Access Loops with Phase Jitter Equal to or less than Ordinate	86
2.3-10	Percent of IST Loops with Second Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	90
2.3-11	Percent of One-Way Calls with Second Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	91
2.3-12	Percent of Access Loops with Second Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	92
2.3-13	Percent of IST Loops with Third Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	93
2.3-14	Percent of One-Way Calls with Third Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	94
2.3-15	Percent of Access Loops with Third Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	95
2.3-16	Percent of IST Loops with Total Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	96
2.3-17	Percent of One-Way Calls with Total Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	97
2.3-18	Percent of Access Loop with Total Harmonic Distortion Equal to or less than Ordinate	98
2.3-19	Percent of IST Loops with No. of 3 dB Amplitude Hits Equal to or less than Ordinate	, 99
2.3-20	Percent of One-Way Colls with No. of 3 dB Amplitude Hits Equal to or less than Ordinate	, 100
2.3-21	Percent of Access Loops with No. of 3 dB Amplitude hits Equal to or less than Ordinate	. 101
2.3-22	Percent of IST Loops with No. of Phase Hits Equal to or less than Ordinate	. 102
2.3-23	Percent of One-Way Calls with No. of 20 ⁰ Phase Hits Equal to or less than Ordi nat e	. 103

viii

Solution . BUS 7

Figure	Title	Page
2.3-24	Percent of Access Loops with No. of 20 ⁰ Phase Hits Equal to or less than Ordinate	104
2.3-25	Percent of IST Loops with No. of Impulses Exceeding Ordinate .	105
2.3-26	Percent of One-Way Calls with No. of Impulses Less than Ordinate	106
2.3-27	Percent of Access Loops with No. of Impulses Exceeding Ordinate	107
2.3-28	Percent of IST Loops with No. of Dropouts Equal to or less than Ordinate	108
2.3-29	Percent of One-Way Calls with No. of Dropouts Equal to or less than Ordinate	109
2.3-30	Percent of Access Loops with No. of Dropouts Equal to or less than Ordinate	110
2.4.2	Modem Line Test Setup	114
2,5-1	European IST Loops	119
2.5-2	Pacific IST Loops	120
2.5-3	CONUS IST Loops	121
2.5-4	One-Way European IST Calls	122
2.5-5	Trans-Atlantic Calls	123
2.5-6	One-Way Trans-Pacific Calls	124
2.5-7	European Access Loops	125
2.5-8	European Remote Access Loops	126
2.5-9	Pacific Remote Access Loops	127
3.4	Modified Synchronization Logic	132
4.1	Key Generator Test Setup	136
4.2-1	Sync Probability vs Bit Error Rate KG-13	137
4.2-2	Sync Probability vs Bit Error Rate KG-34	139
A-1	European IST Network	146
A- 2	Access Network for MAM	148
A-3	Access Network for HIN	149

Figure	Title	Page
A-4	Access Network for Schoenfeld	150
A-5	Access Network for Feldburg	151
A-6	Access Network for Donnersburg	152
A-7	Access Network for Langerkopf	153
A-8	Access Network for Coltano	154
A-9	Access Network for Mt. Vergine	155
A-10	Access Network for Humosa	156
A-11	Access Network for Mt. Pateras	157
A-12	Pacific IST Network	161

×

EVALUATION

The Department of Defense requirement for an improved, inexpensive, end-to-end secure voice communications system using the existing analog AUTOVON Network has fostered the investigation of various secure voice transmission approaches. One such approach being considered is the 16 KBPS Continuously Variable-Slope Delta Modulation (CVSD) Digital Voice Technique which offers much improved speaker recognition and voice intelligibility as compared to that obtained with slower data rate digital voice systems presently available. This technique and moreover the use of existing narrowband (4kHz) voice channels of the AUTOVON Network have created the need for a 16 KB/S Modem.

Under a previous CY-75 program, practical 16 KBPS Modem techniques were developed to provide satisfactory voice quality with 16 KBPS CVSD on a large percentage of dialed-up calls on the AUTOVON Network. The 16 Kilobit Modem Evaluation Program is responsible for providing the first in-depth step in determining the adequacy of the 16 KBPS Modem design. Reliable modem operation was obtained over AUTOVON facilities in the CONUS, Europe and the Pacific, as well as over Transoceanic (satellite and subcable) transmission links.

Additional work will continue in this area to further evaluate the performance of the modem over the existing CONUS AUTOVON and commercial telephone networks. In addition, an Advanced Solid State Study will investigate the possible use of state-of-art microprocessor technology in implementing the successful 16 KBPS Modem design in future production versions. A follow-on 16 KBPS Modem Development Program, to be conducted in FY 78-79 time frame, will further refine the modem design with the objective of achieving operational hardware.

JOSEPH E. LAPOSA, Capt, USAF Project Engineer

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1 Prior Study Activity

In February 1975 Harris Corporation was awarded a contract (F30602-75-C-0129) from the Rome Air Development Center (RADC) to study approaches available for developing a 16 kb/s modem capable of providing adequate voice quality over the AUTOVON network when operated with 16 kb/s continuously variable slope delta modulator (CVSD). The principal outcome of that study activity was a breadboard modem which was subsequently tested on a number of CONUS AUTOVON circuits from RADC with encouraging results.

The results of the study activities, as well as the test results are provided in the study final report.¹

1.2 Objectives

Because of the favorable outcome of the first study program, RADC initiated a follow-on activity (Contract No. F30602-76-C-0460) with the following objectives:

- a. Repackage the breadboard modem to make it suitable for transporting overseas for testing.
- b. Modify selected modem algorithms to allow selection of optimum final design approaches during Overseas (OCONUS) testing.
- c. Plan and conduct tests on the Overseas Autovon network to determine the optimum approaches.
- d. Conduct interface tests with several standard key generators (KG's) to establish the level of synchronization loss relative to the modem bit error rate (BER).

1.3 General Outline

In this report consideration has been made first to the line test results and secondly, the supporting items such as design changes incorporated in the modem prior to testing and KG interface tests. Section 2.0 presents the results of the test program. Section 3.0 describes the various approaches which were tested and discusses other modifications made to the modem during the course of the program. Section 4.0 discusses the KG interface tests and Section 5.0 presents conclusions and recommendations. The Appendices contain the detail test data and supporting information.

2.0 TEST PHASE

Since a major objective of the test phase was to establish the adequacy of the design approach, the first step in planning the tests was a determination of the potential applications for the modem in the OCONUS network. Considerable effort was devoted to reviewing future plans for the digital network, and determining potential modem applications. A review of the findings of this effort are provided in Appendix A. Three categories of potential use are:

> a. Upgrading the voice quality compared to that presently available from the existing 2.4 kb/s vocoders and the 9.6 kb/s CVSD units in present use in the AUTOSEVOCOM network. This implies that the modem signal is treated as analog by all of the switches in the network independent of whether or not specific trunks may have been digitized.

b. Interfacing subscriber locations which do not have digital service with the digital network. This implies that the modem signal is treated as an analog signal only on the access lines connecting the subscriber to the digital switch, and at that point is converted to a

digital signal for transmission over the digital network. This presupposes the existence of digital switches as well as digital trunks.

c. Handling 16 kb/s digital traffic over interswitch trunks which either cannot be digitized or which will not be digitized in the earlier phases of the digital conversion. Specific examples of this are undersea cables and other leased Telpak service. However, it would appear that on an interim basis, interswitch trunks requiring tropo hops and commercial satellite links also fall in this category. In this case, several links may be in tandem and the error rates of the individual links will add.

It is apparent that the first category of use is the most demanding on modem performance since it requires operation of the modem over all segments of the network. However, testing which allowed conclusions to be drawn concerning the last two categories individually appeared prudent since inadequate modem performance for the first category would not necessarily imply inadequacy for the last two categories.

The remainder of this section presents material associated with testing. Paragraph 2.1 discusses the method of testing and other subjects necessary to understand and interpret the test results. Modem performance data obtained from all of the different test areas is provided in Paragraph 2.2. Paragraph 2.3 provides the line measurement data obtained in the test program. Paragraph 2.4 discusses the test procedures used to obtain these results. The comparative error rates obtained in the different modem modes that were tested are presented in Paragraph 2.5.

2.1 Test Philosophy

Before presenting the test results several items need to be presented so that the results can be understood and properly interpreted. This section discusses the range of CVSD error rates necessary to provide adequate voice quality, the nature and types of tests conducted and a brief review of the AUTOVON network.

The objective of the test program was to establish the best modem design approach and to evaluate the adequacy of that approach in the network. The "adequacy" in this case means the adequacy of the voice quality available from the modem in conjunction with an appropriate 16 kb/s CVSD unit. The adequacy of the modem from the standpoint of operational features and maintainability was not evaluated at this time since only an advanced breadboard unit was used in the test program.

The CVSD unit used during the tests was the HY-11 which is presently being used in the network for the 9.6 kb/s service. Voice recordings as well as BER measurements were made on the majority of calls. Although the voice recordings are quite interesting, in virtually all cases the general quality of the voice is quite predictable from the BER numbers. If the listener is listening to the conversation rather than specifically listening to the background noise he will likely not notice the noise increase due to the modem until the BER exceeds 10⁻² or 1%. At 2% the noise is noticeable but does not impair the conversation. At a BER of 5% the noise is objectionable but a reliable conversation can easily be held. At a BER of 10% abbreviated communications are possible, such as a request to hang up and call back on another line, but in general, the quality is unsatisfactory. Based upon the subjective judgment of the test teams, the quality of the voice provided by the HY-11 at 16 kb/s operating with an error rate between 3% and 5%.

The approach taken in planning the modem tests was to atter t to maximize the number of locations and routings involved with the calls. Seven test sites were selected, three in Europe, three in the U.S. and one in the Pacific. The three European sites were: Hillingdon, England; Feldberg, Germany; and Coltano, Italy. The Pacific site was Pearl Harbor on Oahu, Hawaii. The three U.S. sites utilized were: Ft. Dietrich, Maryland; Stockton, California; and Melbourne, Florida.

A combination of one way calls and loop around calls were used. Since the advanced breadboord modem from the original study contract contained only one transmitter and one receiver, a second transmitter was constructed for the tests. The bulk of the calls were planned to be loop-around calls conducted from the site of the modem. In addition to these calls a number of one-way calls were planned from the transmitter site to the modem site. On these calls the parameters were measured for both one-way calls and looped calls on the same line so that estimates might be made as to the probable performance of normal one-way calls on the lines measured by the loop-around technique.

The results given in Paragraph 2.2.1 indicate that the error rates achieved on loop-around calls were substantially worse than those obtained on one-way calls on the same lines. <u>Therefore, to fairly interpret the loop-around results it is necessary to</u> recognize that substantial improvement should exist if the same two locations were involved in a normal one-way call.

The tests were divided into the following five segments:

- a) European network tests
- b) Tests from Europe to CONUS or Trans-Atlantic tests
- c) Pacific network tests
- d) Tests from Hawaii to CONUS or Trans-Pacific tests
- e) CONUS network tests

As discussed in Appendix A the AUTOVON system can be thought of as four networks connected together. The European network has ten AUTOVON switches that supply telephone service to over 100 subscriber locations. The Pacific network has four AUTOVON switches which serve a smaller number of subscriber locations. The Caribbean network has only one switch which serves a relatively small number of subscriber locations. The CONUS network has 70 switches serving a large number of subscriber locations. The four networks making up the AUTOVON system are interconnected via "gateway switches."

There are three gateway switches in Europe that connect to two CONUS gateway switches. Similarly the Pacific network has three gateway switches which connect to two different CONUS gateway switches.

Within one of the networks it is convenient to think in terms of two categories of trunks and channels. These are those that connect the switches together (interswitch trunks, or IST's), and those that connect a subscriber location to a switch (access lines). In the European network testing, four varieties of calls were made. These were:

- a) IST loop-around calls
- b) IST one-way calls
- c) Access line loop-around calls
- d) Remote access line loop-around calls

The remote access line calls were calls to a subscriber of a switch other than the switch where the modem was located. Thus the calls involved both IST and access lines. The calls in the Pacific network were limited to IST loops and remote access loops. Since only one Pacific site was used, no one-way tests were conducted. The Pacific calls all involved an access line from Pearl Harbor to the switch at Wahiawa in addition to the IST's and remote access lines where these were involved. However, the access line to Wahiawa was extremely good so that the performance should not be significantly affected by it. Access lines from the Wahiawa switch were not tested because it was felt that the data obtained from remote access calls would be of greater interest. Hence, calls involving access lines off other switches were selected instead.

The trans-Atlantic calls were conducted from Hillingdon, England, one of the gateway switches, to Ft. Dietrich, Maryland. The trans-Pacific calls were conducted from Pearl Harbor, Hawaii to Stockton, California. Both one-way and looped calls were made on these connections. The CONUS calls were all loop-around calls from Melbourne, Florida to various CONUS switches. These have been categorized as IST loops since it is felt that the access lines from Melbourne to the switch at Polk City, Florida are not likely to adversely affect modem performance.

The AUTOVON network contains lines with different quality specifications. On interswitch circuits outside of CONUS, these lines are either V2 or S3 (voice grade or data grade) conditioned. On a normal dialed call, the AUTOVON switch will first try the voice grade lines, and if they are busy, it will then try the data grade lines. By dialing a special prefix the switch will try only data grade lines. All of the access lines to normal PBX exchanges in Europe are voice grade. All of the access lines to AUTO-SEVOCOM subscribers are data grade. The AUTOSEVOCOM network is presently designed to utilize data grade lines only.

Most of the calls placed during the modem tests were placed without dialing the data prefix. The majority of loop-around calls to access locations were placed to PBX locations and hence were voice grade lines. Thus the data obtained should be representative of that available when the modem is used on the voice grade lines as well as on the data grade lines.

The modem was tested in four different modes. A comparison of performance in these modes is given in Paragraph 2.5. All of the data presented in the Paragraph 2.2 applies to operation in the "standard mode." A description of the modes is given in Paragraph 3.5.

A detailed schedule for all of the testing, except CONUS, is given in Appendix B. The CONUS tests were conducted from the Harris ESD facility in Melbourne, Florida subsequent to the other tests.

2.2 Modem Test Results

This section is subdivided into five parts. The primary test results are presented in Paragraph 2.2.1. Paragraph 2.2.2 discusses the degree of network coverage which was achieved in the testing. Paragraph 2.2.3 provides data as an aid to correlating the difference between one-way and looped calls. Paragraph 2.2.4 discusses interpretation of the basic modem performance data if calls from one network to another were involved. Paragraph 2.2.5 discusses results obtained in "special calls" which did not fall into any of the categories of calls presented in Paragraph 2.2.1. مان مارس مار مارس مارس مارستان و مرد این مارس مارستان <mark>از این مارس مارستان مارستان مارستان از در از این مارستان</mark> د

2.2.1 Test Results

This section presents summarized results of the error rate data given in the tables of Appendix C, which give a complete listing of all measurements taken on each call. Perhaps the best overall summary of the 16 kb modem test results is given in Table 2.2.1-1. As can be seen, a total of 334 calls are included in the nine categories listed. The percentage of calls with bit error rate equal to or better than 1 percent, 2 percent and 5 percent are given. As previously explained, these error rates correspond to good, fair, and poor voice quality when taking the CVSD's into consideration. The quality of the 16 kb voice at 5 percent, however, is not much worse than that of 9.6 kb CVSD voice error free. In the categories involving loop-around calls, both the line percentiles corresponding to the actual error rates and those corresponding to the predicted one-way error rates are given. The conversion is that of the conservative curve given in Figure 2.2.3.

学校にはやっているが、2019年間の時代になるとので、「学校になったないない」のではないたができたができたが、その時間ののであった。 ドドル あい

In addition to the BER data given, the total number of syncs and the number of sync successes for each category of line test is given. It should be noted that the probability of obtaining successful synchronization (sync) was better than 50 percent on each of the individual calls and was 96.4 percent averaged over all calls. Thus, there were no lines tested where sync could not be achieved. However, a number of lines in European tests had burst phenomena that caused a missed sync to occur during the test. The normal line test involved several syncs per call.

Approximately half of the sync misses occurring in the European tests occurred within the 2 days preceding the detection of an equipment malfunction which caused unreliable synchronization. This malfunction involved a logic circuit that produced excessive delay when cold. The problem was eliminated when the defective circuit was located and replaced. Since it was not possible to separate the sync misses due to this cause and those legitimately due to line characteristics, all sync misses have been included in the table. In any case, fades in the signal on calls involving tropo

Type of Call	No. of Calls	мејјал ВЕR	% c Calls 5%	of Loop with 2%	ped BER≤ 1%	% of Calls 5%	One-V with Bf 2%	∕αγ 1 ≤ 1%	Syi F Tries	nchroni zati Performance Successes	w .
European IST Loops	85	1.03E-3	8	80	02	100	86	96	346	330	95.4
Pacific IST Loops	25	4.50E-4	100	66	67	100	100	100	63	ጽ	1 00
CONUS IST LOOPS	78	4_70E-3	100	85	80	100	100	001	234	234	001
European 151 One-Way	12	5.40E-4	1	ι	ı	<u>8</u>	96	90	16	87	95.6
Trans-Atlan - One-Way	32	4.00E-3	•	ı	ł	90 100	8	75	161	161	100
Trans-Pacific One-Way	24	1.186-4	ı	ı	ł	8	100	8	80	109	001
European Access Loops	34	3.80E-5	100	66	67	801	100	<u>100</u>	151	139	92.1
European Remote Access Loops	26	1.03E-2	85	\$	46	95	ጽ	88	118	102	86.4
Pacific Remote Access Loops	6	3 . 80E-3	89	73	67	8	<u>8</u>	8	27	27	001
Totals	334								1330	1282	96.4

Tuble 2.2.1–1. Summary of 16 kb Tesi Results

A Links and it is non

÷ 81

transmission were still a significant cause of sync misses. Even so, the percentage of successful syncs is quite reasonable, especially where degradation of loop-around calls is considered.

≫

Loop-around data, as well as one-way data, was taken on most of the trans-Atlantic and trans-Pacific calls. This data is presented in Tables C.5 and C.6 of Appendix C but was not reduced for presentation in this section since all of these looped calls had corresponding one-way calls and hence are of no value in improving the prediction of one-way performance of trans-Atlantic and trans-Pacific calls. They have been used, however, to compare one-way versus looped performance in general, and are tabulated in Tables 2.2.3-2 and 2.2.3-3 of Paragraph 2.2.3. The looped data on the trans-Pacific calls was generally similar to looped performance of European calls but the looped data on trans-Atlantic calls was considerably worse. This appeared to be due to the high levels of harmonic distortion present in the one-way trans-Atlantic calls which was nearly doubled for looped calls. Although the looped trans-Atlantic performance was generally unsatisfactory, the actual one-way performance on the same lines was acceptable.

Table 2.2.1-2 presents a summary of the 8 kb test results. No attempt has been made to convert looped p rformance to one-way performance for the 8 kb test. As will be discussed in more detail later, the block throughput figures are the percentage of 8000-bit blocks that were transmitted error free.

Figures 2.2.1-1 through 2.2.1-3 show the percent of the lines which provided performance equal to or better than a specified bit error rate. The curves are for the IST loop-around calls for the European, Pacific and CONUS network, respectively. Included on the curves is the same information for 8 kb tests that were conducted on the same lines used for the 16 kb tests. These curves present the error rates as measured directly on the loop-around calls and do not have a loop-around to one-way conversion factor applied. The 16 kb error rates were obtained by recording the first five 10-second error counts following completion of modem training. In some cases, burst phenomena, such as dropouts, occurred in only one of the five counts. In calculating the error rates shown in the curves of this section, the error caused by these anomalies has been included

although there is some argument that the error rate which determines voice quality should not include errors of this nature. In cases where comparison of performance is involved, such as the comparison of error rates for the different modem modes and comparison of one-way versus looped performance, these anomalous counts have been omitted since they do not bear on the relative performance of the techniques being investigated.

The 8 kb error rates were obtained by recording the errors in the first 100 1-second periods following modem training. These error counts were used to calculate both 8 kb BER and block throughput. The block throughput is defined as the percent of 1 second counts that contained no errors. Thus a "block" of data for the purposes of this test was defined as 8000 bits. This produces a lower block throughput number than would exist for a smaller block length. This should be taken into account in any comparison of results. In all cases, anomolous counts in the 8 kb measurements were included in calculating both BER and block throughput.

	Percent of Calls With BER≤		Madian	Median
Type of Call	10-4	10 ⁻⁵	BER	Throughput
European IST Loops	79%	47%	1.5×10^{-5}	99.3
Pacific IST Loops	94 %	92%	<10 ⁻⁵	100
CONUS IST Loops	99 %	89%	< 10 ⁻⁵	100
European IST One-Way	83%	55%	<10 ⁻⁵	95.5
Trans-Atlantic One-Way	97 %	76%	< 10 ⁻⁵	100
Trans-Pacific One-Way	96%	84%	< 10 ⁻⁵	100
European Access Loops	9 4%	83%	< 10 ⁻⁵	100
European Remote Access Loops	59%	35%	5.2×10^{-5}	96.6
Pacific Remote Access Loops	83%	73 %	< 10 ⁻⁵	100

lable Z.Z.I-Z. Summary of 8 kb lest K	Kesults
---------------------------------------	---------



日本の書言 刀字

1441

Michelson

Figure 2.2.1-1



Figure 2.2.1-2



Figure 2.2.1-3

15

- - -

The performance curves for the three networks are interesting it: that they reflect the effects of the two types of disturbance that present the greatest difficulty to the modern. These are fades associated with tropo links and harmonic distortion. The Pacific IST loops exhibited neither of these problems with the exception of two or three calls which involved tropo. The European error rates were dominated by the calls over tropo links which constitute approximately 60 percent of the calls. The CONUS lines do not involve tropo links but many of them do exhibit relatively high harmonic distortion content.

Figures 2.2.1-4, 2.2.1-5, and 2.2.1-6 indicate the performance of the one-way European, the one-way trans-Atlantic and the one-way trans-Pacific calls. The one-way trans-Atlantic calls were also characterized by relatively high harmonic distortion. Some evidence exists, however, that the primary cause of the distortion was the access line from the CONUS gateway switch to Ft. Dietrich rather than the actual trans-Atlantic lines. The harmonic distortion on the trans-Pacific calls was considerably smaller with resulting improvement in error rate.

Figures 2.2.1-7, 2.2.1-8, and 2.2.1-9 show the performance of the European access loops and the European and Pacific remote access loops. The performance shown in both of the remote access loop curves is dominated by the effects of tropo links. As discussed below, a number of these remote loops exhibited large line losses when the actual line loss should have been zero.

It was felt that in a number of these cases, the problem was due to the patching arrangement which was necessary at the remote switch to avoid insertion of an echo suppressor, or due to the manual loop patch, at the remote access location to provide the loop-around. The coordination of these calls was quite difficult from a communications standpoint and verification of the patching arrangements was not always possible. For instance, call 114, a remote loop to Vicenza, italy from Feldberg, Germany, exhibited 16 dB line loss and provided a 16 kb error rate of 1.05 percent. The line was preempted before complete data was taken. A second call (115) to Vicenza was



THE REPORT OF THE PARTY OF

Figure 2.2.1-4

●11日本では「大学など」というである。1日間には本語では、1000年で、1000年でのまた。 A. いたいまた、 A. いたで、 A. いたで、 A. いたい、 A. いたいいたい、 A. いたい、 A. いたいいいたい、 A. いたいいたい、 A. いたいいたいいたい、 A. いたいいたい



Figure 2.2.1-5



Figure 2.2.1-6


Figure 2.2.1-7



Winner

Figure 2.2.1-8



Figure 2.2.1-9

established over the same circuits as soon as the line became free. This time different personnel were utilized to provide the patches and the line loss was 6 dB with a resulting error rate of 0.229 percent.

As previously mentioned, the performance of the European calls and to a lesser extent, the Pacific calls was dominated by the error rates associated with those calls transiting tropo links. Of the 85 European IST loop calls, 49 of these transited one or more tropo links, and 33 did not involve tropo. (Calls with uncertain routing were excluded.) The median number of tropo links transited in these calls (taking into account the looped configuration) was six, and several IST loops transited 14 tandem tropo hops. Figure 2.2.1-10 shows the BER performance of the European IST loops separated into categories of those calls with one or more tropo hops and those with none. As can be seen, the worst error rate of the 33 loops which did not involve tropo was 5×10^{-3} . In addition to this categorization, it was noted that many of the calls with the worst error rates transited tropo link, T0055, between Coltano and Mt. Limbara. If those calls were excluded from the 49 calls involving tropo, it can be seen that the resulting performance of the remaining tropo links is better than that of all calls including the microwave links. The specific cause for the poor performance over this one link was not determined since the correlation was not discovered mtil after the tests were completed.

Figure 2.2.1-11 shows similar results for the one-way European IST calls. Twelve of the one-way calls involved tropo while eight did not. Figure 2.2.1-12 presents the performance with and without tropo for the European access loops. There were eight access calls involving tropo and 26 that did not. None of the access lines transited T0055. Figure 2.2.1-13 shows the results for the remote access lines in Europe. In this case, 18 calls involved tropo whereas eight did not. Again, omission of the tropo calls transiting T0055 makes a significant difference. Figures 2.2.1-14 and 2.2.1-15 present the performance with and without tropo for the Pacific calls. The effect is less pronounced in these cases because the number of calls involving tropo is much less. In the Pacific IST



Figure 2.2.1-10



..........

Figure 2.2.1-11



Figure 2.2.1-12



東方

man and the

Figure 2.2.1-13



Figure 2.2.1-14



- the to

Figure 2.2.1-15

looped calls, five involved tropo and 20 did not. In the case of the remote access calls, two involved tropo and seven did not.

Figure 2.2.1-16 shows the BER performance of the CONUS loop when calls of different levels of distortion are excluded. As an be seen, the performance of the 21 calls with harmonic distortion less than 2 percent is considerably better than that of the 46 calls with harmonic distortion less than 3 percent which in turn is better than the performance for all 78 calls.

In evaluating the data associated with the CONUS testing it is worth noting that data obtained by testing of the CONUS network from a subscriber location can be easily dominated by the characteristics of the particular access line and not that of the IST's in the network. Figure 2.2.1-17 shows the CONUS IST looped data as measured from Melbourne, Florida, and the CONUS IST looped data previously taken from the RADC DICEF facility at Griffiss Air Force Base in Rome, New York. Although the modem design was improved slightly between the times that the two tests were conducted, the principal cause of difference is the higher harmonic distortion levels existing on the RADC calls which were undoubtedly associated with the digital access link from RADC to the AUTOVON switch at Tully, New York.

The conclusion that can be drawn from this is that the IST network is at least as good as it appears from a particular access location but may be better. Conversely, obtaining good performance over the IST network from a particular subscriber location dons not guarantee good performance from all subscriber locations. However, if the number of subscriber locations causing problems is sufficiently small, it may be possible to do something about the access lines causing difficulty whereas poor performance on the IST network could likely not be corrected. In particular, D conditioned access lines, which have a specification in maximum distortion should improve bad lines significantly.

Figure 2.2.1–18 shows the performance on the European IST loops when calls which involved only V2 lines and those involving only S3 lines are separated. There



.....

Figure 2.2.1-16

31

.



Figure 2.2.1-17



Figure 2.2.1-18

wer 33 calls involving only V2 conditioned lines and 19 involving only S3 conditioned lines. As can be seen, the performance difference is slight indicating that use of data grade lines would not provide significant performance improvement so far as the 1ST network is concerned. The European access calls involved too few S3 conditioned lines to make a comparison whereas the Pacific calls involved too few V2 lines to provide a valid comparison. The latter statement is due to the fact that virtually all Pacific IST lines are S3 conditioned. Hence dialing with or without the data grade prefix is unlikely to affect the quality significantly from a statistical point of view.

Figures 2.2.1-19, 2.2.1-20, and 2.2.1-21 present BER curves for the trans-Atlantic, trans-Pacific and the Pacific IST loop subdivided into undersea cable calls and satellite calls. The Pacific IST loops are further subdivided in terms of DSCS and COMSAT calls. In general, it is felt that no significant difference in voice quality exists between these types of calls, although some BER performance was better in some cases, specifically for COMSAT calls and cable calls. The cause of this better performance was not investigated.

Figure 2.2. 1-22 shows the block throughput achieved (at 8 kb/s) on all nine categories of lines. As can be noted the block throughput of the European lines was worse than those elsewhere due to the higher percentage of lines with burst phenomenon. Figures 2.2.1-23, 2.2.1-24, and 2.2.1-25 show the percentage of calls which provided equalizer S/N ratio equal to or less than the ordinate. The equalizer S/N ratio is defined as the ratio of the equalizer error signal before equalization (with the weights zero) to that after equalization. The equalizer S/N ratio is not monotonically related to BER since some of the processing algorithms improve BER without affecting equalizer S/N. However, the data has been included since it may be of interest to other modem designers.

To better assess the meaning of the BER curves presented in this section, it is interesting to compare the 16 kb/s revulue with those previously obtained with other modems in the European network. Figure 2.2.1-26 shows the cumulative BER performance or one-way European IST calls made on the 16 kb/s modem and those made on several varieties of 2.4 kb/s modems and a 4.8 × 3/2 modem in tests conducted in 1971. The 2.4



Figure 2.2.1-19



Figure 2.2.1-20



Figure 2.2.1-21



Figure 2.2.1-22

and harrest and her services a strain of strain Room Production and



Figure 2.2.1-23

And the second states and the second second states and the



s à le trait

and the second state of the second second

1

1

72

ł

;

i

Figure 2.2.1-24



「「このでない」の「この」の「ころの」」」

Figure 2.2.1-25



Figure 2.2.1-26

. . .

kb/s modem used was the DCS standard modem with several types of equalizers: a fixed equalizer (FE), a fixed compromise equalizer (FCE) and an automatic equalizer (AE). The measurements were made over voice grade circuits (one-way) on IST calls. As can be seen, in the region of error rates of concern to the 16 kb/s modem (BER $\geq 0.5\%$), the 16 kb/s error rates were better than the best of 2.4 kb/s configurations. The data concerning the 1971 tests is taken from RADC-TR-72-70.² Although it is recognized that the locations of testing were not the same and that the network has improved since 1971, the comparison is still interesting.

In a number of instances, European calls displayed significant signal level changes that ranged from 1 second in duration to 10 to 20 seconds of duration. The error rate performance following these was observed to be approximately the same as that prior to the disturbance when the disturbance did not occur during the training mode. This feature is felt to be significant in providing satisfactory operation in the environment imposed by the European network.

Two calls were placed from Feldberg which transited digital links associated with the FKV project. Since these are the only digital links in the overseas network, it represents the closest test available to indicate performance when portions of the future network are digitized. Call number 74 from Feldberg to Stuttgart through Vaihingen was looped on a digital link from Stuttgart to Vaihingen in tandem with three microwave links and a tropo link from Feldberg to Vaihingen. The 16 kb/s BER on this call was 6.53×10^{-3} . This call involved two tandem a/d-d/a conversions since the loop back patch at Stuttgart to Kaiserlautern to Heidelberg transited six tandem digital links with a/d-d/a conversions on each. In addition, it transited the microwave and tropo links to Vaihingen and a government land line from Kaiserlautern to Heidelberg. The looped BER on this call was 2.53 $\times 10^{-3}$. On both calls, the harmonic distortion was less than 1 percent. Both the error rate data and harmonic distortion numbers appear to be quite encouraging relative to performance through digital links in the future network.

2.2.2 Network Coverage

As was discussed in Section 2.1 it was an objective of the tests to "cover" as much of the network as possible so that the results would be as representative as possible of the operation of the modem in the network. On most calls the routing of the calls was traced so that the network coverage could be evaluated.

All AUTOVON switches in Europe have dialed loop-around capability. Thus it is always possible to obtain an IST loop to any of the 10 switches by simply dialing a special number. The switching strategy of the European network is such that a call placed from one switch to another will follow one of, at most, three routes to that switch so far as routing through other switches is concerned. Thus, a call placed from Hillingdon, England to Humosa, Spain may go directly (primary routing); it may go via Langerkopf and Donnersburg in Germany (secondary routing) or it may go via Feldberg, Germany and Mount Vergine, Italy (ternary routing). If all circuits on these three routings are busy with calls of equal or higher precedence a busy signal will occur. The routings associated with these switch to switch calls are referred to as engineered routings.

When placing the IST loop-around calls, all of the engineered routings from each of the three switch locations selected as test sites were obtained. This was achieved by first dialing the loop-around number of the other switches which usually resulted in a primary routing. The remaining secondary and ternary routings were obtained by seizing a trunk to the next switch involved in the routing and dialing the loop-around number from that location. In general, routings that resulted in poor error rate performance were selected for repeat calls when time was available. In addition, routings involved in one-way tests produced repeat calls on the loop-around connections. It should be noted that although there are no more than three routings from one switch to another, as far as the interconnecting switches are concerned, there may be a number of different circuit routings from one switch to another.

The European IST network is shown in Figure A-1 of Appendix A. All of the interswitch traffic transits a network involving 40 microwave links, 11 tropo links, 4 leased Telpak links and 3 diffraction links. During the course of European testing all of these links were utilized for at least one call. There are 41 different routes involved in interswitch circuits. Thirty of the routes were transited during the European testing. The remaining 11 that were not transited contain less than 4 percent of the IST circuits.

Table 2.2.2-1 lists the routings of interswitch circuits for the European AUTOVON network. The first column indicates the two switches that the circuit connects. (Table 2.2.2-2 identifies the locations corresponding to abbreviations given in this report.) The second column indicates the location of baseband patches involved in the connection. The next four columns indicate the number of microwave (M), tropo (T), diffraction (D), and leased Telpak (L) links employed by the circuit. The seventh column is the distance involved in statute miles. The next three columns indicate the number of V2 and S3 conditioned circuits and the total number of circuits on that routing. The last two columns indicate the number of colls using that routing. In all there are 41 different routes involved and 15 transit only microwave links. Twenty-two use at least one tropo link, eight use at least one diffraction link and six use at least one Telpak link. Of the 357 circuits involved, 198 or about 56 percent of them are S3 conditioned. Of the 357 different circuits, 104 were used during the tests representing 29 percent of all the I5T voice circuits.

Good coverage of the network involved with access lines is much harder to obtain because of the large number of different access locations, as well as the increased difficulty in achieving loop-around connections to these locations (no usable automatic loop-around capability exists). This difficulty was especially severe in the case of remote access loops since echo suppressors which normally are employed on all such calls had to be disabled. Further many of the access locations involved in the network have only one voice channel and inherently do not have a capability to provide a loop-around.

		Tat	. 2	2.2		Routings of Eu	ropean	IST Circi	Jits		
	Via	٤	L	٥		Dist	V2	S3	Total	No. Channels	No. Cails
HIN-FEL	MAM	v	3	-	0	446	2	0	2	0	C
HIN-FEL	ł	13	0	0	0	446	5	8	13	Ŷ	15
NOQ-NIH	FEL	15	0	0	0	490	0	S	ч	-	-
HIN-LKF	I	13	0	0	0	445	\$	æ	14	ო	ŝ
HIN-MAM	I	Ŝ	0	0	0	102	15	61	34	Ŷ	11
WUH-NIH	FEL, LKF	24	4	0	0	1605	-	0	-	0	0
WUH-NIH	RTA	0	0	0	8	1632	n	-	4	2	4
WUH-NIH	ı	0	0	0	-	932	0	4	4	ę	œ
HIN-MRE	HUM		4	0	-	1835	0	4	4	S	S
HIN-MRE	MAM, FEL, MCA	23	2	0	0	1476	n	0	n	ç	01
MAM-FEL	I		8		0	344	œ	S	13	4	15
MAM-DON	I	e	2	~	0	388	~	S	12	Ş	7
LKF-SCH	I	7	0	0	0	96	ო	ŝ	8	2	2
DON-MRE	CLO	0	e	2	0	923	2	Ş	Ξ	-	-
DON-MRE	CLO	0	-	2	-	775	0	2	2	0	0

¢ c

Table 2.2.2-1. Routings of European IST Circuits (Continued)

. . . .

•#**...*#****

									-		
	Via	٤	н	۵	 ب	Dist	2	23	lotal	No. Channels	
DON-MRE	FEL, MCA	12	5	0	0	1104	2	0	2	0	0
DON-CLO	ţ	0	-	5	0	485	e	7	10	6	10
DON-CLO	LKF	2	0	0	0	525	3	0	2	2	e
DON-LKF	i	~	0	0	0	23	17	18	35	2	2
DON-PAT	FEL, MRE	13	S	0	0	1620	0	8	2	0	0
DON-PAT	CLO	0	ó	7	0	1439	n	-	4	-	
DON-PAT	IKF, CLO	0	2	0	0	1479	0	-	-	-	-
*WUH-NOQ	LKF	Ξ	4	0	0	1450	3	S	7	£	ŝ
DCN-HUM*	LKF,CLO	Ξ	4	٥	0	1450	-	0	-	0	0
MUH-NOQ	CLO		5		0	1410	2	2	4	-	2
DON-SCH*	FEL	4	0	0	0	141		-	2	0	0
DON-SCH*	I	4	0	0	0	141	ო	5	80	2	2
DON-SCH	LKF	e	0	0	0	611	7	0	2	0	Ö
DON-FEL	I	7	0	0	0	44	14	16	30	6	12
HUM-MRE	1	-	4	0	0	903	œ	01	18	9	ω

47

443.7

......

સંસ્થયી વિશે

「「「「「「「」」」」

ñ

Ŧ,

Table 2.2.2-1. Routings of European IST Circuits (Continued)

;

Kinter

				6		Dist	V2	S3	Totai	No. Channels	No. Calls
	Via	٤	-	s						7	31
		0	0	0	-	290	ი	শ	-	D	, 1
CLU-MKE)	c	~	0	0	438	-	-	2	0	0
CLO-MRE	1	, c		. 0	0	516	2	10	17	\$	10
MRE-PAT	1	» –	, c	0	0	70	14	91	8	9	9
FEL-LKF	1	. 01	, c	0	0	622	2	7	6	\$	12
FEL-CLO	I	2 2		, c	0	884	-	1	2	2	8
FEL-CLO	SGT	± ;	, c	, c		1064	œ	2	01	শ	7
FEL-MRE*	1	2	4		, (7701	c	Ŷ	Ŷ	-	2
FEL-MRE*	MCA	01	2	0	0		, , ,	, c	¢	0	0
FEL-MRE*	CLO	10	7	0	0	1064	-	2	° •		0
FEL-MRE	LKF, CLO	10	0	0	-	815	0	-	- :	5 C	en
FFI -SCH		2	0	0	0	67	4	∞	12		
Totals 41		256	67	12	~		159	198	357	5	607

*Routings which are identical except for the location of baseband patch.

and the second secon

.

ł,

Abbreviation	Location	Abbreviation	Location
ABG	Augsburg, Germany	СНА	Chatham, North Carolina
ANK	Ankara, Turkey	CHE	Chesterfield, Massachusetts
ANU	Adenau, Germany	CHR	Christchurch, England
ANY	Alconbury, England	СН∨	Charlottesville, Virginia
APA	Apache Junction, Arizona	СКЅ	Chicksands, England
ATH	Athens, Greece	CLK	Clark, Phillipines
AVO	Aviano, Italy	CLO	Coltano, Italy
BAH	Bahrain, Bahrain	СМС	C.M.C., Colorado
BAN	Bann, Germany	CRO	Croughton, England
BDK	Badkreuznach, Germany	DAG	Elmiadag, Turkey
BDM	Bad Muender, Germany	DIC	Dye 5, Iceland
BFM	Botleyhill, England	DIY	Diyarbakir, Turkey
BIG	Bitburg, Germany	DON	Donnersburg, Germany
BLN	Berlin, Germany	DOV	Dover-Foxcraft, Maine
BNT	Bentwaters, England	DRA	Dranesville, ∨irginia
BRE	Brewton, Alabama	DST	Darmstadt, Germany
BRN	Bremerhaven, Germany	ELE	Elevsis, Greece
BRY	Barkway, England	ELL	Ellisville, Florida
BTL	Brieitsol, Germany	EDZ	Edzell, Scotland
BUC	Ft, Buckner, Okinawa	FEL	Feldburg, Germany
CED	Cedar Brook, New Jersev	FIN	Finegayan, Guam

Table 2.2.2-2. Locations and Abbreviations

Abbreviation	Location	Abbreviation	Location
FKT	Frankfurt, Germany	JUL	Julian, California
FI O	Flobeca, Belgium	KAD	Kadota, Japan
FRF	Fredericton, New Brunswick	KAR	Karamursel, Turkey
FTD	Ft. Dietrich, Maryland	KEF	Keflavik, Iceland
FUC	Fuchu, Japan	KEN	Kenitra, Morocco
FVI	Flying Dales Moor, Scotland	KLN	Kaiserlautern, Germany
GAR	Gablingm, Germany	KRE	Karlsruhr, Germany
GSN	Glessen, Germany	KSL	Koenigstuhl, Germany
HAG	Hagerstown, Maryland	KTS	Karatas, Turkey
HAN	Hahn, Germany	LAH	Lakenheath, England
HDG	Heidelburg, Germany	LAM	Lamar, Colorado
HEI	Helena, Montana	LDL	Landstuhl, Germany
HIN	Hillingdon, England	LDN	London, England
HPG	Hohenpieissenberg, Germa	ny LDR	Londonderry, North Ireland
ыст	Hohenstadt, Germany	LEE	Leesburg, Virginia
	Humosa, Spain	LEG	Leghorn, Italy
	High Wycombe, England	LKF	Landerkopf, Germany
INC	Incirlik, Turkey	LIT	Littleton, Massachusetts
IPK	Iraktion, Crete	LOD	Lodi, California
17 1.4	Izmir, Turkey	LUA	Lua-Lua-Lei, Hawaii
145	Jasper, Alabama	LSY	Lindsey, Geri any

Table 2.2.2-2. Locations and Abbreviations (Continued)

į

1

Line and a second

S.

.

Abbreviation	Location	Abbreviation	Location
LYO	Lyons, Nebraska	MUL	Muhl, Germany
MAG	St. Mawgan, England	NBG	Nuernberg, Germany
MAM	Martlesham Heath, England	NMK	Nea Marri, Greece
MBA	Mount Limbara, Italy	NPS	Naples, Italy
MCA	Mount Corna, Italy	NTG	Netcong, New Jersey
MEL	Melbourne, Florida	ΟΑΚ	Oakhanger, England
MEM	Memphis Junction, Arkansa	S PAT	Mount Pateras, Greece
MHN	Manheim, Germany	PHR	Pearl Harbor, Hawaii
MIL	Mildenhall, England	PMS	Pirmasens, Germany
MIS	Misawa, Japan	POL	Polk City, Florida
MNH	Munich, Germany	POT	Pottstown, Pennsylvania
мон	Mormond Hill, Scotland	PRU	Pruem, Germany
MOJ	Mojave, California	RAG	Reese-Augsburg, Germony
MOR	Moron, Spain	REG	Reggio, Italy
MOS	Mosely, Virginia	RMN	Rhein Main, Germany
MOU	Mounds, Oklahoma	RPS	Ruppertsweiller, Germany
MPR	Mount Parnis, Greece	RSN	Ramstein, Germany
MRA	Martina, France	RTA	Rota, Spain
MRE	Mount Vergine, Italy	SAH	Sahin Tepesi, Turkey
MSR	Massweiler Cave, German	у SCH	Schoenfeld, Germany
MTE	Mount Venda, Italy	SEG	Seguin, Texas

Table 2.2.2-2. Locations and Abbreviations (Continued)

.

~ .3-

4

E.

i

111 4 1

1 A 1 1 1 1 1 1

.

1.0.48.1

Abbreviation	Location	Abbreviation	Location
SEH	Sembach, Germany	TLY	Tully, New York
SEO	Seoul, Korea	TOL	Toledo Junction, Ohio
SGA	Sigon Ella, Italy	T PF	Tempelhof, Germany
SGT	Stuttgart, Germany	TUS	Thurso, Scotland
SHE	Sherbrooke, Quebec	UHD	Upper Heyford, England
SLO	San Luis Obispo, California	VCA	Vicenza, Italy
SMF	Smith Falls, Ontario	VHN	Vaihingen, Germany
SNP	Sinop, Turkey	WAH	Wahiawa, Hawaii
SNV	San Vito Dei Normanni, Ital	y WBG	Wurzburg, Germany
soc	Socorro, New Mexico	WIL	Williamsburg, Kentucky
SPB	Shape, Belgium	WMS	Worms, Carmany
SPM	Spangdahliem, Germany	WSE	Wasserkuppe, Germany
STK	Stockton, California	WTH	Wethersfield, England
STN	Stanfield, North Carolina	WTL	Whitehall, England
ST∨	Stevens Point, Wisconsin	WYO	Wyoming, Minnesota
SWE	Sweetwater, Texas	YAM	Yamanlartropo, Turkey
SWN	Schwetzingen, Germany	YKS	Yokusuka, Japan
SYH	Sidi Yahia, Morocco	YOK	Yokahama, Japan
TAP	Taipei, Taiwan	ZBN	Zweibrucken, Germany
THL	Thule, Greenland	ZUG	Zugspitze, Germany
TJN	Torrejon, Spain		

Table 2.2.2-2. Locations and Abbreviations (Continued)

HEAD

52

(a) = - A .

HAR STRAN

When possible, access loops were established to the most remote access locations since the network coverage could not be as complete as that achieved with IST loops. Thus, Ankara, Turkey; Iraklion, Crete; Sidi Yahia, Morocco; Berlin, Germany; Londondarry, North Ireland and Dye 5 in Iceland were chosen for testing. In all, tests were conducted to 33 of the 122 different access locations involved in the network. Of the 77 microwave links used to supply access line channels (exclusive of microwave links in the IST network which also are used for access lines), 34 (46 percent) were transited during the access line tests. Of the 22 tropo links involved, 14 (64 percent) were transited. One of the four diffraction links, one of the five government owned land lines, and one of the two VHF/UHF LOS links were accessed. None of the three leased Telpak circuits were involved. In addition, two calls involved digital links in the FKV project even though these did not appear to be in use for access lines at the time of the tests. This was done since future digitization of the network may require operation over similar channels.

The Pacific IST network as discussed in Appendix A is made up almost exclusively of submarine cables, satellite links and tropo links.

The approach to conducting IST loops in the Pacific was similar to that used in Europe since the Pacific switches also have automatic loop-around capability. In this case secondary routing was accomplished by "busying out" rather than seizing trunks. The resulting set of calls utilized all of the basic links involved in the IST network with the exception of one DSCS hop from the Philippines to Okinawa. It is possible, however, that this link was not in operation at the time of the tests. Of the 16 possible circuit routings between switches, 13 (81 percent) were accessed. Two of the three not accessed involved the DECS link from the Philippines to Okinawa.

Table 2.2.2-3 shows the 16 circuit routes involved with the Pacific IST network and the number of different circuits and calls placed on each during the resting. As can be seen, 24 of the 155 circuits (15 percent) were used.

	Type of Link	No. of VI <u>Circuits</u>	No. of S3 Circuits	<u>Total</u>	No. of Circuits	No. of Calls
BUC-FUC	TROPO + MICROWAVE	2	26	28	-	3
BUC-WAH	DSCS	0	9	9	4	6
FUC-WAH	INTELSAT	0	14	14	6	9
FUC-WAH	TRANS PAC CABLE	0	6	6	1	1
FIN-FUC	TRANS PAC CABLE	0	8	8	-	2
FIN-WAH	TRANS PAC CABLE	0	6	6	2	2
FIN-WAH	INTELSAT	0	6	6	1	1
FIN-WAH	DSCS	0	12	12	4	4
CLA-BUC	TROPO + CABLE + MICR	0	14	14	-	2
CLA-WAH	INTELSAT	0	11	11	1	۱
CLA-WAH	TRANS PAC CABLE	0	4	4	1	2
CLA-FUC	TROPO - CABLE - TROPO	0	6	6	0	0
CLA-WAH	DSCS	0	10	10	3	4
CLA-FIN	SUB CABLE	0	12	12	1	۱
CLA-FUC	DSCS-TROPO	0	3	3	0	0
CLA-BUC	DSCS	<u>o</u>	_6	_6	0	0
	Totals	2	153	155	24	38

Table 2.2.2-3. Pacific Interswitch Circuit Routes

ł

• •

7 F B

2 10 PE 1000 110 110

Information on the number of access lines involved in the Pacific network was not available. However, the approach used to select access lines in the Pacific was to use those presently associated with secure voice manual switchboards (SECORDS). There are 18 such boards in the Pacific, and nine of the 18 were accessed. Loops to the remaining nine were ottempted but problems either in the switchboard or in the verbal communications involved prevented the establishment of the loop-around. Taiwan and Korea were among the locations successfully accessed.

Coverage of the trans-Atlantic calls was as complete as it could be made from Hillingdon, England in that 26 of the 27 circuits from Hillingdon to CONUS were tested. The remaining circuit was down at the time of testing. The 26 circuits tested represents 30 percent of the total trans-Atlantic circuits from CONUS to Europe. The remaining 58 circuits not tested connect Feldberg and Mt. Vergine to the CONUS. At the time of the tests the Atlantic DSCS satellite was inoperative. It is assumed, but not confirmed, that calls normally routed through the DSCS were transmitted through the NATO satellite instead. In addition to the NATO satellite, INTELSAT circuits and four undersea cable circuits are used. In fact, 71 of the 85 trans-Atlantic circuits are routed commercially. The calls from Hillingdon transited all of the undersea cables and satellites used in the trans-Atlantic circuits. Table 2.2.2-4 shows the trans-Atlantic circuits and those accessed during the test. (TAT 1, III, IV and V are submarine cables.)

The trans-Pacific tests were less complete than the trans-Atlantic tests partially due to the larger number of circuits from Jawaii to CONUS. Of the 55 circuits from Hawaii to CONUS, 19 (34 percent) of them were involved in the test. These circuits did transit all three undersea cables involved but did not access any of the DSCS channels. The routings not accessed carry 6 of the 55 circuits. In addition to the Hawaii-CONUS circuits, there are 13 circuits which connect CONUS to Japan and the Philippines. These circuits are all satellite circuits using either DSCS or INTELSAT satellites. The performance on these circuits should not differ from those from Hawaii using the same satellite. Table 2.2.2-5 shows all the trans-Pacific circuits, as well as
				60	101	Vo. of Circuits	Yo. of Calls	Type of Transmission
From	To	Trunk	$\underline{\vee 2}$	53	101	20	20	
HIN	PTN	14VS01	2	0	2	2	2	NATO SAI
HIN	CDB	14VS01	3	0	3	2	3	NATO SAT
HIN	PTN	134801	1	0	1	1	1	NATO SAT
HIN	CDB	134801	i	0	1	۱	1	NATO SAT
HIN	PTN	137502	0	4	4	4	5	INTELSAT
нім	CDB	137502	0	5	5	5	5	INTELSAT
HIN	PTN	137Q01	0	3	3	3	3	TAT III
HIN	CDB	137Q01	0	5	5	5	5	TAT III
HIN	PTN	157Q01	0	1	1	۱	2	TAT V
HIN	CDB	157Q01	0	ı	۱	١	2	TAT V
HIN	PTD	237Q02	0	1	1	1	1	TAT
FFI	PTN	14CS01	6	0	6	0	0	NATO SAT
561	CDB	14CS01	4	0	4	0	0	NATO SAT
	PTN	147503	0	14	14	0	0	INTELSAT
FEL		147503	0	12	12	0	0	INTELSAT
rtL	CDB	14/303	v			١	٦	NATO SAT
FEL	PTN	144801	1	0	1	1	1	
FFI	PTN	140501	۱	0	1	0	0	NATO SAT

Table 2.2.2-4. Trans-Atlantic Circuits

h

	•	Tausk	√2	53	101	No. of Circuits	No. of Calls	Type of Transmission
From	10		 0		2	0	0	NATO SAT
FEL	CDB	140501	2	v	-	^	٥	COM
FEL	CDB	14D	0	1	1	0	Ū	
FFI	PTN	137Q01	0)	1	0	0	
	COR	137001	0	2	2	0	0	TAT III
PEL.	COB		0	۱	1	0	0	TAT V
FEL	PTN	15/001	v	·	T	Ō	0	NATO SAT
FEL	CDB	144801	1	U	1	Ŭ		TAT \/
FEL	CDB	157Q01	0	2	2	0	U	1M1 V
FEL	PTN	147Q02	0	1	١	١	1	VI TAT
MARF	PTN	157Q01	0	1	1	0	0	tat v
)7557C	CDB	157501	0	5	5	0	0	TAT V
MKE	00	107001	n	3	3	0	0	TAT V
MRE	CDB	15/901		<u> </u>		28	32	
			22	03	00	20		

Table 2.2.2-4. Trans-Atlantic Circuits (Continued)

Table 2.2.2-5. Trans-Pacific Circuits

Location	Trunk	<u>V2</u>	<u>53</u>	TOT	Circu	its <u>Cal</u>	Is Type of Transmission
LOD-WAH	187Q03	0	6	6	2	2	Hawaii III Cable
SLO-WAH	187Q03	0	7	7	6	8	Hawaii III Cable
LOD-WAH	187Q01	2	1	3	2	2	Hawaii Cable
LOD-WAH	187Q02	3	1	4	0	0	Hawaii Cable
SLO-WAH	187Q02	0	3	3	2	2	Hawaii Cable
LOD-WAH	18F \$01	0	3	3	0	0	DSCS
SLO-WAH	18F\$01	0	3	3	0	0	DSCS
LOD-WAH	18DV02	2	10	12	5	6	INTELSAT
SLO-WAH	18DV01	0	12	12	2	2	INTELSAT
LOD-WAH	187501	0	2	2	0	0	INTELSAT
LOD-WAH	187504	<u>0</u>	1	<u> </u>	_0	_0	INTELSAT
Subtotal		7	49	56	19	22	
LOD-FUC	177 SO2	0	4	4	0	0	INTELSAT
SLO-FUC	177 SO2	0	2	2	0	0	INTELSAT
LOD-CLK	177501	0	3	3	0	0	INTELSAT
SLO-CLK	177 SO1	0	2	2	0	0	INTELSAT
LOD-CLK	17CS02	0	1	1	0	0	DSCS
LOD-CLK	17C \$02	<u>0</u>	1	<u> </u>	_0_	0	DSCS
Subtotal		0	13	13	0	0	
Totals		7	62	69	19	22	

10.00

those accessed during the tests. The totals are shown for those circuits from Hawaii and those from Japan and the Philippines.

The coverage of CONUS was limited to loop-around calls made to 39 different CONUS AUTOVON switches from Melbourne, Florida. These calls were made from each of two AUTOVON phones which are connected to access lines from the Polk City, Florida switch. The 29 loop-around locations represented all of the loop-arounds that could be located in the CONUS network.

2.2.3 One-Way Versus Looped BER

To obtain the network coverage described in the previous section, it was necessary to rely heavily on loop around calls. In order to obtain a rough correlation between the bit error rates of a one-way call and a loop-around call, most of the circuits used for one way calls were also tested in a loop-around configuration immediately following the measurement of the one-way data. This data was taken on European IST, trans-Atlantic and trans-Pacific colls. In all, 17 European IST calls, 32 trans-Atlantic calls and 17 trans-Pacific calls fell in this category. Tables 2.2.3-1, 2.2.3-2, and 2.2.3-3 show the bit error rates obtained in the one-way and looped calls. Figure 2.2.3 is a plot of the one-way versus the looped error rates on calls where the looped error rate is 10⁻³ or higher. The dotted line represents a boundary which all calls equaled or bettered; thus, it should represent a conservative conversion factor between looped and one-way error rates. As can be seen, a looped error rate of approximately 6 percent corresponds to 1 percent one-way error rate while a looped error rate of 8 percent and 11 percent correspond to a one-way error rate of 2 percent and 5 percent respectively. Although no guarantee exists that the ratio of one-way error rates to looped error rate will always be as high as that shown in the curve of Figure 2.2.3, there is strong evidence to indicate that the ratio will often be higher.

One-Way Call No.	Looped Call No.	One-Way BER	Looped BER
38	39	7.00E-6	9.91E-4
135	136	0	3.75E-6
40	41	5.91E-3	5.37E-2
44	45	1.11E-4	1.89E-2
42	43	5.91E-4	5.52E-4
46	47	2.48E-3	1.32E-2
50	51	8.05E-4	8.07E-4
52	53	8.745-4	8.47E-4
76	77	6.25E-6	0
78	79	5 .25E-5	3.06E-4
129	130	1.01E-3	2.44E-3
80	81	1.08E-3	2.23E-2
133	134	6.96E-3	1.99E-2
153	154	2.96E-4	1.25E-2
151	152	1.07E-2	6.23E-2
131	132	4.51E-2	1.18E-1
155	156	4.56E-4	5.03E-3

Table 2.2.3-1. European IST One-Way Versus Looped BER

60

24

:

:

One-Way Call No.	Looped Call No.	One-Way BER	Two-Way BER
222	223	6.39E-3	2.04E-1
210	211	4.46E-3	1.92E-1
186	187	4.02E-3	2.37E-1
188	189	2.40E-2	1.87E-1
248	249	4.87E-3	2.44E-1
224	225	2.62E-3	2.66E-1
244	245	1.30E-2	2.44E-1
214	215	2.37E-2	1.51E-1
242	243	1.61E-2	1.02E-1
220	221	1.33E-2	1.34E-1
204	205	3.39E-3	8.99E-2
236	237	1.14E-2	9.34E-2
212	213	1.82E-3	3.71E-2
216	217	1.34E-2	1.29E-1
202	203	2.48E-3	7.49E-2
229	230	2.47E-4	3.67E-2
190	191	3.23E-4	3.22E-2
227	228	3.35E-4	4.13E-2
192	193	7.10E-4	3.82E-2
200	201	2.94E-3	4.08E-2

Table 2.2.3-2. Trans-Atlantic One-Way Versus Looped BER

61

One-Way Call No.	Looped Call No.	One-Way BER	Two-Way BER
194	195	5 .22E-3	4.80E-2
232	233	1.06E-2	1.11E-1
240	241	3.41E-2	1.40E-1
246	247	7.75E-3	1.84E-1
208	209	4.05E-3	5.28E-2
231	232	1.65E-3	1.06E-2
234	235	5.92E-3	8.50E-2
206	207	1.12E-3	3.48E-2
238	239	6.54E-4	3.39E-2
198	199	4.24E-4	1.97E-2
216	217	1.34E-2	1.29E-1
196	197	1.73E-3	4.25E-2

A CONTRACTOR OF A CONTRACTOR O

ł

Table 2.2.3-2. Trans-Atlantic One-Way Versus Looped BER (Continued)

T

States of the second second

One-Way Call No.	Looped Call No.	One-Way BER	Looped BER
285	286	1.19E-4	8.76E-3
287	288	2.11E-4	3.02E-2
302	303	1.68E-3	6.29E-2
319	320	8.90E-4	5.74E-2
323	324	2.66E-4	1.05E-2
289	290	1.87E-5	4.47E-3
309	310	6.62E-4	5.39E-3
321	322	9.12E-5	9.38E-3
330	331	5.00E-6	4.97E-3
335	336	3.00E-5	8.81E-3
298	299	1.74E-4	1.45E-2
304	305	5.24E-4	5.04E-3
317	318	5.25E-5	3.60E-3
267	268	6.37E-5	4.38E-3
300	301	2.25E-5	3.78E-3
337 .	338	5.67E-3	2.01E-2
269	270	1.29E-4	1.53E-2

Table 2.2.3-3. Trans-Pacific One-Way Versus Looped BER

يوريون محدثات

7

1

100 100

in the second



NU JAUNTS DIETZEAN LAAMI PANEN 100000110001C 100000145 × 5 CYTEES Figure 2.2.3. One-Way BER

It is interesting to note that in virtually all cases all of the line parameters associated with the loop-around calls were degraded over the same parameters associated with one-way calls. The exception to this was frequency offset which was inevitably zero for loop-arounds but generally non-zero for one-way calls. The modem BER, however, is reasonably insensitive to this parameter as long as it is less than 10 Hz. The largest frequency offset observed on a one-way call was 4 Hz. Phase jitter, which might be expected to be less for loop-around calls, usually increased for the loop-around configuration and was rarely less. Perhaps the explanation for this is that the rate of jitter is fast enough and the delay in the channel long enough to make the jitter in the receive and transmit channels of the multiplexer relatively independent.

2.2.4 Composite Network Considerations

The tests were configured to obtain modem performance on each segment of the AUTOVON network rather than from Pacific network locations to Atlantic network locations. As discussed in Paragraph 2.2.5, loop-around calls were attempted from Italy to Hawaii and from Hawaii to England on voice grade lines with unsatisfactory results so far as the 16 kb operation was concerned. <u>A one-way call</u>, however, in these instances <u>might have been quite satisfactory</u>. On one of the Hawaii-England calls a 9.6 kb/s modem was placed on the same loop and was unable to operate even though the same type of modem was in operational use for European traffic.

The 2.4 kb modems used in the AUTOSEVOCOM system employ regenerators at the gateway locations. In the Pacific network the regenerators are not used at Wahiawa if the call originates in Oahu, but is employed otherwise. The CONUS regenerators also change the crypto key. Since the regenerators demodulate the line signal to the digital level only and remodulate at that level, the overall bit error rate associated with a call involving two segments connected by a regenerator will be very close to the sum of the bit error rates in each segment.

If regenerators were supplied at each gateway for the 16 kb/s modem a call from a Pacific location to an Atlantic location might involve five segments, Pacific, Trans-Pacific, CONUS, Trans-Atlantic and European. Thus the bit error rate involved in the total call would be the sum of the five individual bit error rates. If the looped error rates are converted to one-way error rates for the Pacific and CONUS segments it can be concluded that satisfactory error rates would likely be available on most worldwide calls on this basis. In consideration of this process, care must be taken not to add the error rates associated with 80 percent values for the individual segments if it is wished to obtain the error rate for 80 percent of the overall lines. The probability that each of five independent segments would have lines corresponding to the 20 percent worst-case lines is only 0.032 percent. A legitimate question that was unanswered by the tests is whether satisfactory performance could be obtained without some, or perhaps all, of the regenerators. If key change is required in CONUS, regenerators at the CONUS gateways are a necessity regardless of the operational capability of the modem. Regenerators at the overseas gateways might not be necessary, however, and those in CONUS might not be if the key change were not required. Reduction or elimination of the regenerators could reduce the cost of network deployment of the 16 kb modem.

2.2.5 Special Calls

A number of calls were placed that were not included in the datu presented in Paragraph 2.2.1. The trans-Atlantic calls and trans-Pacific calls usually involved both one-way and looped measurements. Only the one-way data was presented in Paragraph 2.2.1 since the looped data appeared to be superfluous except for correlating one-way versus looped. The looped as well as the one-way data is included in the tables of Appendix C.

In addition, 30 calls have been included in Table C-10 of Appendix C which do not fit appropriately into one of the nine categories of calls reported upon in Paragraph 2.2.1. Call 257 in Table C-10 was a loop from Pearl Harbor to Wahiawa which ran error free at 16 kb. Since it was the only access call in the Pacific it did not appear to warrant a category of its own.

Call 157 was a configuration arranged in Europe where two access lines and an IST were involved. A loop to Vicenza, Italy, was established in Coltano, Italy. An IST connection was established from Coltano to Hillingdon, England via Humosa and Rota in Spain. A second access loop over leased General Post Office (GPO) lines was established to London from Hillingdon. The transmitted signal was then sent from Coltano to Vicenza, and back to Coltano, to Hillingdon, to London, and back to Hillingdon. The 16 kb error rate of this configuration was 4.25×10^{-3} . A loop established from the modem at Hillingdon through this network produced a 16 kb error rate of 3.80×10^{-2} .

Call 333 in Table C-10 was a loop through a short HF hop on Oahu. The modem was located at Pearl Harbor. The transmitted signal was sent via a leased AUTOVON line to Wahiawa and then to Lua Lua Lei which is located about 15 miles over a mountain from Wahiawa. The signal was then sent via an HF link back to Wahiawa and then via AUTOVON back to Pearl Harbor. The 16 kb error rate was 9.87×10^{-3} over this configuration and the 8 kb configuration was error free. Almost no fading was observed on the signals during the tests. Although these results are interesting, caution should be used in extrapolating to long HF links where the effect of the medium might differ.

Calls 183A and 183B listed in the table involved tests from the Royal Signal and Radar Establishment in Christchurch, England to Whitehall and Oakhanger in England over leased 4-wire lines. This demonstration had been set up during the site survey trip. The 16 kb call to Oakhanger ran error free for the 50 second count and that to Whitehall provided a BER of 5.00×10^{-6} . The call to Oakhanger was left on for a 92 minute period with an average 16 kb error rate of 3.85×10^{-5} .

Calls 250, 217, 251, and 241 in Table C-10 were trans-Atlantic loops which indicated that the access line from the CONUS gateway to Ft. Dietrich, Maryland was a major contributor to the error rates in the trans-Atlantic calls. Loop-around calls to Ft. Dietrich from Hillingdon, England had been placed on known trans-Atlantic circuits through the Cedar Brook, N.J. and Pottstown, Pa. CONUS gateway switches. Loop-arounds to Cedar Brook and Pottstown were then placed using the same trans-Atlantic circuits. In the case of the Cedar Brook circuit, an error rate of 12.9 percent was obtained on the loop around to Ft. Dietrich while an error rate of 1.12 percent was achieved when the circuit was looped at Cedar Brook. A number of the line quality parameters were significantly degraded when the loop was extended to Ft. Dietrich. The harmonic distortion was 3.55 percent looped at Ft. Dietrich and 1.15 percent looped at Cedar Brook. In the case of the Puttstown circuit, an error rate of 14.0 percent was obtained looped at Ft. Dietrich while an error rate of 7.69 percent was obtained looped at Pottstown. The harmonic distortion was 7.24 percent looped at Ft. Dietrich and 4.28 percent looped at Pottstown. (This line was selected since it was the worst line to statiown from Hillingdon.)

Calls 129A and 129B in Table C-10 were loop-around calls to Pottstown from Feldburg, Germany. Call 129A was placed on a V2 conditioned circuit through the NATO satellite and provided a looped 16 kb error rate of 7.77 percent. The equalizer weights on this call were extremely active indicating that the equalizer was stressed in this configuration. This occurrence was also noted on trans-Atlantic loops from Hillingdon involving V2 conditioned lines. Call 129B was another loop to Pottstown from Feldberg on an S3 conditioned line. The 16 kb BER was 2.52×10^{-3} for this call.

Call 306 in Table C-10 was a loop-around call from Pearl Harbor to San Luis Obispo, CA which was placed in an attempt to obtain the same type of calibration of the Stockton, CA access lines as obtained for the Ft. Dietrich lines. Unfortunately, the trans-Pacific line obtained in this call was not used in any of the Stockton calls so that a direct comparison could not be made. A looped error rate of 1.02×10^{-3} was obtained, however, which was slightly better than the best looped error rate to Stockton. Calls 307 and 326 provide a slightly better comparison. Call 307 was a loop to the CONUS switch at Mojave, CA through a trans-Pacific circuit to San Luis Obispo on the Hawaii III cable. Call 326 was a loop to Stockton on the same trans-Pacific line. The loop to Mojave provided a 16 kb BER of 1.93×10^{-3} while the loop to Stockton on the same trans-Pacific circuit had a 16 kb BER of 1.32×10^{-2} . Thus it appears likely that the access lines to Stockton also may have adversely affected the BER measurements relative to measurements taken directly at the CONUS gateway switches. The BER values to Stockton, however, were good enough to make this conjecture academic in nature.

Calls 111 and 127 in Table C-10 are European IST loops from Feldberg, Germany which provided identical 16 kb BER values of 2.82 percent. These calls were supposed to have been placed to the Martlesham-Heath loop-around number from Feldberg through the switch at Donnersburg, Germany to provide measurements on the secondary routing from Feldberg to Martlesham-Heath. Patient tracing of the connections, however, indicated that they were not looped at Martlesham-Heath. The second connection was traced as far as Mt. Vergine, Italy but was not observed leaving there which probably implies that the loop-around on both calls was made at Mt. Vergine through Donnersburg for some reason. Since the routing was felt to be somewhat in doubt due to these events these calls were relegated to Table C-10 rather than Table C-1 which contains the normal IST looped calls. The next day a legitimate loop to Martlesham Heath from Feldberg through Donnersburg was established which yielded a 16 kb BER of 7.72×10^{-4} . It is interesting to note that the secondary routing call from Feldberg to Mount Vergine does go through the Donnersburg switch and an error rate of 2.20 percent was obtained on that call.

Call 49 in Table C-10 was from Hillingdon to Coltano which provided a BER of 1.50 x 10⁻⁵ but the circuit was lost before any routing information was obtained.

Calls 11, 15, and 16 were placed from Coltano, Italy to evaluate the effect of establishing icop-around connections at access locations at a two-wire rather than four-wire point. The first of these to Leghorn was made on an automatic dialed basis. (This service is being established for several access locations from Coltano.) Although the 16 kb BER was 7.50×10^{-6} with the two wire loops, the four-wire loops at Leghorn had been error free. Calls 15 and 16 were two-wire loops established by the PBX operator in Ankara, Turkey. The 16 kb BER values for these calls were 2.85×10^{-1} and 3.65×10^{-2} . Four-wire loops to Ankara from Coltano provided BER values of 3.36×10^{-3} and 1.26×10^{-2} . Further, the equalizer weight patterns observed on the two-wire loops indicated considerable reflections on the line which were likely caused by mismatch at the looped connection point. These measurements indicated that even though two-wire loops might be somewhat easier to establish, four-wire loops should be used to obtain representative data.

Calls 334 and 69A were loops established from Pearl Harbor, Hawaii to Hillingdon, England and from Coltano, Italy to Wahiawa, Hawaii respectively. The 16 kb BER values of these calls was 12.5 percent and 18.1 percent, which would be totally unacceptable from a user standpoint. Both calls were placed on voice grade circuits since data grade calls automatically inserted regenerators which could not operate with the 16 kb modem. Whether one way calls and/or the use of data grade lines would have provided acceptable error rates is a matter of conjecture. The calls were placed to obtain some rough feeling for worldwide performance since the overall test plan was not designed for direct measurement of this mode of operation. Had the looped values been better, the question in this direction vould have been answered. However, the values obtained were such that no conclusions can be drawn. It is interesting to note that on the loop to England from Hawaii the 8 kb BER value was 4.11×10^{-4} while an operational 9.6 kb modem was unable to operate over the same loop. The 8 kb BER value on the loop from Italy to Hawaii was 1.34×10^{-2} .

The last seven calls in Table C-10 were calls in which the lines appeared to be degraded by in-band filters of some sort. The most common of these was a notch at 2.6 kHz which indicated the insertion of a single frequency (SF) filter used to handle the off hook signal. In addition, several lines indicated notches at 1600 Hz which apparently come from filters associated with a different signaling aspect. Some thought was given, in the course of preparing this report, as to whether these calls should be counted in the statistics given in Paragraph 2.2.1. Since the number of calls involved is small and the errors were not necessarily catastrophic, the effect on the statistics would not be very dramatic. However, it was reasoned that most, if not all, of these cases were either transient in nature (that is a line so bad that it would be complained about and fixed) or was due to the attempt to operate data signals over the voice grade network when no alignment of that network for this purpose had been done. Specifically the detection levels of the circuitry which inserts the SF filters was likely to be quite satisfactory to prevent their insertion due to normal voice traffic but not satisfactory for a data signal which has different spectral properties. They can be adjusted, as they undoubtedly are, for data grade lines, to also be satisfactory for data signals

but there has been no requirement to do so. If a decision were made that allowed data signals on voice grade lines on an operational basis the readjustments would be required as a matter of course and the problem would disappear. Hence, these calls were not considered representative of the network and were relegated to Table C-10.

For the purposes of completeness, it will be noted that 13 data sheets used during the test program contained some recorded data that is not included in the report. These sheets contained data for calls that involved setups that were discovered to be faulty in some manner such as; abnormal levels due to a mistake in patch locations, use of bad equipment to reach the transmitter or modem location from the switchboard, etc. To assure a fair presentation when the data was reduced, all data sheets containing any data were preserved during the tests and these sheets occupy a number in the chronological listing of the call numbers.

2.3 Line Test Results

Curves are presented in this section showing the percentage of channels providing specified line characteristics with values equal to or less than the ordinate or abscissa of the curve in question. The data is subdivided into the nine categories of calls presented in Paragraph 2.2.1 for the modem performance data. The three curves representing performance on the Pacific, European and CONUS IST loops are presented together. The one-way calls on the European, trans-Atlantic and trans-Pacific calls are also presented together as are the three categories of access line loops (European access loops, European remote access loops and Pacific remote access loops). In Appendix C the measured line characteristics for each call are listed along with the error rate performance. Before presenting the data, several general comments are appropriate. All of the line data was obtained using a model 520 B Halcyon line tester. Details of the test procedure are given in Paragraph 2.4. The phase detector used in the Halcyon to provide measurements of peak-to-peak phase jitter does not respond to very low frequency jitter. In several instances large amounts of very low frequency phase jitter was observed on the tones appearing on the oscilloscope but the Halcyon indicated low phase jitter readings. Since the modem performance is relatively insensitive to low frequency phase jitter, this feature of the Halcyon is not too important. It can, however, account for some difference between values of phase jitter recorded on this test program and those which have been recorded in past programs where this parameter was measured with different equipment.

Differences between the data reported here and that previously gathered might also have occurred when tropo links were involved. In the tests reported herein, the line characteristic values reported were "average values" when a deep fade was not present. When deep fades occured, all of the parameters varied widely. In some channels the variance of the values without deep fades was significant. If past data

values were obtained by reading "peak values" from recorder charts, they might be expected to vary significantly from those obtained on this test.

It should be noted that ordinary line test equipment is not set up to measure the pertinent parameters associated with the fading characteristics when tropo channels are present. Since these characteristics represented one of the two significant error contributors to the 16 kb modem, it would appear prudent to assure that future network models attempt to simulate these effects. No mention of these characteristics was found prior to this test in reports of past measurements.

Oscilloscope photographs of the envelope of a 1 kHz sinewave were made on many of the tropo transmissions and are included in Appendix D. Table 2.3-1 lists the peak-to-peak amplitude variation observed in these pictures as a percent of the peak-to-peak signal. The "period" shown in the table indicates roughly the time between successive fades and does not imply that fading is necessarily periodic. In many cases the period of fade was not clear from the photographs and is indicated with a dash in the table.

A third cause of difference in the line characteristics measured in this test and those measured previously is the difference in routing between test programs. In the present program much of the data is loop-around data, whereas most of the past data is one-way. Even in the case of one-way data, the routings involved in this test do not correspond exactly to those present in past tests. In the program which evaluated the Vodat modem, all of the IST calls were conducted from Mt. Pateras to Hillingdan which involved tropo on all calls.

Finally it is probable that the European network has been improved since the last tests were conducted. Several operational personnel who had been with the network for some time felt that the present quality control programs for assuring line auality have significantly improved the lines.

There were 14 different types of line measurements made, not counting those associated with the amplitude response and group delay of the channels. Figures

Call No.	P-P Amplitude Variation - %	Period of Amplitude
30	6	30 ms
31	6	20 ms
35	28	1.1 sec
37	4	0.45 sec
40	7	1.3 sec
41	9	0,8 sec
41-2	9	-
54	7	-
61	4	0.5 sec
64	6	0.6 sec
66	5	0.5 sec
71	17	2 sec
82	8	40 ms
86-1	7	1.2 sec
86-2	20	>4 sec
92	12	-
107	9	-
111	43	-
126	8	50 ms
127	. 31	-
1298	_	-

Table 2.3-1. Amplitude Variation

Call No.	P-P Amplitude Variation - %	Period of Amplitude
144	20	6 sec
151	11	-
15?	22	-
154	12	_
157	6	-
158	11	-
162	9	_
168	9	_
181	9	2 ms
240	21	Distortion
276	9	0.1 sec
292	3	1.5 sec
297	28	Distortion
313	6	20 ms

Table 2.3-1. Amplitude Variation (Continued)

-9. S. A.

2.3-1, 2.3-2 and 2.3-3 present the percent of channels with line loss equal to ar tess than that shown in the abscissa. The line loss was measured both with the modem signal and with a 1 kHz tone and both types of loss are shown. The reason for including both types of measurement is that the modem performance is concerned principally in the loss associated with the modem signal while the standard techniques for determining this parameter is to use a 1 kHz tone. The two differ significantly for some channels due to variations in the amplitude response of the channel. In this report a positive line loss indicates that the received signal is smaller than the transmitted signal. Since all of the calls were essentially from one technical control facility to another, the nominal line loss should be zero.

Figures 2.3-4, 2.3-5, and 2.3-6 present receive S/N ratio data also measured separately with the data signal and with a 1 kHz tone. An additional difference between these two measurements is that in the case of the data S/N ratio, the quiet line noise was used in the ratio. In the case of the 1 kHz S/N ratio the noise level is obtained by notching the 1 kHz tone at the receive site. In this case harmonic distortion contributes to the degradation of the S/N ratio. This accounts for the notice able difference of the two parameters in the CONUS IST loops. In both cases the nowas measured through a C-message weighted filter provided in the Halcyon.

Figures 2.3-7, 2.3-8, and 2.3-9 present data concerning peak-to-s phase jitter. Some of the reasons that this data indicates less phase jitter for the Ec network than that previously reported have already been given. In addition to this measurement the spectral characteristics of the phase jitter was obtained on many lines and is presented in Appendix D. The original test plan called for making spectral photographs of phase jitter whenever the peak-to-peak value exceeded 15°. However, so few channels had jitter this large that a number of spectral photographs were obtained for many channels with less than 15° jitter when periodic jitter appeared to be present. Table 2.3-2 shows the size of the pense jitter measurements is the fact that most channels



EUGENE DIETZDEN CO.



Figure 2.3-2



الليانية الليانية بمستقديته مصفقة المنيا النظريب

. . A D. North And A. . . .

يتعلمه منتكل يتعملون وألاية وطامحهم أندأ لرأولا والمحالب محالاتها متحديد مناال وم

CUDENE DIET20EN CO. MADE 14 U 8 A

HD. 3404-10 DICT20CH DRAPH PAPER 10 K 10 PCR INCH



Figure 2.3-4

. .

and a state of the state of the



Figure 2.3-5



ź

は、小学校の教育

ي يورد هيا

Figure 2.3-6



Figure 2.3-7



÷.,

Figure 2.3-8



Figure 2.3-9

86

Call No.	Highe	Overall Jitter	
	Approximate Frequency (Hz)	Approximate Magnitude Degree P-P	Reading Degree P-P
18	50	3.8	6
20	100	1.9	4
21	130	3.8	25
22	50	11	15
23	20	7	15
24	50	7	23
27	130	2	8
30	100	2	11
31	100	2	10
37	100	2	7
38	100	4	10
39	100	4	10
46	20	3	12
47	50/100	5	14
51	50	1	14
52	50	1	12
53	20	3	16
55	-	1	13
58	50	۱	13
60	20	2	9

Table 2.3–2. Phase Jitter Spectrum

87

And the second se

Call No.	Highe	Overall Jitter	
	Approximate Frequency (Hz)	Approximate Magnitude Degree P-P	Reading Degree P-P
61	100	4	10
62	120	8	10
66	-	4	10
67	50	7	12
82	50	7	15
88	100	7	14
95	100	4	10
99	100	12	15
102	50	5	ζ.
126	0	5	6
156	100	12	15
162	100	9	12
169	200	7	15
172	-	5	18
182	-	6	16
206	0	11	12
207	0	20	29
226	50	20	16-22
276	-	2	15
313	60	9	9

Table 2.3–2. Phase Jitter Spectrum (Continued)

88

contained relatively small amounts of periodic jitter at line frequencies and their harmonics. Spectrally shaped white noise would represent a better jitter model than sinusoidal jitter at line frequency harmonics. Modeling the jitter with a line frequency square wave would place an unrealistic burden on the modem.

Figures 2.3–10 through 2.3–18 present harmonic distortion information. The curves concerning second and third harmonic distortion present the size of these harmonics in decibels below the size of the signal tones transmitted during the harmonic distortion measurement. A more detailed description of the technique employed in the harmonic distortion measurement is given in Paragraph 2.4. Figures 2.3–16, 2.3–17, and 2.3–18 present the total harmonic distortion as a percent of the transmitted signal. It is interesting to note that on the calls where both one-way and looped data was obtained, the harmonic distortion on looped calls averaged 2.19 times that achieved on on-way calls. On this basis 80 percent of the CONUS IST lines tested would have a total harmonic distortion of 1.54 percent or less. With the exception of the Pacific remote access calls all of the types of overseas calls had 80 percent values in the vicinity of 1.5 percent or less. It is suspected that bad harmonic distortion observed on the Pacific remote access loops was due to the nature of the loop-around rather than the actual circuits. However, this was not substantiated. As previously discussed the high harmonic distortion associated with the trans-Atlantic calls was felt to be primarily due to the CONUS access lines rather than the trans-Atlantic lines.

Figures 2.3-19 through 2.3-30 present data on various hit activity in the channel. Figures 2.3-19, 2.3-20 and 2.3-21 show the distribution of the number of 3 dB amplitude hits in a 5-minute period. Figures 2.3-22, 2.3-23, and 2.3-24 show the distribution of 20° phase hits per 5-minute period. Figures 2.3-25, 2.3-26, and 2.3-27 give impulse noise distribution over a 5-minute period. The threshold settings for the impulse noise measurements were set at 67, 63, and 59 DBRNO. Figures 2.3-28, 2.3-29 and 2.3-30 show the distribution of dropouts. Paragraph 2.4 will describe the technique of measuring these channel hit phenomena.



Figure 2.3-10



12:12:23

ALL NO.

3

all and an an in the

.

Figure 2.3-11


Figure 2.3-12

.....



aliant's M

Figure 2.3-13



0.01777

THE REPORT OF LAND

يها أحمدتني فالتح

Figure 2.3-14



. . .

Figure 2.3-15

95

--



تعبديغان أفار ددوك

Figure 2.3-16



Figure 2.3-17



a the second second

Figure 2.3-18



の一般の一般の主義がないないというです。

山田山町ににいるがたかが、 いいのう

.

* 14-

.....

AND TO DO NO.

THE REPORT OF LEVELS

Figure 2.3-19



1.00

al states a survey like it to the survey of the

Figure 2.3-20



Renea

Figure 2.3-21



ļ

Figure 2.3-22

.

All Assessed



Figure 2.3-23

- all and a star all a

فندقت والمناد حاصان خلفنا الاقتلاقات وتسار



Figure 2.3-24

in in the

ł



「日本」「日本の日本に、「日本」」「日本」「日本」」「日本」」

Figure 2.3-25



Figure 2.3-26



1.1

Figure 2, 3-27



P

Figure 2.3-28



ł

and the second state of the

Figure 2.3-29



Figure 2.3-30

The data on amplitude response and group delay response of the lines was obtained by taking a photograph of the Halcyon display of these characteristics. These photographs are included in the report so that a comparison can be made with standard specification values. Each of the photographs was compared with $\vee 1$, $\vee 2$, S1, and S3 specifications and the tightest specification met was recorded for that call in the tables in Appendix C.

It should be noted that operation on data grade lines conditioned to S3 specifications will not necessarily yield a response meeting S3 specifications since the call may involve several circuits. This is emphasized in loop-around calls, and is also true of standard calls. The S1 specification is a user end-to-end specification for data grade lines and is supposed to take this into account; however, any attempt to specify end-to-end performance must imply a limitation in the number of sequential circuits involved. It is the individual circuits that are actually checked against the specified characteristics.

Tape recordings were made on virtually all calls. The recordings usually consisted of an introduction followed by a recitation of IEEE test sentences listed in Appendix E. The test sentences were normally played from a prerecorded tape but were sometimes read by the person at the transmitter site. The quality of the recordings from the prerecorded test tape was lower than that when the test sentences were read directly into the CVSD. This probably indicated a problem in the recorder - CVSD interface. Requests concerning these tapes should be addressed to RADC/DCLD, Griffiss AFB NY 13441.

2.4 Test Procedures

This section describes the methods used for making connections to the lines, dialing the test connections, tracing the circuit routings, and also covers the equipment setup and measurement procedures.

2.4.1 Connection Procedures

Connections were normally made to the network from either an AUTOVON or secure voice switch. The line access was by means of an extension from a secondary board or a test board. Connections for the testing were performed in several ways depending on the exact type of circuit to be established. For one-way calls the other location was simply dialed in the normal manner. For IST loops the switch loop-around numbers were utilized. For access line loops served by the originating switch, the loops were normally established by requesting a loop-around from Tech Control at the desired location. For remote access line loop⁻, i.e., those served by a foreign switch, the procedure was slightly more complicated. .dere it was necessary to patch around the echo suppressors at the switch serving the access line to be tested. Once this was done the loop at the remote access point was established at Tech Control or a test board in a similar manner to the local access line loops.

In order to establish the routing of the calls, a test tone was placed on the line and personnel at intermediate switches were requested to find the incoming and outgoing circuits with the tone. Normally the identification received was in the form of a Command Communications Service Designator (CCSD) number or equivalent, although in some cases group and channel number information was obtained directly.

2.4.2 Equipment Setup

A block diagram of the test setup is shown in Figure 2.4.2. The transmit line was arranged so that it could be switched to either the modern transmitter, the line tester transmitter port, or a quiet termination. The receive line was connected in parallel to the modern receiver and to the line tester receive port. The modern included a terminating resistor, but the line tester was operated in a bridged mode so that only a single termination was presented to the line.

The modem includes a pseudorandom pattern generator in the transmitter and a second identical pattern generator in the receiver. The receiver sequence generator was automatically synchronized during the modem training process. Subsequently, a bit-by-bit comparison was made between the receive data and the receive sequence generator, with mismatches indicated by error pulses. These bit error pulses were brought out of the modem and applied to the bit error rate counter. The modem also produced two other signals used for analyzing performance. The analog error at the equalizer output was brought out and monitored on a true rms voltmeter. Also, the equalizer weights were converted to analog form and brought out for monitoring on a second true rms voltmeter. It was hoped that the equalizer weight measurement would provide an overall measure of line filtering, but no strong correlation was observed.

The analog line parameters were measured with a Halcyon Universal Test System, Model 520B. This unit provided test of the standard analog parameters in the manner described in the next paragraph. In addition, the unit was modified to bring out the phase jitter signal. This phase jitter signal from the internal phase detector was routed to a low frequency spectrum analyzer to provide data on the spectrum of the jitter components.

For the transmit end of the one-way tests, only the transmit portion of the modem and the line tester were utilized.



i

89597-13

Figure 2.4.2. Modem Line Test Setup

2.4.3 Measurement Procedures

This section describes the methods used for reading and recording the various modem performance and line parameters.

2.4.3.1 Bit Error Rate

The bit error rate was measured using the internal pattern generators in the modems as described above. Normally, error rate at 16 kilobits was measured by recording the count in 10-second periods. Usually five of these 10-second error counts were made in each mode. At 8 kilobits the bit error rate was recorded in a manner that provided an estimate of block throughput. This was done by reading the error count in 1-second counting periods. Normally a total of 100 1-second counts was observed and all nonzero counts were recorded. With this set of measurements, the overall bit error rate as well as the block error rate (for 8000 bit blocks) could be calculated from the same data.

2.4.3.2 Signal-to-Noise Ratio

Several different measures of line signal-to-noise ratio were made. The first was on the modem line signal in which the receive level and the idle noise measurements were recorded and their ratio calculated to provide the signal-to-noise ratio. The noise with tone was measured by transmitting a 1 kHz tone and recording the signal level. The noise level was measured with the tone notched out.

2.4.3.3 Phose Jitter

The phase jitter was measured with the Halcyon by transmitting a 1 kHz tone and phase locking a second 1 kHz signal to the receive signal at the receiver. The phase detector output is filtered to produce the spectral components from 20 Hz to 300 Hz and this value displayed on the Halcyon's digital display. In addition this

phase detector output was brought out to an external connection so that it could be displayed and photographed on the low frequency spectrum analyzer. A calibration of this setup was performed by providing a known amount of phase jitter to the system (using an Axel line simulator).

2.4.3.4 Amplitude Response and Envelope Delay

These measurements are performed in the Halcyon by sweeping appropriate signals across the band and displaying the resultant amplitude or envelope delay measurements on a cathode-ray tube (CRT) display. The CRT display was photographed for record purposes.

2.4.3.5 Nonlinear Distortion

4

Nonlinear distortion is measured in the Halcyon by transmitting two pairs of test tones, one centered at 860 Hz (Frequency A) and the second centered at 1,380 Hz (Frequency B), with a total power equal to the data level. The second order distortion products are measured by observing the power in the two bands of B + A and B - A. The third order distortion products are measured by observing the power at the frequency 2B - A. As a test for the effect of noise on these readings the B tone pair is removed and the power of the A tone pair is increased by 3 dB. An additional set of second and third order harmonic product readings are made and a correction factor is applied to minimize the effect of signal-to-noise ratio on the measured nonlinear distortion.

This nonlinear distortion measurement technique is an industry standard, and is felt to give a more representative measurement than total harmonic distortion of a single tone.

2.4.3.6 Transient Measurements

The Halcyon performs transient measurements by transmitting a 1 kHz tone at the data level. Simultaneous measurement of gain hits, phase hits, impulse noise above three thresholds, and dropouts are performed. Gain and phase "hits" are "rapid" gain or phase changes which last 4 milliseconds or longer. The impulse noise counter is inhibited when a gain or phase hit occurs. A dropout is defined as a reduction of 12 dB or more in level, lasting for longer than 4 milliseconds. All other counters are inhibited when a dropout is detected. The normal thresholds utilized for these transient measurements were ±3 dB for the gain hit threshold, 20° for the phase hit threshold and 59 dBRNO for the "O" impulse threshold. The other two impulse noise thresholds were 4 dB and 8 dB respectively above the reference setting. The transient counters are capable of counting at rates of up to seven events per second. The transient measuurements were counted over a 5-minute period.

2.5 Comparison of Modes

One of the major objectives of the test program was to evaluate several modes of the modem on the actual networks to establish the optimum mode for operational purposes if satisfactory performance was achieved. Paragraph 3.3 discusses some of the process which led to the selection of the four modes that were tested. Paragraph 3.4 describes the four modes. In this section the comparative results obtained from the modes are presented. The modes are designated as 16-110, 16-130, 16-111, and 16-C. The first two modes (16-110 and 16-130) represent hardware of the same complexity as that involved in the original breadboard. The last two modes would require slightly less hardware to implement. and a strain and the second of the second second

Figures 2.5-1 through 2.5-9 present the 16 kb BER performance of the four modes in the nine different categories of calls presented in Paragraph 2.2.1. In all cases, anomolous error counts have been disregarded in calculating the error rate. Mode 16-110 (the normal mode) was used for all of the curves in Paragraph 2.2.1.

With the exception of the European IST loops the BER performance can be seen to be very similar for all four modes. Actually the largest performance difference noted between modes was in the area of sync misses. On some channels where very poor 16 kb error rate existed, mode 16-C could not achieve sync although 16-110 and 16-130 provided reliable sync. As a whole it was felt that 16-110 did provide the best overall performance although all modes were acceptable.



Figure 2.5-1



Figure 2.5-2



Figure 2.5-3



Figure 2.5-4



Figure 2.5-5



Figure 2.5-6



Figure 2.5-7



Figure 2.5-8



Figure 2.5-9
3.0 MODEM MODIFICATIONS

This section describes a set of modern hardware and firmware modifications made prior to the tests. These modifications were designed to package the Breadboard for the rigors of travel and field testing, and to improve performance in certain areas identified by previous tests. ار این میکند. 1934 میلید (میکند) این میکند (۲۹۹۵ میکند) میکند میکند این میکند میکند میکند میکند و میکند میکند میکند میکند.

3.1 Repackaging

Prior to European testing, the modem and modem transmitter were repackaged to permit the equipment to be easily and reliably transported as well as set up and operated with a minimum of effort. The basic modem was encased in a 7 by 19 by 30.5 (H X W X D) inch chassis. The modem processor along with the power supplies for both the modem and processor were encased in a 7 by 19 by 16 inch chassis. The separate transmitter and its power supply was encased in a 7 by 19 by 16 inch chassis. All controls and input/output connections necessary for operational testing were installed on the front panels of the units. Blowers were installed in each of the three units to provide adequate cooling. The repackaging effort resulted in a complete modem (receiver, transmitter, processor) being housed in two chassis. The separate transmitter was encased in one self-contained unit. After repackaging, the units were tested to ensure that the overall performance had not been adversely affected by the change in mechanical configuration.

3.2 Look-Up Table Investigation

In the original study program a technique for combating memoryful nonlinearities was devised which employed a memory which was trained to provide appropriate corrections for each transmitted pattern. A detailed description of this approach is given in the Bibliography Reference 1, and will not be repeated here. Although computer predictions for this technique indicated a noticeable improvement in performance for this approach when nonlinearities were present in the channel, the actual

equipment had produced no gain in performance when the look~up table was employed. It was an objective of this program to investigate this discrepancy and determine whether the look-up table approach could be modified to provide a performance advantage prior to the European testing.

Analysis of the difference between the assumptions present in the computer prediction and the actual hardware operation indicated that the likely problem was that the look-up table in the hardware used actual symbol decisions to provide the address while training, whereas the computer analysis had presumed perfect decisions. Since the bulk of the errors in channels with nonlinearity problems are irreducible errors it can be deduced that the table could not be expected to train properly when operating upon decisions rather than the actual transmitted signal as the basis for the table address. Consequently, the modem was modified to allow look-up table training during the normal training mode and an ideal reference, available in the hardware, was supplied to the processor so that it could be used as a basis for the address.

No perceptible performance improvement was noted in this case even when extended periods of time (30 minutes) were used to train the look-up table. Close examination of the received data (on an oscilloscope) during the training mode indicated that the errors for a fixed pattern had very little bias relative to their variance even when nonlinearity was the only disturbance present on the simulator. Thus, it appeared that the favorable predictions predicted by the computer model were due to a difference in the exact modeling and were not available to the hardware. Hence the look-up table approach was dropped. None of the tests reported in this document employed the look-up table.

3.3 Other Processor Modifications

Several other modifications to the processor were incorporated in the modem between the initial contract and the test results reported in this document.

During the initial study effort eight phase measurements were used in the phase-tracking algorithm. Although the computer prediction indicated that this was the best choice, this prediction was based upon a model of phase jitter that was felt to be questionable. Hence an attempt was made to provide the processor with the capability of switching manually between eight and four phase measurements. Time, however, did not allow completion of this activity prior to completion of the initial contract. This effort was completed prior to the testing reported herein and accounts for two of the modes that were tested as is discussed in Parograph 3.5.

Although the phase tracking algorithm had worked quite adequately in the tests conducted at the end of the initial contract, it was anticipated that the phase jitter present in the European tests would be more severe than that existing on the CONUS lines. Specifically it was anticipated that lines with a large amount of low frequency jitter might be present. In this case the differential nature of the data would make the bit error-rate insensitive to this jitter. However, the initial equalizer training might be affected since the phase tracking loop used during equalization is very slow and would likely not be able to track this jitter. Simulation in the laboratory of large quantities of low frequency jitter indicated that this might be a problem.

Several approaches to using the processor to supply the equalization error signals during training were investigated. None of them solved the problem completely but the best approach located was one which switched modes half way through the eight frames of equalizer training. The training mode for the first four frames was that previously used except that the phase loop external to the processor to track the incoming signal phase was disconnected. At the end of four frames the phase loop was switched to utilize the X-Y reference algorithm in the processor as the basis for the equalizer error signal. The switching between modes was set up to be accomplished manually from a front panel sense switch since the modification required in the processor to automate this activity was too extensive to be done prior to the European tests. This switched mode

was one of the four tested.

Since modes which did not employ the external phase tracking loop could potentially reduce the amount of hardware, a switch was incorporated to allow disabling of this loop. The fourth mode tested was one in which all of the operations were the same as that developed in the previous program except that the external phase loop was disconnected.

3.4 Training Sequence Modifications

The receiver training sequence was modified to increase synchronization reliability. It was observed during line tests that the receiver would occasionally fail to recognize the sync pattern in the eight-frame training sequence. This caused the receiver to prematurely terminate the training sequence, resulting in the inability to pass data. The first sync, however, was detected whenever the receiver recognized the carrier burst at the beginning of the training sequence. Therefore, a means to prevent the synchronization logic from missing intermediate sync patterns was needed.

The present configuration of the synchronization logic contains circuitry which prevents the receiver from prematurely terminating the training sequence. This modification is implemented by the addition of a frame counter to the synchronization logic. The frame counter is initialized by the recognition of the first sync pattern. The frame length timer outputs a carry pulse to the frame counter at the end of each received frame of sync and training. After seven frames have been received, the frame counter releases the end of sync detect circuit. This enables the end of sync detect circuit to sense the absence of sync at the end of the eighth frame. The receiver then goes through the original freeze-weight and data modes. The modified synchronization logic will still permit training mode, the end of sync detect circuit is disabled. When the receiver is switched back to the normal mode, the end of sync detect circuit is reenabled after seven frame times. A modified block-diagram is shown in Figure 3.4.





and the second second

132

ь

1

「「建築を設置する」「建築」」「建築」をなるのであった。「日本なって、地域などのできたので、「東京の学った」を言うな

3.5 Description of Modes

The four modes tested on the AUTOVON network will be briefly described in this section. The basic differences between the modes lies in three areas. These are:

- a. The use of either four or eight samples in the processor phase tracking algorithm during the data operation. This does not affect operation during the normal training operation.
- b. Use of the external phase tracking loop. This applies to both the training and data operations.
- c. Source of the X-Y errors for the equalizer during the training operation selected from the normal subtraction of the estimate from the reference or whether they are obtained from the processor algorithm used during data transmission. The four modes tested are shown in Table 3.5 along with the configuration in these three respects.

Table 3.5. Mode Configurations

i

CLOCE RY

والاحتباطية بالاد

Mode	8 or 4 Samples	External Phase Loop	Source of X-Y Error for Equalizer During Training
16-110	8	Connected	Normal Subtraction
16-130	4	Connected	Normal Subtraction
16-111	8	Disconnected	Normal Subtraction
16 - C	8	Disconnected	Normal Subtraction for First Four Frames

Processor Algorithm Last Four Frames

3

「「「「「「」」」

the ball of the second s

4.0 KEY GENERATOR TESTS

This section describes a series of interface tests with the modem and two types of encryption/decryption key generators, TSEC/KG-13 and TSEC/KG-34. The purpose of these tests was to determine at what point key generator synchronization would become a problem. This is an important consideration since the modem is able to synchronize and operate at high bit error rate conditions, and CVSD equipment such as the HY-11 is able to provide intelligible, albeit noisy, speech at high bit error rates. It should be noted that the use of "self synchronizing" key generators, with the attendant error multiplication, would significantly reduce the percentage of lines providing usable voice quality. 日日の大田二八日のたちと見

4.1 Test Setup

The test setup was as shown in Figure 4.1. The transmit portion of the key generator under test was connected between the HY-11 CVSD transmitter and the modern transmitter data input port. Similarly, the receive port of the key generator was connected between the modern receiver data output port and the HY-11 data input port.

The line simulator signal-to-noise ratio was adjusted to obtain the desired bit error rate from the modem. Then a series of keyer synchronization attempts was made, using the controls on the key generator. Synchronization was verified by monitoring the output of the receive portion of the HY-11. In the absence of synchronization, this output consists of a high level noise. Normally, 20 synchronization attempts were made at each bit error rate.

4.2 Results

The results for the KG-13 are shown in Figure 4.2-1, in the form of curves of sync probability vs bit error rate. The "modes" (4,8,16,32) have to do with the length of synchronization pattern employed by the key generators. The numerically



AND TRUCK STREET, SAME

فالأمشططا

t :

•

2

ł

:

Î

i

Figure 4.1. Key Generator Test Setup

at the start of the start of the start of the start of the



「「「「「「「「「」」」」」

Figure 4.2-1. Sync Probability Versus Bit Error Rate KG-13

larger modes require longer synchronization time, but at 16 kb/s the longest sync time is less than 1 second, and is not significant relative to modem training time. As seen in the figure, all modes but "4" are similar in performance and provide 90 percent sync probability with bit error rates up to 8 or 10 percent. This is a virtually unusable bit error rate for CVSD voice, so the KG-13 would not limit system performance if the "4" mode was avoided. All a second second

The results for the KG-34 are shown in Figure 4.2–2. The performance is similar or slightly better, so the same conclusion would hold.



のでです

Figure 4.2-2. Sync Probability Versus Bit Error Rate KG-34

5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The following conclusions can be drawn from the results of the efforts described in this report:

- a. The design of the 16 kb modern is sufficient to provide for adequate voice quality over the existing AUTOVON network in any of the uses envisioned presented in Section 2.0 of this report.
- b. Digitization of segments of the network are not likely to degrade the voice service supplied.
- c. All four modem modes tested provide good performance. Mode
 16-110 provided slightly better results than the other three.
- d. The only type of line disturbances observed in the testing which caused significant performance disturbances were fades of tropo links (predominantly in Europe) and harmonic distortion (in CONUS).

The following recommendations are made:

AND ADDING AND

- a. Research, development, test, and evaluation units should be procured.
- b. These units should be tested in an operational configuration associated with AUTOSEVOCOM switches to provide service similar to that presently available with the 9.6 kb/s modem.
- c. Further investigation should take place to determine modem algorithms which would improve performance in the presence of fades and harmonic distortion.
- d. The use of D conditioned lines should be considered in cases where access lines have severe harmonic distortion.
- e. Line models for the European network should include the effect of fades.

APPENDIX A

NETWORK DESCRIPTION

A.0 General

A good deal of effort was expended during the initial phases of the program to understand the AUTOVON network as it presently exists as well as its anticipated configuration after the planned conversion to digital traffic. It was felt that an understanding of these facts would allow a better test plan to be created and would result in a better interpretation of the test results. This appendix presents a brief description of the "picture" of the network which was obtained from these efforts. The principal documents used in this effort are listed in the Bibliography References 2-11. Reference 12 was used to verify CCSD numbers in connection with circuits tested.

It should be emphasized that it is not the intent of this appendix to present the reader with a complete description of the AUTOVON network. Rather it is intended to present the aspects of the network that appeared to be significant relative to the 16 kb modem test program and its potential use in the future network.

A number of the documents used to extract the detailed data on the European and Pacific networks were not consistent in all matters. This is undoubtedly due, at least in part, to the dynamic nature of the network. Hence data presented relating to quantities of circuits of different categories should be taken as approximately correct for the time period of the test, and not as an exact indication of the network at the time this report is being read.

This appendix first presents an overall discussion of the world-wide AUTO-VON network, the plans for change, and roles that the 16 kb modem might play in the future network. This is presented in Paragraph A.1. Paragraph A.2 provides detailed data on the European network which was used to determine the network coverage. Paragraph A.3 presents similar data for the Pacific AUTOVON network.

A.1 The World-Wide AUTOVON Network

The present network can be thought of as a composite of four different telephone networks, These are the networks in Europe, Asia, the Caribbean and the Continental U.S. Each of the three overseas networks are connected to the CONUS network through trunks between gateway switches. Within a particular network there are a number of AUTOVON switches (10 in Europe, five in Asia, one in the Caribbean and 70 in the CONUS). A connection between these switches will be referred to in this document as an IST. These switches serve a large number of subscribers who are connected to the AUTOVON switches by access lines. Many of the AUTOVON subscriber lines go to a secondary switch (PBX) located at a particular military installation. Thus, individual telephone subscribers at a base are tied into the PBX and can dial an AUTOVON switch through the PBX. In addition to the PBX access lines there are a number of access lines which go directly to a sub-criber. These lines generally share the transmission facilities that are used to provide PBX access lines to the location of the subscriber, but these access lines are not switched by the PBX. The access lines presently used for AUTOSEVOCOM are of this nature.

All of the IST and access lines are four wire circuits. It appears that most of the subscriber lines off PBX switches are two wire connections since most PBX switches are two wire switches. Thus, the conversion between four and two wire circuits normally takes place on the AUTOVON side of the PBX switch.

The circuits are conditioned as voice grade (V1 and V2) or data grade (S3) circuits. The IST's contain circuits of both categories which are selected by the switch based upon a dialed prefix to the number. A data grade prefix will cause the switch to select a data grade circuit or provide a busy signal. A voice grade prefix (no prefix) will cause the switch to first search the voice grade circuits and if the voice grade

circuits are busy, the switch may select a data grade line. In Europe all of the AUTO-VON access lines are data grade and most, if not all of the PBX access lines are voice grade.

At present the 2.4 kb AUTOSEVOCOM signals are passed through regenerators at each gateway switch when the signals are to be sent from one of the four networks to another of the four networks. The regenerators convert the analog signal to a bit stream which is then used to produce a new analog signal. Consequentially, final bit error rate is the sum of the bit error rates obtained in each of the segments. This provides less overall degradation than that which would occur if the signal were not regenerated. In addition the crypto key is changed at the CONUS gateway locations which would necessitate the regeneration even if the signal degradation would not. The exact configuration of the 9.6 kb AUTOSEVOCOM signals was not determined with certainty. At present there are relatively few 9.6 kb modems in use.

The present network is almost exclusively an analog network. In Europe the only digital links are those that were installed in the "FKV" project which provide digitized trunks between Hiedelburg, Vaihingen, Swetzengen, Koeningstuhl, and Stuttgart. No IST circuits transit these trunks at present; and since none of these locations are AUTOVON switches, no access lines use exclusively digital trunks. The conversion of the European network planned in the DEB Phase I project will tie the FKV trunks into trunks coming from Coltano, an AUTOVON switch, and hence will result in a number of IST's which will transit the digital segment. However, since a second switch is not involved, all IST circuits will still transit portions of analog trunks. Later phases of DEB will extend the digital network to England and result in a large number of IST circuits and access lines which transit the digital trunks. The present projections for the time frame of DEB Phase I would provide completion in the next few years. The succeeding phases of DEB will be implemented in the 1980's.

It should be noted that the plans, of necessity, involve digitization of the transmission facilities first, followed by installation of digital switches. No end-to-end digital service can be provided until digital switches are installed. Even then end-to-

シアクロ

end digital service will be available only when all switches and transmission links between the subscribers involved are digitized. This also needs to include all routings between these subscribers since means of obtaining alternate routing must be preserved. It would appear that the time frame associated with providing this type of service throughout the network is quite long although some subscribers may have this service in the reasonably near future.

The plans associated with AUTOSEVOCOM 11 are consistent with interfacing the digital network with secure digital signals. Again, however, the subscriber locations with this service available will be limited to those which can be connected by completely digital AUTOVON service.

Unquestionably, the conversion of a vast operational network such as the AUTOVON network in a manner that does not disrupt service during the conversion will be a complex and lengthy process. Therefore, interim measures aimed at either upgrading the secure voice quality during the conversion or easing the task of conversion should be considered as potential roles of a 16 kb/s modem. Permanent roles in cases where conversion is not possible, or where the cost of digitization is too great, should also be considered.

Three general categories of usage appear consistent with the existing network and the plans for conversion. These are:

> a. Upgrading the voice quality compared to that presently available from the existing 2.4 kb/s vocoders and the 9.6 kb/s CVSD units in present use in the AUTOSEVOCOM network. This implies that the modem signal is treated as analog by all of the switches in the network whether or not specific trunks may have been digitized.

- b. Interfacing subscriber locations which do not have digital service with the digital network. This implies that the modem signal is treated as an analog signal only on the access lines connecting the subscriber to the digital switch, and at that point is converted to a digital signal for transmission over the digital network. This presupposes the existence of digital switches as well as digital trunks.
- c. Handling 16 kb/s digital traffic over interswitch trunks which either cannot be digitized or which will not be digitized in the earlier phases of the digital conversion. Specific examples of this are undersea cables and other leased Telpak service. However, it would appear that on an interim basis, interswitch trunks requiring tropo hops and commercial satellite links also fall in this category.

A.2 The European Network

The 10 AUTOVON switches in the European network are connected by 22 link segments shown in Figure A-1. All of the interswitch traffic transits these links on circuits that may be patched at one of the locations shown. The circles in Figure A-1 indicate switch locations and the squares indicate nonswitch locations where at least one of the interswitch circuits is baseband patched. The segments are generally made up of several transmission links. The link designators are shown on Figure A-1. Segments involving only microwave LOS links are shown as solid and those involving tropo, diffraction or leased circuits are shown as dotted. Ten of the 22 segments require links that are not microwave LOS links. If these segments were taken out of the network, some switches could not be accessed and the flexibility of routing to the switches that can be accessed would be greatly impaired. Consideration of the geography associated with the tropo, diffraction and leased segments leads one to the conclusion that they cannot be reasonably replaced with LOS links. Hence the digitization of the



Figure A-1. European IST Network.

network will require some method of handling digital traffic over these links as well as over the LOS links, most of which are planned to be digitized in the DEB program. In all there are 40 microwave LOS links, 11 tropo links, four leased Telpak links and three diffraction links which handle interswitch traffic.

÷...

The network handling access line traffic is much more complex than that associated with the interswitch traffic. Figures A-2 through A-11 show the networks connecting each of the 10 switches with their subscriber locations. As before, circles indicate switches and squares indicate either subscriber locations or locations where baseband patches are present. Each of the subscriber locations has an indication of the number and type of subscriber lines coming from that location to the AUTOVON switch in question. The symbol, PX, indicates a PBX line, 4 W a four-wire line not going through a PBX, 4 WA a four-wire secure voice line, and PXA and PXX a line to a secure voice switch. As before the links transited in each segment are shown. The heavy lines, both solid and dotted, indicate IST links which appeared on Figure A-1. Solid lines indicate segments connected by either LOS links or government owned land lines. Dotted segments involve some other form of link. In addition dotted lines go to locations where interface with the public telephone circuits are used to supply subscriber service.

Table A-1 lists the total number of different subscriber locations for each switch and a breakdown as to how they are connected to the switch. The numbers under M indicate the numbers that involve only microwave LOS links. Under T are the numbers involving one or more tropo links. Under D are the number of locations requiring a diffraction link but no tropo hops. Under L are the number of subscriber locations which access the switch through leased Telpak service. The H column shows the number of subscribers involving a VHF or UHF LOS link. The number under PTT shows the number of subscribers using the public telephone services. As can be seen, 221 different routings are involved. Of those, 91 are connected by either LOS or government land line which should be relatively easy to digitize. Sixty-three involve tropo or diffraction links, and 67 involve commercial leased lines of some sort.



į

.

Figure A-2. Access Network for MAM



89597-7

Figure A-3. Access Network for HIN



.

i

ALL AN UNITED DESIGN

The second second second

Figure A-4. Access Network for Schoenfeld

2



the set of the set of

LAKE BEA

a second re-

Ì

Ţ

- Inderige I



ц С

ľ

Figure A-6. Access Network for Donnersburg



ŝ

東京市は大学に見て

Figure A-7. Access Network for Langerkopf





Beltio

Figure A-8. Access Network for Coltano



89597-5

Figure A-9. Access Network for Mt. Vergine

155

watth new and the same at any be the



÷.,

i na ann a na gcineire. Is ann anns an

and the second secon

All and a second second

Figure A-10. Access Network for Humosa



Figure A-11. Access Network for Mt. Pateras

Б,

	м	Т	D	L	R	н	PTT	Total No.	
CLO	2	1	0	0	1	0	0	4	
DON	16	8	۱	0	4	0	9	38	
FEL	17	6	1	0	0	0	9	33	
LKF	16	5	2	0	3	0	7	33	
SCH	4	0	0	0	١	0	7	12	
HIN	9	4	0	2	0	2	12	29	
мам	9	5	0	0	0	4	15	29	
ним	۱	7	0	1	0	0	5	14	
PAT	3	7	0	0	0	0	0	10	
MRE	_1	14	2	0	0	0	3	13	
Totals	76	57	6	3	9	6	67	221	

Table A-1. Summary of Access Line Routings

Types of Routing

•

....

فسرحو فالعادة مسأميا أتكلما فكمحمد هدف كالملا

158

Table A-2 shows a breakdown of the types of service and the types of links connecting the individual circuits. In this table the circuits involving LOS and government landlines (M, H, and R) have been combined as have those requiring tropo, diffraction or Telpak service (T, D and L). The first column indicates the number of subscriber locations with one or more circuits of the variety shown. The second column lists the total number of circuits involved. Thus there are 62 PBX's served which are connected by 600 circuits to the AUTOVON switches. There are 91 locations that connect 226 four wire circuits which are not switched by a PBX. Many of the 91 locations are common with those that have PBX service or other types of service. The number of routes is greater than the number of locations since some locations are connected to a switch by more than one route or are connected to more than one AUTOVON switch. There are 122 different subscriber locations connecting 928 circuits to AUTOVON switches.

There are a total of 77 different microwave LOS links, 22 different tropo links, four diffraction links, five government land line links, three Telpak links and two VHF or VHF-LOS links involved in the access network exclusive of links serving the IST network.

A.3 The Pacific Network

Figure A-12 shows the Pacific IST network connections. As can be seen most of the segments are connected by either DSCS satellites, Intelsat satellite service or undersea cables. The exceptions are two segments from the Philippines to Okinawa and from Okinawa to Jupan. These links involve combinations of tropo, microwave, diffraction and undersea cable links.

Data on the access lines in the Pacific was not available in sufficient detail to make the type of analysis presented for the European network. The access lines tested were to secure voice manual switchboards (SECORDS) in the Pacific area. There are 18 different such switchboards in the Pacific.

	No. of Locations	No. of Circuits	<u>M + R + H</u>	<u>T + D + L</u>	PTT	No. of Routes
PX	62	600	42	24	8	74
4 WA	56	60	21	20	18	59
PXA	26	42	18	11	5	34
4 W	91	226	_57		_39	125
Total	s 122	928	91	63	67	221
			41%	29%	30%	

Table A-2. Summary of Access Line Circuits

Types of Routing

. . .

â.

• • •

14 C 194 C

The state of the state of the state of the



يه جده

· · · · ·

ł

į

ことです ひとちいう この時間との前間であたのとうないとなるのであるのであるという

. .

Z

Figure A-12. Pacific IST Network

and the state

the second second

APPENDIX B

and a subscription of the second s

٠.

TEST SCHEDULE

Date		Location Receiver/Transmitter	Transmitter
	_	Travel	Travel
November	1		Travel
	2	Travel	Coltano, Italy
	3	Coltano, Italy	Coltano, Italy
	4		Trovel
	5		Willington England
	6		
	7		
	8		
	9		
	10		
	11	ŧ	
	12	Travel	
	13	Feldberg, Germany	
	14		
	15		
	16		
	17		
	18		
	19		
	20		•
	21	↓ ↓	
	22	Travel	Travel
	23	Hillingon, England	Coltano, Italy

1.1.1.1.1

APPENDIX B

TEST SCHEDULE (Continued)

		Location	- •		
Date		Receiver/Transmitter	Transmitter		
November	24	Hillingdon, England	Coltano, Italy		
	25				
	26				
	27				
	28				
	29	Christchurch, England	Ft. Detriech, MD		
	30	Hillingdon, England			
December	1				
	2		*		
	3	•	Travel		
	4	Travel			
	9	Travel	Travel		
	10	Pearl Harbor, Hawaii	Stockton, CA		
	11				
	12				
	13				
	14				
	15				
	16				
	17				
	18				
	19				
	20	ł	V		
	21	Travel	Travel		

163

1.0.

4.15

10.00
APPENDIX C

TABLES OF DATA

Since the interpretation of data collected in a test program is always influenced by the use for which the interpretation is intended, it was felt necessary to include all of the raw data that was gathered during the tests. These are presented in this section in ten tables. Since the quantity of information gathered on each test was quite large, it was found necessary to divide the horizontal column and present them on two sheets. The first sheet contains the information associated with modem performance; and the second sheet contains all of the line test data and other pertinent information. When the number of entries in a table is too large to fit on one page, all of the pages associated with the first sheets (Sheet 1) of the table are first given, followed by all of the pages associated with the second sheets (Sheet 2) of the table. The second sheet entries are indexed by title so that the two sheets can be easily correlated.

Before presenting the tables the following glossary is given which identifies the meaning of the data in the columns. The glossary for Table C-1 is given first, followed by a glossary of the columns in subsequent tables having headings which differ from those in Table C-1.

GLOSSARY FOR TABLE C-1

- 1, Table No. Numbers indicating table and location within the table.
- Call No. ~ Numbers of the calls and data sheets in chronological order. The photographs in Appendix D are keyed to call numbers. A table converting call numbers to table numbers is given in Appendix D.
- 3. Locations The two locations between which the call was placed. In the case of looped calls the modem location is given first and the location of the loop is

giver, second. In the case of one-way calls the transmitter location is given first, followed by the modem location.

- 4. Date The month and day of the call. The year of all calls was 1976 except for those conducted in January of 1977.
- 5. Time The time of day the call was established.
- 6. BER (A) 16-110 The 16 kb error rate (including anomalous readings**) for the modem in the standard mode (110).
- 7. BER 8-110 The 8 kb error rate (including anomalous readings**) for the modem in the standard mode (110).
- 8. BTP Block throughput. The percent of 1-second (8000 bit) intervals which were error free.
- 9. M The number of microwave LOS links transited by the call.*
- 10. T The number of tropo links transited by the call.*
- 11. D ~ The number of diffraction links transited by the call.*
- 12. L The number of commercial Telpak land links transited by the call.*
- 13. LC The number of commercial undersea cable links transmitted by the call.*
- 14. DIST The total distance traveled by the signal in statute miles.*
- 15. BER (B) 16-110 The 16 kb error rate (excluding anomalous readings**) for the modem in the standard mode (110).

^{*}In the case of loop around calls each link has been transmitted twice. This fact has been included in the numbers of links and distance.

^{**}A discussion of the meaning of anomalous readings is presented on Page 11.

- 16. BER 16-130 The 16 kb error rate in mode (130).
- 17. BER 16-111 The 16 kb error rate in mode (111).
- 18. BER 16-C The 16 kb error rate in mode (C).
- 19. Sync tries-hits The total number of sync tries in a call in the normal sync mode followed by the number of successful synchronizations and equalization processes.
- 20. S/N The equalizer signal-to-noise ratio in dB. This is the ratio of the equalizer error signal at the beginning of the training sequence (weights zeroes) to the equalizer error signal after training.
- 21. Table No. Repeat of Column 1 to help index results.
- 22. Table No. Same as Columns 1 and 21
- 23. Call No. Same as Column 2.
- 24. Location (abbreviation) An abbreviated version of the call locations given in Column 3.
- 25. Line Loss (Data) The ratio in dB of the transmit signal to the receive signal when data is transmitted.
- 26. Line Loss (1 kHz) The ratio in dB of the transmit signal to the receive signal when a 1 kHz tone is transmitted.
- 27. S/N (Data) The ratio in dB of the received line signal when data is transmitted to the received noise when a quiet line exists. Both signals are passed through a C-message weighted filter.
- 28. S/N (1 kHz) The ratio in dB of the received signal when 1 kHz is transmitted to the received line signal when 1 kHz is notched out at the receiver. A C-message weighted filter is used.

- 29. PJ^O Peak-to-peak phase jitter in degrees.
- 30. HD 2nd Second harmonic distortions in dB below the transmitted signal level.
- 31. HD 3rd Third harmonic distortion in dB below the transmitted signal level.
- 32. HD Percent Total harmonic distortion in percent of the transmitted signal level. (The square root of the sum of the squares of the second and third harmonic distortion values.)
- 33. GH +3 Number of 3 dB gain hits in 5 minutes.
- 34. PH 20 Number of 20 phase hits in 5 minutes.
- 35. 59 Number of impulses exceeding 59 dBRNO in 5 minutes.
- 36. 63 Number of impulses exceeding 63 dBRNO in 5 minutes.
- 37. 67 Number of impulses exceeding 67 dBRNO in 5 minutes.
- 38. DO Number of dropouts in 5 minutes.
- 39. Types of pictures This specifies the type of pictures included in Appendix D for this call. The letter A indicates an amplitude-delay response picture is included. The letter B indicates a phase jitter picture. The letter C indicates an envelope picture, and D indicates a picture of the equalizer weights. Combination of letters indicate combinations of pictures are present.
- 40. Location of Recording This provides the tape number and location on the tape of the recording made on this call.*
- 41. Type of Recording This indicates the type of recording that was made. The first letter indicates:
 - A A 16 kb recording of test sentence from an IEEE tape

B - A 16 kb recording of test sentences read by operator

^{*}These tapes have been delivered to RADC as a part of the contract. Requests concerning these tapes should be addressed to RADC/DCLD.

- C No test sentences but some brief recording
- D An 8 kb recording of test sentences from an IEEE tape
- E An 8 kb recording of test sentence read by operator

The number following the letter indicates which set of test sentences was played or read. Appendix E contains the test sentence sets and their numbers.

42. Routing - This gives the last four digits of the CCSD designators of circuits involved in the routing. The first four digits of the CCSD designators have been omitted since they are the same for AUTOVON circuits in a given area. In a few instances CCSD designators were not identified, but group and channel numbers were included in their place.

Following each CCSD number is an indication as to whether the circuit is listed as V1, V2, or S3 conditioned.

- 43. Line Characteristics This column indicates the highest line condition that the amplitude and delay characteristics of the composite circuits of the call meet, based on the picture of Appendix D.
- 44. Comments These are comment numbers which are keyed to the table of comments in Table C-11 following the data tables.
- 45. Table No. Same as Columns 1, 21 and 22.

168

Table C-2

- 13 R The number of government land-line links transited by the call
- 14 DIG The number of digital links transited by the call

Table C-5

- 9 NATO 1 The number of satellite links through the NATO satellite with terminals located at Norfolk, Virginia and Oakhanger, England.
- 10 NATO 2 The number of satellite links through the NATO satellite with terminals located at Lakehurst, New Jersey and Donnersburg, Germany.
- 11 INTELSAT The number of satellite links through an INTELSAT satellite with terminals located at Andover, Maine and Goonhillydown, England.
- 12 TAT-1 The number of undersea cable links through the TAT-1 cable with terminals located at Sydney Mines, Nova Scotia and Oban, Scotland.
- 13 TAT-III The number of undersea cable links through the TAT-III cable with terminals located at Tuckerton, New Jersey and Widemouth, England,
- 14 TAT-IV ~ The number of undersea cable links through the TAT-IV cable with terminals located at Tuckerton, New Jersey and St. Hilairede Riez, France.
- 15 TAT-V The number of undersea cable links through the TAT-V cable with terminals located at Greenhill, Rhode Island and Conil, Spain.

Table C-6

- 9 DSCS The number of satellite links through a DSCS satellite with terminals located at Camp Roberts, California and Wahiawa, Hawaii.
- 10 INTELSAT I The number of satellite links through an INTELSAT satellite with terminals located at San Luis Obispo, California and Wahiawa, Hawaii.

Table C-6 (Continued)

- 11 INTELSAT II The number of satellite links through an INTELSAT satellite with terminals located at Lodi, California and Wahiawa, Hawaii.
- 12 HAWAII I The number of undersea cable links through the HAWAII I cable with terminals located at San Luis Obispo, California and Makaha, Hawaii.
- 13 HAWAII II The number of undersea cable links through the HAWAII II cable with terminals located at Pt. Arena, California and Hanaumby, Hawaii.
- 14 HAWAII III The number of undersea cable links through the HAWAII III cable with terminals located at San Luis Obispo, California and Makaha, Hawaii.

Table C-7

- 9 COMSAT The number of satellite links through an INTELSAT satellite transited by call.
- 10 DSCS The number of satellite links through a DSCS satellite transited by call
- 11 Cable The number of undersea cable links transited by call.
- 12 Tropo The number of tropo links transited by call.

Toble C-10

9 Type of Call - The special characteristic of the call.

Table C-1. European IST Loops (Sheet 1)

E

•

•

and for allowing an and the set

 =1do	, 110	L ecation	Date	ا تسو	011-91 9EK (V)	8110 816	918	⊢ Σ	۲ ۵	2	1210	(8) 936 011-51	19-130 BEK	111-91 898	19-C 8E6	siiH-seint	N/S	, aldol
	2				- BR	MARY ROLD	lings											
1-1	9	Coltano, Italy - Hillinodon, Eng.	11/4	1454	3.086-2	6.12E-5	33	32 8	2	ç	3576	3.08E-2	3.25[-2	3.15E-2	2.79E-2	5-5	81	7
2	2 2	Colmmo Indo - Hillington, Eng.	6/11	2273	2.58E-3	3.13E-4	8	32 8	2	0	3576	2.58E-3	4.05E-3	2.85E-3	3.52E	4	8	7
	3	Coltana Italy - Hillington, Eng.	6/11	2336	8.49E-3	4.77E-4	67	32 8	2	•	3576	8.495-3	8.99E-3	6.84E-3	9.00£-3	4	20	ę
2 1	3	Caltere, Italy - Hillington, Eng.	8/11	1615	5.37E-2	2.136-3	2	28	• 0	Ċ	4238	5.37E-2	6.19E-2	8.57E-2	7.416-2	1	8	4
	5	Coltaneo Italy - Hillingdon, Eng.	6/11	1107	1.32E-2	1.006-5	6	32 8	2	0	3576	1.32E-2	7.50E-3	1.155-2	8.20E-3	7	8	ŝ
<u>1</u>	2	Colterno Italy - Feldberg, Germa	11/14	1705	3.405-4	0	8	20	0	0	1080	3.405-4	6.24E-4	٠	•	3-3	ม	Ŷ
	: .	Coltres Italy - Humora, Soain	11/3	1545	1.856-2	4.506-5	9 5	28	0	0	2374	1.85E-2	8.69E-3	2.11E-2	1.59E-2	2-1	5	-
	7 F	Coltron thely - Hammer Socia	11/8	0815	2.55E-3	7.87E-5	16	28	0	•	2374	2.55E-3	1.886-3	3.92E-3	1.906-3	4	32	œ
• • 	8 ' J	Column Indu - Human Socia	6/11	2157	1.62E-3	8.87£-5	67	2 8	0	0	2374	1.62E-3	1.67E-3	1.66E-3	4.546-4	1	2	6 1
	5	Coltered Holy - Human Socia	6/11	2315	1.46E-4	0	8	28	0	0	2374	1.465-4	3.676-4	4.61E-4	2.76E-4	4	ĸ	-10
	; •	Colored help - Mt Poterre General	11/4	0320	1.916-4	2.87E-5	8	26	0	•	1612	1.91E-4	1.386-1	1.386-1	3. 14E-4	4	22	=
	• ;	Colored Holy - Mt. Press, Conc.	11/5	1620	1.246-3	0	8	2	0	0	1612	1.24E-3	1.526-3	2.71E-3	8.06E-4	4-4	54	-12
	• •	Colored, Noiy - Mi. Colored, Conce	6/11	2250	4.02E-4	0	8	26	0	0	1612	4.026-4	8.455-4	1.006-2	7.68E-4	1	2	-13
72	r 9	Collecto Italy - Mt. Polece, Center Collecto Italy - Mt. Poleces, Genera	6/11	2357	3.58E-4	5.002-6	8	2 6	0	0	1612	3,58E-4	3.385-4	2.00E-4	1.146-4	1	23	1
	ñ (Contanto, Italy - Mil. Foreital, Canada	01/11	1507	1.02F-	6.37E-5	ጽ	2 6	0	•	1612	1.02E-4	2.74E-4	2.796-4	2.71E-4	4	25	-15
<u>-</u>	70	Colitano, Italy - Mr. Foreita, Greece Colitano Italy - Mr. Viccino Italy		5001	3.316-4	1.506-5	8	0	0	0	580	3.31E-4	6.25E-5	ı	•	1	28	- 16
<u>-</u>	• •	Colombo, Indiy - Mil. Vangine, Haiy Colombo - India - Colombo - Colombo - Colombo	1/1	1001	1.606-4	0	8	4	4	0	1252	1.605-4	1.406-4	8.75E-5	6.62E-5	1	8	-12
	` •	Colleron Indy - Anertledon Heath, Ene.	e ii	1216	1.33E-3	5.25E-5	00 1	¢ ¢	4	0	1844	1.336-3	1.396-3	1.836-3	1.14E-3	7	24	1-18
01-1 01-1		Coltano. Italy - Domersburg. Germ.	11/4	1556	6.006-5	1.00E-5	8	0	4	0	626	6.006-5	1.876-5	1.601-5	7.50E-5	4	\$	61-:
8	! 2	Colored India Incortant	11/4	1723	3.40E-4	0	8	18 0	0	0	1001	3.405-4	6.24E-4	·	•	1	52	1-20
	2 9	E-Idente Guna - Hillington Fant	21/11	883	1.756-5	2.00E-5	8	0 %	0	•	842	1.75E-5	7.506-6	ç	1.256-5	1	82	1-21
<u>-</u> -	6 6	Etterne Come - Hillington Fro	11/15	1518	0	0	8	58 58	0	•	842	0	0	•	0	1	8	2-1-2
<u>7</u>	: ;		01/11	1350	3 756-6	c	8	26 0	0	0	84 2	3.755-6	0	0	0	1	28	1-23
6 7 -1	9	Feldberg, German Tillingson, Crig.			2 70. C	a 876_5	8	28	c	0	1682	2.45E-3	1.995-3	3.16E-3	1.896-3	H	12	1-24
1-24	8	Falcherg, Germ Cathorno, Italy	~~~~	110	2-315-5		: 8	2			800	3.31E-2	3.46-2	3.14E-2	3.736-2	1	61	1-25
1-25	8	Feldberg, Germ- Humoso, Spain		000	2-310-0		2 8					1 146-2	2 426-2	1 246-2	1,126-2	1	2	8-1
1-26	ጽ	Feldberg, Germ- Mt. Pateras, Greece	11/11	0725	1.16E-2	1.206-4	26	202	5	2 -		1.105-2	7_]76'7	7_763.1	1,165-6	ľ	:	1

4

Table C-1. European 151 Loops (Sheet 1 Continued)

•••

Shine Street av

فأنتاز فالمنتقد مناد لمرادعات عانات الاحمار المسما مسأ الانتسان فعد وتباس تكراد فانتقض فالأراد فللمول وترعلهم

A REALIZED

The second second

									1							
¶ ¶alde1	Coll ¢	Location	Date	Jime	(A) 838 011-51	8-110 BEK	918	ר רכ צ	45:0	011~91 (8) 338	061-91 Ber	111~91 898	כ-91 958	Sync Tries-Hits	N/S	
					PRI	WARY ROU	TINGS	(CONTINUED)								l
1-2.7	6	Feldberg, Germ Mr. Vergine, Italy	21-11	1027	7.356-2	5.11E-4	94	20 4 0 0 0	2202	7.35E-2	5.37 E-2	1.986-2	6.20E-3	4-4	22	-27
1-28	102	Feldherg, Germ Schoenfeld, Germ.	71/11	1305	0	0	1 00	4 0 0 0 0	192	0	0	сı	0	44	28 1	-28
1-29	ន	Feldberg, Germ- Martlesham Heath, Eng.	11-17	1324	1.376-4	4.50E-3	88	24200	688	1.375-4	5.45E-4	1.87E-4	5.25E-5	4	24 1	-25
1-30	ICI	Feldberg, Gerin - Donnersburg, Germ.	21.11	1244	0	0	ğ	4000	88	0	0	3.75E-6	0	4-4	30	-30
1-31	8	Feldberg, Germ- Langerkopf, Germ.	21-11	1130	0	0	901 100	20000	140	0	0	0	0	5-4	29 I	-31
1-32	152	Hillingdon, tag. Coltano, Italy	11. 24	n950	6.23E-2	9.916-4	8	32 8 2 2 0	3576	6.23E-2	7.896-2	2.10E-1	6.01E-2	4	151	-32
1-33	7	Hillingdon, Eng Coltono, Italy	11 '24	1135	1.256-2	5.64E-4	8	28062	4238	1.25E-2	1.54E-2	1.105-2	1.19E-2	4	20	នុ
4-1-	160	Millinydon, Eng Feldherg, Germ.	11/25	0945	0	0	9	260090	842	0	0	6.25E-6	ç	4	27 1	Å
1-35	lel	Hillingdon, Eng Humosa, Spain	11./25	1002	0	0	<u>100</u>	00042	1864	0	9.12E-5	7.605-6	0	7	27 1	-35
8 	181	Hillingdon, Eng.– Hu mosa , Spain	11 26	1540	3.366-4	7.506-6	8	00062	3264	3.56E-4	1.89E-3	4.555-4	3.605-4	4	20 1	8
?́2 3∕1;	<u>%</u>	Hillingdon, Eng Mr. Poteras, Greece	11/25	1508	2.67E-3	,	•	2 14 0 4 2	4690	2.67E-3	ı	ı	,	2	22	-37
8E-1 4	167	Hillingdon, Eng Mt. Poteras, Greece	11/25	0151	2.44E-3	1.00E-5	88	214 0 4 2	4690	2.44E-3	3.97E-3	1.45E-3	1.66E-3	4-4	22	-38
£:-1	;69	Hillingdon, Ena Mr. Vergine, Italy	11 25	1555	7.836-3	3.25E-5	8	328200	3094	7.836-3	8.776-3	1.11E-2	8.50E-3	4	18	-39
);;	164	Hillingdon. Eng- Schoenfeld, Germ.	11 25	1152	2.506-6	0	<u>1</u> 00	26 0 0 0 0	BAO	2.506-6	1.906-4	1.126-5	3.756-6	4	28 1	-40
	159	-lillingdon, Eng Mortlesham Heath, Eng.	11 25	1240	1.02E-4	1.50E-5	\$	10 0 0 0 0	201	0	0	1.256-6	0	4	\$	-4
1-42	171	Hillingdon, Eng - Donnersburg, Germ -	11,25	1648	0	0	8	30 0 0 0 0	930	¢	0	0	0	44	26 1	7
С Р- [170	Hillingdor, Eng - Langerkopf, Öerm.	11,25	1620	0	0	8	26 0 0 0 0	940	0	2.506-6	o	0	4-4	29 1	F
						ŝ	CON	DARY ROUTINGS								
4	¢,	Colhano, Italy - Hillingdon, Eng.	11 ⁄ B	1515	9.91E-4	0	8	46 0 0 0 0	1922	9.91E-4	1.066-3	9.24E-4	7.34E-4	6-5	20	4
1-45	51	Colhano, Italy - Hillingdon, Eng.	6: II	1515	8.07E-4	1.895-3	98	46 0 C 0 0	1922	8.07E-4	6.02E-4	1.30£-3	7.405-4	4-4	22	÷.
1-46	53	Coltano, Italy - Hillingdon, Eng.	o, 11	1624	8.476-4	2.50E-6	66	46 0 0 0 0	1922	B.47E-4	2.31E-3	2.216-3	6.74E-3	4-4	23	-46
Ĭ	8	Coltana, Italv - Feldberg, Germ.	11 [,] 8	1117	4.55E-5	0	8	42400	1058	4.55E-5	4.37E-5	6.37E-5	3.02E-5	ľ	28]	-47
1-48	22	Colhana, Italy - Humasa, Spain	11.5	1330	5.40E-2	6.16E-3	20	22 10 4 0 0	3870	5.40E-2	5.12E-2	4.746-2	5.06-E2	4	1	Ŧ
5	23	Coltano, Italy - Humoso, Spain	11/5	1425	3.50E-2	4.37E-5	93	42 8 0 0 0	3950	3.50E-2	4.186-2	4.116-2	3 .47E-2	4-4	1 21	-49
1-50	24	Coltono, Italy – Humoso, Spain	11 5	1450	5.296-2	5.37E-5	66	428000	3950	5.29E-2	6.036-2	6.35E-2	6.69E-2	7	1 21	ş

- ****

Table C-1. European 151 Loups (Sheet 1 Continued)

4

•

د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د د	ر العالي (الشو (الشو (الفور (الفور) (المور) (المو) (الم) (الم) (الم) (الم) (الم) (الم) (المم) (المم) (المم)	انسە بىلاي : بىلاي 1 - 1 - 1 1 - 1	, (A; 938 0(1-61 938 938 01(-8	8-110 8-110 819	918			DIN IC	01191 (8) 819	001-91 866	111-91 838	19-C REB	Sync Tries-Hits	N/S
					SECONDA	RY RUI	JINGS (CON	(INUED)				; 		
Caltano, Italy - Mt. Poleras, Greece 11/5 1528 2.661	11/5 1528 2.661	1528 2.661	2.661	£-3	3.75E-5	85	0 14 8 0	0 38	K 2.66E-2	4.126-2	4.07E-2	4.56E-2	4-4	20
Coltano, Italy - Mt. Vergine, Italy 11/8 1058 4.75	11/8 1058 4.75	1058 4.75	4.75	F-2	8.25E-5	80	40 4 0 0	0 328	12 4.75E-2	4.71E-2	4.246-2	6.62E-2	3-3	18
Coltorio, Italy - Schoenfeld, Germ. 11/8 0913 7.3	11./8 0913 7.3	0913 7.34	v	4	0	8	24 0 0 0	0 127	2 7.36E-4	9.50E-4	1.136-4	9.07E-4	4-4	23
Coltono, Italy - Martlesham Heath, Eng. 1178 0848 2.3	11/8 0848 2.3	0848 2.3	2.3	3£-2	8.87E-5	16	22 4 2 0	0 176	8 8.57E-3	8.016-3	8.56E-3	8.75E-3	3-2	20
Coltano, Italv - Dunnerstrurg, Germ. 11/8 0943 1.C	11/8 0943 1.0	0943 1.0	ਹ -	3E-3	0	00	24 0 0	0 116	8 1.03E-3	9.985-4	1.01E-3	8.85E-4	4	23
Caltans, Italy - Langerkopf, Germ. 11/8 1008 7.03	11/8 1008 7.00	1008 7.03	2.0	4	·	•	22 0 0 0	0 122	0 7.05E-4	1.705-3	1. NE-3	,	2-2	23
Caltono, Ital Langerkopf, Germ. 11/8 1010 9.59	11/8 1010 9.59	1010 9.59	9.59	7	7.50E-6	8	22 0 0 0	0 122	0 9.59E-4	7.27E-4	7.51E-4	1.50E-3	4-4	- 2
Feldberg, Germ Hillingdon, Eng. 11/15 1530 3.06	11/15 1530 3.06	1530 3.06	3.06	7	•	8	12 4 2 0	0 83	2 3.06E-4	ı	٠	ı	1	25 1.
Feldberg, Germ- Hillingdon, Erg. 11/19 1040 2.446	11/19 1040 2.44	1040 2.44	2.446	ĩ	7.286-4	99	12 4 2 0	0 89	2 2.44E-3	2.97E-3	3.816-3	3.01E-3	4	23 1-
Feldberg, Germ- Coltano, Italy 11/17 1522 4,251	11/17 1522 4.25(1522 4.256	4.256	÷.	1.256-4	8	4 2 4 0	0 113	8 4.25E-5	2.12E-5	5.16E-5	2.11E-4	Į	27 1-
Feldberg, Germ Humosa, Spain 11/17 1340 1,17	11/12 1340 1.17	1340 1.17	1.17	E-2	5.06E-3	8		•	1.17E-2	1.25E-2	1.146-2	1.32E-2	4-4	20]-
Foldberg, Germ-Mi. Poteros, Greece 11/17 1410 2.056	11/17 1410 2.056	1410 2.056	2.05E	7	ı	٠	4 12 4 0	0 295	4 2.055-2	2.276-2	1.55E-2	6.196-3	2-2	50 I-
Feldberg, Germ- Mr. Vergine, Italy 11/17 1441 2.206	11/17 1441 2.20	1441 2.20	2.20	-2	4.126-5	66	0 6 4 0	0 183	4 2.20E-2	2.12E-2	3.78E-2	2.17E-2	4-4	-1 50
Feldberg, Germ - Schoenfeld, Germ, 11/17 1630 3.49	11/17 1630 3.49	1630 3.49	3.49	£:	0	8	8000	0 39	0 3.49E-3	5.45E-3	2.53E-3	7.65E-4	4-4	24 1-
Feldberg, Germ - Martlesham Heath, Eng. 11/19 0838 7.72	:1/19 0838 7.72	0838 7.72	7.72	I	1.50E-5	67	6420	0 87	4 7.72E-4	9.34E-4	9.066-4	4.33E-4	9-9	25 1-
Feldherg, Germ- Donnersburg, Germ. 11/17 1503 5.00	11/17 1503 5.00	1503 5.00	5.8	2	0	8	4 0 0 0	0 18	5.00E-6	0	3.75E-6	0	79	- &
Feldberg, Germ- Langerkapí, Germ. 11/17 1658 0	11/17 1658 0	1658 0	0		0	50	9 000	0 13	0	7.505-6	1.506-3	7.50E-6	7	25 1-
Hilfingdon, Eng Coltano, Italy 11/24 1413 5.035	11/24 1413 5.036	1413 5.03E	5.00	Ϋ́	2.50E-6	16	46 0 0 0	0 192	2 5.00E-3	6.52E-3	6.26E-3	6.456-3	4-4	-1 61
Hillingdon, Enga Feldberg, Germ. 11/26 1410 1.79£.	11,/26 1410 1.79E	1410 1.79E	1.79E	ņ	5.75E-5	16	12 4 2 0	0 89	۲.79٤-3	2.246-3	2.13E-3	1.966-3	3-3	20 1-
Hillingdon, Eng Humoso, Spain 11/25 1028 8.11E-	11/25 1028 8.116-	1028 8.11E-	8.11E-	ņ	4.75E-5	8	50 8 0 0	0 382	8.11E-3	1.05E-2	1.67E-2	1.036-2	4-4	20 1-
Hillingdon, Eng Mt. Pateras, Greece 11/25 1542 9.41E-	11/25 1542 9.41E-	1542 9.41E-	9.41E-	N		•	י י י	- 394	9.41E-2	ı	ı	•	Ξ	-1 81
Hillingdon, Eng Mt. Pateras, Greece 11/26 1455 2.30E-	11/26 1455 2.30E-	1455 2.30E-	2.30E-	~	6.45E-4	76	20 10 0 0	0 2946	2.306-2	1.836-2	2.05E-2	2.04E-2	ۍ ۲	-l 81
Hillingdon, Eng Mr. Vergine, Italy 11,26 1030 1,03E	11/26 1030 1.03E	1030 1.036	1.03E	Ņ	5.00E6	8	46 4 0 0	0 304	1.03E-2	1.196-2	1.236-2	1.896-2	4-4	20 1-
Hillingdon, Eng Schoenfeld, Germ. 11/26 1135 1,256	11/26 1135 1.256	1135 1.256	1.256	9	0	8	30 0 0 0	0 2394	1.25E-6	7.50E-6	5.00E-6	0	4-4	28 1-
Hillinydon, Eng- Donnersburg, Germ. 11/26 1435 1.09E	11/26 1435 1.096	1435 I.09E	1.09E		7.00E-5	89	16 4 2 0	0 1076	1.09E-3	1.205-3	8.485-4	9.53E-4	5-4	24 1-
Millingdon, Engr- Langerkopl, Germ. 11.26 1155 1.30	11/26 1155 1.30	1155 1.30	1.30	£-3	2.50E-6	66	28 0 0 0	0 86	3.16E-6	1.25E-5	4 .69E-6	3.136-6	4-4	25 1-

20 - 14 - 14 ^{- 14} - 1

2

State State

ALC: NO.

A LONG THE PARTY

. . .

Table C-1. European ISI Loops (Sheer 1 Continued)

1

-

ຸລາະຄາ		11	78	29	80		81	82	8	28	85
: ۲۰۰۱ م ایر		 8	- 6	- ~			 	-	- 2	~	- 5
ر درب. (انتشد – ا∟ریک		2	-	2	2		2	2	2	-	-
2446 		4	5-4	4-4	Ξ		ζ,	5-5	8-4	3-3	7-6
 ۲۰۹۲ ۱۹۹۵		2.50E-6	2.06[-2	3.506-5	ı		6.96[-4	2.33E-2	2.66t-2	1.995-2	8.081-2
(((-9)) 866		3.12E-5	2.176-2	4,006-5	•		7.39E-4	1.896-2	2.416-2	3.826-2	1.226-1
ופ-130 פנג		2.006-5	2.186-2	7.886-5	•		7.695-4	1.92E-2	2.65E-2	1.43E-2	7.326-2
011-91 - 8: 836		6.25E-6	2.45E-2	2.886-5	8.75E-6		5.54E-4	1.59E-2	2.23F-2	1.996-2	1.186-1
15:0		206	838	330	930		048	238	156		8
U I		2 2	4	ა	0		0 2	2 4	2 6		٥ ۲
		ষ	0	0	0		0	\$	4		•
<u>ہ</u>		0	0	0	0		Ŷ	0	4	•	7
F		0	12	c	0		¢	89	2	۲	12
2		%	48	ŝ	8	NGS	2	2	2	ŀ	52
418	TINCS	86	8	ŝ	•	ROUT	56	001	35	87	62
611-8 838	VARY ROU	3.016-3	3.876-5	2.50E-6	ı	CINFERED	9.12E-5	0	7.376-5	7.50E-6	4.05E-3
011-91 011-91	TERI	6.25E~S	2.455-2	2.886-5	J.75E-6	NONEN	5.54E-4	1.596-2	2.236-2	1.995-2	1.181-1
1:me		1418	0952	1050	1150		1645	000 1	1630	1245	1215
99.EG		21-11	11 - 26	11: 26	11 - 26		11 8	6/11	11/15	61-11	61-11
لمحدثون		feldherg, Germ - Humasa, Spain	Hillingdon, Eng Humosa, Spain	Hillingdon, Eng Donnersburg, Germ.	Hillingdon, Eng Donnersburg, Germ.		Coltano, Italy - Hillingdon, Eng.	Cottano, Italy - Hillingdon, Eng.	feldterg, Germ Hillingdon, Eng.	Feldberg, Germ Hillingdon, Eng.	feißerg, Germ Hillingdon, Eng.
כפור,		8	1:2	174	1.76		43	45-	8	134	,32

「「「「「「「「」」」」」

ALLER

Table 1		1	1-2	1-3	1	1-5	7-5	1-7	8-1	6-l	1-10	1-1	1-12	1-13	1-14	1-15	1-15	1-17	1-18	1-19	1-20	12-1	1-22	1-23	1-24	1-25	1-26	1-27
stnammoJ								-																	2			
Chorocter,		2	22	Ş	5	2	22	2	7	2	2	5	ç	2	5	2	2	2	2		2	5	5	5	2	2	?	2
ani l		ž	z	z	ž	z		Ŵ	Ň	Ŵ	Ŵ	AT	A1	AT ,	ĂŢ	AT /	-	Ē	Ŵ	V 1	1	5	5	S,	1	Ŵ	Å 1	-
		2 H	/2 H	2 HI	3 HC	17 HI		Ŧ	72 HI	72 H	73 H	V2 P.	V2 P.	V2 P.	V2 P	53		53 S	2 8							53 H	V2 PJ	
		69	69 \	ξA <	HLS	ŝ		,	UHU I	Ś	ő	¥	A D A	XX	AD	QX.		H	Nd							Ž	X	
		76 32	26 32	1E 9A	× ۳	£ 9A		بي	8	Å	Š	ž	£ 90	ŝ	E 9D	ي بي	بب	× Z	36 Z	z	z	7	7	7	0	Š	Ř	ų
		2 M	2 M	2 WB	ž O 7	3 Mg	2 FEI	2 MR	2 MB	2 Mg	ž	2 MR	ž	Z W	2 MR	2 MR	۲. ۲	8	00 8	So So	8	LIH 8	Ē	Ĥ	บีต	S MR	2 MR	3 MR
		× ۲	> ¥	> ¥	S H B	3	> ×	2 2 2	× ×	> Z	20 K	> Z	> z	N N	N N	N V	<u>ب</u> ر	к e	×.	ž	2 2	ы. К	2	ы К	2	N N	>	1
e.		Ś	Ś	Ś	2 X X X	300	ฎ	26 0	Š	Š	ğ	Ś	Š	Š	Ś	Š	Š	Š	Š	Š	Š	9AC	9AC	9AC	Ř	9AC	Å.	9AC
Rout		CLO	CLC	50	250	CIO	CIC	CIC	CLO	50	CLO	CLO	C C	CLO	CLO	99	CLO	CLO	0I0	CC	0 U	FEL	FEL	FEL	FEL	FEL	FEL	FEL
		0-7	_																									
Type of Recording		A-6,	A-10	υ	A-5	A-8	T	8-2	4- I	4	4	A-4	4-1	0	U U	Ū	Ū	B-4	8-6	8-7	8-A	Ų	J	1	6-9	Α- δ	A-5	υ
		35	027	093	519	417		1 910	021	036	057	051	8	078 (10	184	88	063	138	20F	222	356	052		8 0	346	312	387
Γο σαιίου οί Γο σαιίου οί		Ē	2-1,	2-1,	1-2,	<u>.</u>	I	<u>-</u> ,	1-2,	1-2.	1-2,	Ĩ	1-2,	2-1,	2-1,	2-1,	Ĩ	-	ì	Ē	Ē	2-1,	2-2,	I	2-2.	2-2,	2-2,	2-2.
Pictures			æ	80	U	6				U			•	۵		,											-	
Types of		۲	A	₹	Ā	٩	۲	۲	٩	Ă	٩	۲	¥	¥	۲	Å	۷	۲	۲	۲	۲	۷	۷	۲	۲	۲	¥	۷
OQ	<u>ଥ</u> ା	2	10	8	S	0	C	0	0	~	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	~	15	4
67	NIN	89	12	٥	ጽ	0	0	68	42	-	ò	v	21	4	٥	16	39	~	67	ŝ	0	e	-	0	0	15	101	25
63	RY RO	64)	Я	¥	13	203	3	245	125	12	Ľ	47	112	27	¥	113	92	2	168	~	~	e	2	٥	4	8	961	137
\$	RIMA	1732	145	075	475	579	224	578	172	53	233	146	490	197	315	302	189	e	295	19	224	4	e	٥	237	8	000	264
<u>,</u>	-				_			_			_	_	_		_				-						-		-	
PH 200		ñ			28	32	0	ч	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	o	-	~	0	0	0	0	0	2	23	e	5
6H +3		0	Ê	~	1 2	-	•	m 	0	-	0	0	0	0	0	0	'	0	-	0	0	ټ	Ŷ	0	0	2	1	2
%Он		57.	1.0	1.06	1.50	1.09	8	х. Х	1.80	1.61	14.1	1.50	2.00	1.43	2.27	1.94	19.	.4	\$.	0	.55	.45	.36	9 .	₽.	1.73	1.22	.75
нD 3 [,] 9		\$	4	42	6 E	4	47	38	37	Q	4	6 £	37	39	37	8	\$	49	45	8	47	8	8	49	52	3	Ş	4 5
HD 2nd	ĺ	45	8	ę.	ç	\$	\$	41	39	38	ą	4	37	4	35	ŝ	49	z	8	8	8	8	55	55	8	ą	Ŧ	45
۹۲		12	13	13	0	1	æ	2	5	÷	٩	4	80	7	٥	02	4	4	œ	e	80	4	ŝ	4	15	14	9	۰
(ZH1 U N/S		56	ድ	8	32	æ	23	g	20	5	I	5	<u>80</u>	5	33	9	\$	2	ς.	5	2	4	н.5	5	£:	Q	Q	<u>.</u> .
				(-7	(-)		,	ŝ	.,	s S	5	()		(*1	5	e	(*)	e	~	e	e	5	5	5	2	3	5 3	د م
(990) N/S		82	32	ŝ	30	8	33	3	8	ы. Е	Ř	39	9	32	39.	37	4	35	Э	4	33	Ę.	42.	4 5 .	35	8	З.	36.
1211, 12 (211, 1)		ę	-3	4	-	(En	~	9	۴	4	۶	4	.	2	4	0	-	•	7	-	-	-	0	-	•	0	4	e
iote Loss		ب	7	\$	ſ	ŝ	~	7	ŗ	5	15	7	7	4	÷	-	2	-	7	0	2	2	-	-	æ	-	s	e
		Z	Z	Z.	Z	₹	E	μŅ	₹Ũ	Ň	μŅ	AT	AI	AT	AT	AT	Щ.	Ð	AAM	NON	ÿ	z	z	z	o,	¥	5	ž
(, v ∍\ d dA)		ġ	ġ	ġ	Ō	ġ	3	ġ	ġ	ō	ġ	ģ	5	9	ò	ò	6	Ş	0	9	0.1	H-J	H-J	H	Ū.	H-J	L-PA	W-1
لمدمناهم		U	Ų	U	U	U	U	υ	U	U	υ	U	U	U	υ	Ú	υ	Ú	Ú	Ú	Ú	ũ	Ξ	đ	Ľ	5	Ξ	F
¢911 ₽		2	55	92	4	47	61	2	58	\$	57	4	27	x	\$	62	۰	٢	ه	12	2	69	2	136	\$	86	95	6
1 Joble		1	1-2	1-3	1	<u>1-5</u>	9-1	1-1	8-	6-1	01-1	Ē	1-12	1-13	1-1	1-15	1-16	1-17	1-18	61-1	<mark>82-1</mark>	12-1	1-22	1-23	1-24	1-25	1-26	1-27

Table C-1. European 151 Loops (Sheet 2)

-

10110-012

179/180

loble "	1-28	1-29	1-30	16-1	1-32	1-33	1-34	1-35	1-36	1-37	1-38	1-39	1-40	1-41	1-42	CF-1		14	1-45	1-46	1-47	1-48	1-49	1-50	1-52
ζοωωευτ																		2			÷			~	
Line Chorocter,	S	ţ	S	st	5	5	S3	١S	V2	ł	22	^ 2	S	53	53	53		22	۶	S	٢S	4 V2	5	\$	72
Routing	FEL 9CDW V2 SCH	FEL 9CKA V2 MAM	FEL 9CFY V2 DON	FEL 9A.AB V2 LKF	HIN 9464 VZ MRE 9CVN V2 CLC	HIN PAEG S3 MRE PCVN V2 CLO	HIN 9ACA V2 FEL	HIN 9CMN S3 HUM	HIN 9CMQ 53 HUM	HIN PAEJ 53 MRE PAT	HIN 946J 53 MRE 900A V2 PAT	HIN 9AEB V2 MRE	HIN 9ADC V2 LKF 9CJO V2 SCH	HIN 9CMF V2 MAM	HIN PDZM 53 DON	HIN 9ADP 53 LKF		CLO 9CVD 53 FEL 9ACF 53 HIN	CLO 9CVW 53 FEL 9ACH 53 HIN	CLO 9CUW 53 FEL 9ACG 53 HIN	CLO 9CVX S3 DON FEL	2 CLO PCVT V2 DON 9DGC V2 HUM	CLO PCVV V2 DON PCGS 53 HUM	CLO 9DQG V2 DON 9CGS 53 HUM	CLO 900H 53 DON 90AB V2 PAI
Recording Type of	υ	U	υ	U	A-2	6-A	U	υ	U	ı	υ	A-8	υ	A-5	U	A-9		A-4	υ	B- 8	U	8-1, E-	A-9	υ	6-1
Location of Recording	2-2,450	2-2, 462	2-2, 438	2-2,426	3-2, 172	3-2,232	3-2, 406	3-2,417	4-2,023	I	4-1,008	4-1,015	4-1,000	3-2,364	4-1,051	4 -1,036		1-2,160	1-2, 510	2-1,019	1-2, 103	1-1, 329	1-1, 373	ì-1, 407	1-1,423
Types of Pictures	AB	٩	۲	۲	₽C	AC	٩	٩	ACD	ł	AD	ABD	AD	۲	۲	AD		Å₿	AB	A₿	۲	¥,	AB	٩٩	٩
DO	0	2	0	0		9	0	0	0	ı		-	2	0	0	0	31	0	4	0	0	4	0	-	e
67	o	;	~	o	•	80	0	-	4	·	•	&	-	2	c	0	OUTING	2	18	01	-	952	135	186	63
63	0	83	2	0	•	353	0	~	65	•	•	222	\$	2	•	0	VDARY I	13	28	ន	7	1526	1490	1704	451
ŝ	υ	454	2	0	•	1624	0	14	1364	•	۱	1661	51	œ	-	0	SECO	787	441	1231	=	1807	1846	1805	1510
PH 200	0	n	o	0	,	2	0	0	0		•	13	0	•	0	0		-	2	-	D	ŝ	13	я	8
6н +3	۵	e	o	0	,	0	0	0	0	ı	1	-	0	0	0	0		o	-	0	0	=	0	-	- 82
+oΩH	.37	69.	15.	6 E.	.75	00 ⁻ 1	.26	.39	1.26	•	2.23	8.	.48	.21	38.	.45		69.	.72	84	۲.	1.12	1.01	1.62	1.54
н D 3ч9	46	8	\$	6	45		З	3	45	٠	শ্র	45	47	Z,	49	47		\$\$	\$	\$	4	ŝ	42	4	R
HD Sug	68	45	63	x	¥	43	6	ន	ጵ	1	¥	旨	33	z	55	8		¥	49	45	8	8	4	37	Ŧ
ol q	e	8	5	e	15	2	2	ო	æ	•	•	Ĵ	e	2	e	~		2	7	16	c	15	15	23	٥
(#H11) N/S	\$	25	8	38.5	26	28	42	88	ē	•	30.5	ନ୍ଥ	36.5	4	۶	24		32	3	ଛ	6	27	26	24	27
(¤¤@) N/S	8	26.5	51	\$	23	27	9	32	35	•	32	32	35.5	4.5	ጽ	42		33	33	31	37	27	26	26	32
tine Loss	ъ	7	0	0	ı	~	۳	0	4	•	?	0	٢	4	8	-		-	ŝ	œ	-	2	٦	۰	~
Line Loss	с	7	c	-	2	۰	c	0	5	•	ŕ	0	٢	4	٥	-		0	v	w	2	e	4	¢.	2
Location (,verddA)	IFL-SCH	FEL-MAM	HEL-DON	FEL-LKF	HIN-CLO	HIN-CLO	137-MIH	WUH-NIH	WUH-NIH	HIN-PAT	HIN-PAI	HI: 4-MRE	HIN-SCH	HIN-MAM	NOQ-NIH	HIN-LKF		CLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	CLO-HN	CLO-FEL	CLO-HUM	CLO-HUM	CLO-HUM	CLO-PAT
e 11º0	102	ទ	101	8	22	3	160	161	181	8	167	169	164	159	121	ğ		39	51	ន	Я	22	23	24	25
' aldot	1-28	1-29	06-1	1-31	1-32	1-33	1-34	1-35	1-36	1-37	1-38	66-1	04-1	1-41	1-42	64-1		4-	1-45	1-46	1-47	8 9 -	1-49	1-50	1-51

.

_ .

. . .

į

Table C-1. European IST Loops (Sheet 2 Continued)

• • •

, 91901	1-52	ا -2	X-	1-55	8-	1-57	8 7-	3 6	99-1	1-61	1-62	1-63	-64	1-65	99-1	1-67	1-68	1-69	1-70	12-1	1-72	1-73	1-74	1-75	1-76
	_	-	-	-	-	~	-	-		-		•		0							-				
Choracter,		~	~	~		_		~	-	_		2	_	÷ N	2	2	2	_	-	~	2	2		3	. .
Puil	5	>	5	5	1	>	1	S	S	>	1	>	5	5	> z	>	>	S	> z	> z	> z	> ~	ы т	> Z	ίν
	ÅE	Ð	AAM	NON	ΪĶ	R.	Ţ	₹	50	MUH	PAT	WE	SСH	MAI	ōđ	LKF	5	FEL	õ	õ	8	ž	Š	8	LK.
	2	2 2	V 2 N	2 2	1	2	ŝ	53 1	Š	Ŧ	ī	S J	2	22	S	Z 7 7	r 53	X 72	22	2	5	2	۲ <2	2	S
	z	à	¥	ອີ		ßU	CLM	CL	Š	ī	ī	ž	² 02	Š	CCF	ΰ	Š	Š.	ŭ	۳ گ	۹ ۲	S S	2 C D	272	AAL
	94	8	Š.	Ŷ.	1	L 9A	۶ ۲	ð S	۶ Z	z	z	ž	ž	Š.	F.	ž	بر	AM	Е	¥	5	2	ہ ب	¥	ۍ ب
	3 FEI	E	3 FEI	3 FEI	3 FE	3 FE	3 M/	2	2 00	ŭ L	200	300	2 DC	000	72 [1]	ñ 2	3 E	3 W	۲ ۲	2 ¥	3 W E	2 FE	2 FE	3 M/	3 FE
	νE S:	ð S	к е	Š	Š	Š	ŝ	> ~	> W	SA V	< و	> ₹	z	2	ş	38	5	ج	2 R	≥ Z. ₹	3 PA	20	2	л С	2
e E	Ŕ	Ŕ	Ŕ	ý	Ŕ	Ś	<u></u>	9E P	Ř	Š	Š	Š	Š	Š	Š	Ř	9A(Š	₹ Z	Š,	ŠČ	9 A (9A(ž	9 A(
Rout	010	CLO	СГО	C O	CLO	CLO	FEL	FEL	FEL	Ę	FEL	FEL	FEL	FEL	FEL	FEL	Ĭ	Ž	N H N	ΞI	NIN 90A	Z	Ž	ZH	Ĭ
•		~																							
Type of Recording	T	8-10	I	A-2	ł	A-3	I	8-1	υ	A-7	I	B-9	υ	A-4	υ	υ	υ	1	A-7	i	A-3	υ	U	A-2	υ
_		043		090		081		375	049	475		026	880	241	æ	88	289		429		8	173	109	124	115
Location of Recording	1	1-2,1	1	1-2,1	ī	1-2,	ł	3-1,		2-2,	ſ	<u></u> Е	3-1,	<u>-</u> ,	<u>з-</u> 1,	<u></u> Е	3-2,	ŧ	3-2,	i	4 -2,	Ţ,	÷	- 1	4-1,
Pichues		U		υ													٥	_	Q			~	~	~	
ly pes of	¥	A8	۲	AB	ı	۹	٠	۲	۹	۲	۰	A	۲	۲	۲	۹	AB	AD	ABC	A	AC	ΑŬ	AC	AC	٩
oa	67	~	ı	0	1	2	•	=	0	-		0	-	7	0	0	-	0	0	23	0	•	•	-	•
67	a 0	0	,	-	ı	0		22	0	ະ	ı	3	0	2	0	5	*	42	13	8	33	•		8	1
								-		•				_			_				_			-	
ş	319	e	•	-	ľ	0	'	176	17	189	'	4	Ŷ	017	0	10	ŝ	485	82	1076	370	٠	'	186	•
6	\$5	8		85		\$		52	33	8	,	5	ନ୍ଥ	47	0	10	R	¥	8	61	2	,		ą	,
-,		en						~		15		e	-	e			8	Ξ	2	12	17			-9	
ьн SOo	∞	e	٠	0	'	e	ł	31	2	~	ł	Ś	-	0	0	0	2	2	e	2	o.	'	•	0	•
CH +3	-	0	'	0	•	2	٠	-	4	S	'	S	~	0	0	0	0	0	0	4	0	,	١	0	•
ះកម	.75	8	١9.	છ		. و		જ	\$.	1.19	•	۲. S	1,12	.82	2	۶.	8.	3.	1.06	1.19	.8	۶.	49	0	.76
	-	ŝ	•	4		~		S	•0	_		80	S	2	4	_	æ	S	2	30	-		2	0	e
P/E QH	-	4	4	4	•	•	•	4	4	4	'	e,	Ŷ	4	4	4	ৰ	4	4	4	4	4	4	0	Т
HD SV9	3	3	49	8	١	42	'	5	52	42	•	4	39	R	49	X	¥	8	() T	ćΕ	8	19	Z	8	ŝ
PJ ⁰	=	=	16	0	٠	ອນ	•	Ŷ	ŝ	15	,	12	ŝ	89	~	4	15	14	12	2	1	12	2	Ŷ	4
(ZHA L) N/S	%	ଛ	5 8	ເຄ		R	ī	E	PE	0.5	,	33	32	31	¥	4	27	8	28	24	ន	27.5	ጽ	0.5	37
									s.	e		۰.	s.	s.			Ś		s.			5.		.53	s.
(490) N/S	2	34	8	35	١	¥	ł	29	37	33	I	33	29	26	37	44	28	29	õ	51	32	28	38	32	8
(۲H۶ L) 1 נוסק ביי	~	e	ŝ	¢	,	-	,	•0	۰	ŗ	,	~	2	0	2	7	2	0	-	~	ŕ	۰	\$	e	ŝ
(Dot o)		-	~	-				~	0	3	,	3	2	0	с С	-	0	0	~	0.	4	۰	\$		ŝ
no avi				-					•	'						'	-		_		,			-	
	¥	SCH	WW	ĝ	ĽĘ	ĽΚ	ž	Ę	2	Ň	A1	¥	£	AAM	ŏ	ЯЯ	010	EL	ЧŪМ	PAT	PAT	Μ	SCH	ğ	LKF
Lacation (,verddA)	9	្ទ	9	9	9	9	H-H	H-H	ЧЧ	н-13	<u>е-</u> Р	EA	EL-5	۲-۸ 13	0-13	<u>ר</u>	Ĩ	Z	Ż	Į	Į	Ž	-N	Ż	Ž
	5	0 9	ں ج	5	0	0 2	۳ م	ч 9	۳ ک	и И	ъ Т	Ч Г	2 F	8 2	e E	ŝ	۰. ج	يە م	2	- 9	Å.	T	ς. Τ	и. 2	
כייו י	1	r)	~	с	n	e	~	13	9	0	2	2	=	12	0	Ξ	15	1	16	22	18	1	5	17	1
' sidot	-52	2-12	-S-	1-55	-8-	1-57	- 58	8	-99	1-51	-62	1-63	-0-1	1-65	-6	6	ا - و	1-69	1-70	1-71	<u>r</u> :	1-73	1-74	1-75	1-76

Table C-1. European IST Loops (Sheet 2 Continued)

1 oble		1-7	1-78	£-1	1-90		1-81	1-82	1-83	1-84	1-85
εινομικο							12		13		
ل in e Character.		۲2	22	۶	I.		5	5	5	1	5
		PCMR 53 HUM	90EQ V2 MRE	9CFZ V2 DON	N00		90TY V2 MAM	HUM	900U V2 HUM	HUM H	9AEA V2 HIN
ou fing		L PACD V? HIN	N 9ACD V? FEL HO S3 HUM	N 9ACD V2 FEL	N 9ACD V2 FEL		O 900 V2 00N	O 9CVS S3 MRE MP S3 HIN	L PCFC V2 DON MT V2 HIN	L 9CFB V2 DON MR 53 HIN	L 9CEP V2 MRE
٣		F.	ΞX	Ŧ	Ŧ		5 X	៹៱	űΧ	ΞX	E E
Recording Lype of		A-8	01-V	A-1	ł		Å-Å	A-7	8-4	I	U
Location af Recording		3-1,000	4-1,057	4-1,088	ī		1-2, 270	1-2, 320	2-2, 104	ł	3-1,441
Types of Pictures		AD	ABD	A D	I	21	٩	CA	۲		٩
00	3	0	ı.	ı	٠	NIING	o	0	-	1	5
\$2	NIINO	2	•	١	ı	ED RO	27	14	4	•	314
ß	JARY R	\$	ı	1	۰		83	ጽ	877	ı	1322
59	TERP	6	•	ı	•	Žų-Z	368	151	1789	,	1787
ьн 506		0	ı	٠	1	žl	0	0	Ŷ	4	8
6н •3		0	ı	•	,		•	0	-	,	15 1
°₀ΩH		67.	.	ઝ	,		%	2.3	1.62	ı	٦.69
אם זיק		4	<u>6</u>	45	r		Ŧ	33	4	•	36
4D 349		49	4	z	•		49	ą	37	ı	8
Pla		2	18	2	•		۰	ŝ	13	15	2
(ZH11) N/S		ጽ	25.5	9	1		33	33	26	28.5	26
(4PC) N/S		8	25	ጽ	'		R	35	23	30.5	27.5
(Short) 1 Martin 1 M		2	Ŷ	4	1		7	۲	0	7	ņ
rine Loss		(*)	æ	4	ı		-5	7	12	Ċ	Ŷ
Location (.vaiddA)		FEL-HUM	MUH-NIH	NOC-NIH	NOQ-NIH		CLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	FEL-HIN	FEL-HIN	FEL-4IN
, IIOD		ğ	Ĕ	174	175		t	45	8	3	132
, slable		1-7	1-78	1-79	1-80		1-81	1-8 2	ĩ	1-84	1-65

artic Jan wa

All and a lot of the

Table C-1. European IST Loops (Sheet 2 Continued)

í

.

n shun an s**uiteine bhan a** tha an tha

10.00

	• 11°D	Location	Date	انمو	011-91 011-91	8-110 011-8	918	- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 	ہے ۲000	•0:0	011-91 (8) 838	19-130 BEK	111-91 858	19-C 8E8	Sync Tries-Hitz	N/S	1 aldo1
Collored, inly - Aviane, Inly 11/5 0950 2.75E-5 0 100 8 0 0 0 4% Z Collored, Inly - Vicenza, Inly 11/4 0853 1.87E-6 9 100 8 0 0 0 0 4% Z Collored, Inly - Vicenza, Inly 11/4 0853 1.865 3.55E-5 2.30E-6 100 8 0 0 0 0 3% 3 Collored, Inly - Vicenza, Inly 11/5 1126 3.55E-5 2.30E-6 100 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 3% 3 Collored, Insty 11/5 1126 3.55E-5 2.30E-6 0	1	Coltano, Italy - Aviano, Italy	£/11	1216	2.486-3	0	8	9 0 0 8	0 0 0	492	2.486-3	2.61E-3	2.18E-3	2.72E-3	4-4	31	2-1
Collono, Inly - Vicenzo, Indy 11/4 0833 $1.87E-6$ 9 100 8 0<		Coltano, italy - Aviano, Italy	11/5	0560	2.75E-5	0	8	008	000	49.	2.756-5	3.005-5	,	1	4	27	2-2
Collono, Inly - Vicenzo, Indy 11/5 1004 3.62E-5 0 100 8 0 <td></td> <td>Coltano, Italy - Vicenza, Italy</td> <td>11/4</td> <td>0805</td> <td>1.87E-6</td> <td>c</td> <td>8</td> <td>800</td> <td>000</td> <td>394</td> <td>i.87E-6</td> <td>3.126-5</td> <td>•</td> <td>•</td> <td>4-3</td> <td>23</td> <td>2-3</td>		Coltano, Italy - Vicenza, Italy	11/4	0805	1.87E-6	c	8	800	000	394	i.87E-6	3.126-5	•	•	4-3	23	2-3
Collemo, Iruly - Vicenzo, Iruly 11/5 1136 3.75F-5 2.50E-6 100 8 0		Colhano, Haly - Vicenza, Haly	11/5	1004	3.62E-5	0	8	8 0 0	0000	394	3.62 E- 5	5.75E-5	,	•	4-3	61	7
Coltame, Iroly - Leghorn, Iroly 11/4 C945 0 0 100 0		Coltano, Italy - Vicenza, Italy	11/5	1136	3,756-5	2. <u>50E-6</u>	8	008	000	394	3.75E-5	3.12E-5	1.87E-5	5.00E→	1	27	2-5
Colrono, Italy - Leghorn, Italy 11/5 1550 0 - - 0 0 0 2 0 1 Feldberg, Germ - Bernischoven, Germ 11/15 1003 7.55E-4 5.00E-5 %e 8 2 0 0 502 2 2 Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ 11/15 1223 2.69E-3 %.00E-5 %e 8 2 0 0 0 503 2 Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ 11/16 1522 1.46E-4 94 2 4 0 0 0 534 2 4 4 0 0 0 534 2 4 4 0 0 0 0 334 4 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 354 3 355 3 355 3 355 3 355 3 355 3 355 3 355 3 3 4 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 4 4 5 0 0 0		Coltanu, Italy - Legham, Italy	11/4	C945	0	0	8	0 0 0	020	JC	0	0	,	1	4-4	16	ç 7
Feldberg, Germ - Bernerhuven, Germ 11/15 1003 7.35L-4 5.00E-5 % B 2 0 0 502 2 Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ 11/16 1527 2.69E-3 5.00E-6 % B 2 0 0 0 502 2 Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ 11/15 1254 4.04E-4 2.13E-5 % 2 0 0 0 503 23 Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ 11/15 1254 4.04E-4 2.13E-5 % 2 0 0 0 5/4 4 4 2 0 0 0 5/4 4 4 2 0 0 0 5/4 4 4 2 0 0 0 5/4 4 4 2 0 0 0 5/4 4 4 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		Coltano, Italy - Legham, Italy	11/5	1550	0	ı	ı	000	020	0	0	c	0	ı	ĩ	E	2-7
Feldberg, Germ Bernerhoven, Germ 11/16 1527 2.69E-3 5.00E-6 76 8 2 0 0 5.07 2 Feldberg, Germ Berlin, Germ 11/15 1254 4.04E-4 2.13E-5 % 2 0 0 0 5/54 2 Feldberg, Germ Berlin, Germ 11/15 1254 4.04E-4 2.13E-5 % 2 0 0 0 5/54 2 Feldberg, Germ Suttigen, Germ 11/15 1352 4.04E-4 0 10 0		Feldberg, Germ - Bremerhaven, Germ	11/15	1003	7.756-4	5.00E-5	8	8200	000	202	1.75E-4	6.546-4	7.01E-4	5.12E-4	I	27	2-8
Feldberg, Gem - Berlin, Gem 11/15 1940 2.P5F-2 4.64f 94 2 4 0		Feldberg, Germ - Bremerhaven, Germ	91/11	1527	2.696-3	5.00E-6	36	820	0000	507	2.69E-3	1.84E-3	2.26E-3	2.43E-3	4	27	2-9
Feldberg, Cerm - Berlin, Germ 11/15 1254 4.04f-4 2.13f-5 % 2 0 0 2 0 554 4 Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ 11/16 1552 1.14f-2 0 100 6 2 0		feldberg, Cerm - Berlin, Germ	11/15	1040	2.PっE-2	4.645-4	94	2 4 0 (000	654	2.85E-2	2.88E-2	3.71E-2	1.75E-2	4-4	22	2-10
Feldberg, Gern - Berlin, Gern $11/16$ 1532 $1.14E-2$ 0 100 6 7 0 <td< td=""><td>-</td><td>Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ</td><td>11/15</td><td>1254</td><td>4.ME-4</td><td>2.136-5</td><td>8</td><td>2 0 0 3</td><td>200</td><td>24</td><td>1.04E-4</td><td>3.94E-4</td><td>2.20E-4</td><td>1.95E-4</td><td>4</td><td>27</td><td>2-11</td></td<>	-	Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ	11/15	1254	4.ME-4	2.136-5	8	2 0 0 3	200	24	1.04E-4	3.94E-4	2.20E-4	1.95E-4	4	27	2-11
Feldberg, Cerm - Sturtgørt, Germ 11/15 1320 6.33E-2 0 100 6 2 0 0 2 396 6 Feldberg, Germ - Sturtgørt, Germ 11/18 1550 3.75F-6 6.75E-5 99 14 0 0 0 378 4 Feldberg, Germ - Vaihingen, Germ 11/18 1352 4.94E-4 0 100 6 2 0 0 378 4 Feldberg, Germ - Fronkfort, Germ 11/16 1415 0 2.55F-3 3:12E-5 99 14 0 0 2 2 0 232 3 2 6:75F-5 5:30 3:23 3:65F-3 3:12F-5 99 0 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2 2 2 2 2 3:2 2 3:2 2 3:2 2 3:2 2 3:2 2 3:2 2 3:2 2 3:2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	•	Feldberg, Germ - Berlin, Germ	91/11	1552	1.146-2	0	<u> 90</u>	4 4 0	000	\$	I. 14E-2	1.386-2	2.21E-2	2.09E-2	1	27	2-12
Feldberg, Germ - Suttgort, Germ 11/18 1550 3.75E-6 6.75E-5 99 14 0 0 0 9 830 3 Feldberg, Germ - Voihingen, Germ 11/15 1352 4.94E-4 0 100 6 2 0 0 0 378 4 Feldberg, Germ - Fronkfort, Germ 11/16 1415 0 0 100 2 0 0 0 22 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/16 1500 2.55E-3 3.63E-3 3.63E-3 97 6 2 0 0 22 2 5 530 2 7 6 32 1 2 6 331 2 6 331 2 6 331 2 5 530 2 3 3 12E-5 99 0 0 0 32 5 5 331 2 6 331 2 5 530 2 5 331 2 5 530 2 3 1 2 5 330 2 5 5 <		Feldberg, Germ - Shuttgart, Germ	11/15	1320	6.53E-?	0	8	6 2 D (0 0 2	396	s.53E-3	5.86E-1	4.16E-4	6.00E-4	5-5	56	2-13
Feldberg, Germ - Voihingen, Germ 11/15 1352 4.94E-4 0 100 6 2 0 0 0 278 4 Feldberg, Germ - Frankfort, Germ 11/16 1415 0 0 100 2 0 0 0 20 0 0 22 Feldberg, Germ - Heidelberg, Germ 11/16 1500 2.55F-3 3.63F-3 97 6 2 0 0 23 1 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/16 1615 6.35F-3 3.12E-5 99 0 2 0 0 32 5 5 5 3 1 <		Feldberg, Germ - Shuttgart, Germ	11/18	1550	3.75E-6	6.75E-5	8	14 0 0	с о о	830	3.756-6	1.126-4	1.25E- 6	1.25E-6	4	26	2-14
Feldberg, Germ - Frankfort, Germ 11/16 1415 0 0 100 2 0 0 0 22 Feldberg, Germ - Heidelberg, Germ 11/16 1500 2.55F-3 3.63F-3 3.63F-3 97 6 2 0 0 32 1 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/16 1615 6.35F-3 3.12F-5 99 0 2 0 0 32 3 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/18 1010 5.50F-5 0 1000 8 2 0 0 32 5 Feldberg, Germ - Wanserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 100 8 0 0 13/4 6 Feldberg, Germ - Wanserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 100 8 0 0 0 13/4 6 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/18 1633 U 0 100 2 0 10 0 13/4 6 14/4 0 10 0 10 0 13/4 6 1 0 <td></td> <td>feldberg, Germ - Vaihingen, Germ</td> <td>11/15</td> <td>1352</td> <td>4.946-4</td> <td>0</td> <td>8</td> <td>620</td> <td>000</td> <td>378</td> <td>1.94E-4</td> <td>5.05E-4</td> <td>4.585-4</td> <td>3.01E-4</td> <td>Ţ</td> <td>25</td> <td>2-15</td>		feldberg, Germ - Vaihingen, Germ	11/15	1352	4.946-4	0	8	620	000	378	1.94E-4	5.05E-4	4.585-4	3.01E-4	Ţ	25	2-15
Feldberg, Cerm - Heidelberg, Germ 11/16 1500 2.53E-3 3.63E-3 97 6 2 0 2 6 530 2 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/16 1615 6.33E-3 3.12E-5 99 0 2 0 0 32 1 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/18 1010 5.50E-5 0 1000 0 2 0 0 32 5 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/17 1545 8.75E-6 0 1000 8 2 0 0 32 5 Feldberg, Germ - Wanser, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 1000 8 0 0 13/2 Feldberg, Germ - Hohn, Germ 11/18 1633 U 0 1000 4 0 0 13/2 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/18 1640 1.24E-4 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 13/2 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/19 1640 1.24E-4 0 100 0 0	-	feldberg, Germ - Frankfort, Germ	91/11	1415	0	0	8	200	000	22	0	0	2.50E-6	0	4-4	31	2, 16
I Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/16 1615 6.35E-3 3.12E-5 99 0 2 0 0 32 1 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/18 1010 5.50E-5 0 100 0 2 0 0 32 5 Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ 11/17 1545 8.75E-6 0 100 8 2 0 0 32 5 Feldberg, Germ - Wasserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 100 8 2 0 0 0 132 8 Feldberg, Germ - Hohn, Germ 11/18 1633 U 0 100 4 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/18 1640 1.45E-3 0 100 4 0 0 128 1 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/19 1640 1.24E-4 0 100 6 0 0 0 128 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/19 1426 1.24E-4 0 100 0 0 0 <td></td> <td>Feldherg, Cerm - Heidelberg, Germ</td> <td>91/11</td> <td>1500</td> <td>2.536-3</td> <td>3.63E-3</td> <td>67</td> <td>620(</td> <td>r 2 6</td> <td>530</td> <td>2.53E-3</td> <td>3.44E-3</td> <td>2.55E-3</td> <td>2.58E-3</td> <td>6-7</td> <td>2</td> <td>2-17</td>		Feldherg, Cerm - Heidelberg, Germ	91/11	1500	2.536-3	3.63E-3	67	620(r 2 6	530	2.53E-3	3.44E-3	2.55E-3	2.58E-3	6-7	2	2-17
Feldberg, Germ - LindJey, Germ 11/18 1010 5.50E-5 0 100 0 2 0 0 32 5 Feldberg, Germ - Bod Munoier, Germ 11/17 1545 8.75E-6 0 100 8 2 0 0 0 314 8 Feldberg, Germ - Wasserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 100 8 2 0 0 0 14 8 Feldberg, Germ - Wasserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 100 4 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/18 1623 C 0 100 20 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/18 1640 1.456-3 0 100 4 0 0 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/18 1624 1.24E-4 0 100 6 0 0 0 0 144 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/19 123 0028 1.00E-5 0 0 0 0 <td></td> <td>Feldburg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ</td> <td>91/11</td> <td>1615</td> <td>6.35E-3</td> <td>3.126-5</td> <td>8</td> <td>0 0 2 0</td> <td>000</td> <td>32</td> <td>1.94E-4</td> <td>9.53E-5</td> <td>3.95E-4</td> <td>5.12E-5</td> <td>Ţ</td> <td>27</td> <td>2-18</td>		Feldburg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ	91/11	1615	6.35E-3	3.126-5	8	0 0 2 0	000	32	1.94E-4	9.53E-5	3.95E-4	5.12E-5	Ţ	27	2-18
D Feldberg, Germ - Boad Munoier, Germ 11/17 1545 8.75E-6 0 100 8 2 0 0 0 314 8 I Feldberg, Germ - Wasserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 100 8 0 0 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Wasserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1623 C 0 100 4 0 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Hohn, Germ 11/18 1640 1.45F-3 0 100 4 0 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/19 1426 1.24E-4 0 100 4 0 0 0 0 164 Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng 11/19 123 0928 1.00E-5 0 100 6 0 0 0 164		Feldberg, Germ - Lindsey, Germ	81/11	0101	5.506-5	0	8	0 0 2 0	000	32	5.50€-5	7.62E-5	9.37E-5	7.62E-5	Ţ	28	2-19
I Feldberg, Germ - Wasserkuppe, Germ 11/18 1535 U 0 100 2 0 0 0 132 Feldberg, Germ - Hohn, Germ 11/18 1623 C 0 100 4 0 0 0 198 Feldberg, Germ - Hohn, Germ 11/18 1640 1.45F-3 0 100 20 0 0 0 198 Feldberg, Germ - Bonn, Germ 11/19 1426 1.24E-4 0 100 4 0 0 0 164 Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng 11/123 0928 1.00E-5 0 100 6 0 0 0 20 124	_	Feldberg, Germ - Bad Munider, Germ	11/11	1545	8.75E-6	0	8	820(000	314	9.75E-6	1.62E-5	1.87F-5	0	Ĩ	&	2-20
i Feldbery, Germ - Hahn, Germ 11/18 1623 0 0 100 4 0 0 0 198 i Feldberg, Germ - Gablingen, Germ 11/18 1640 1.456-3 0 100 20 0 0 0 528 1 i Feldberg, Germ - Gablingen, Germ 11/18 1640 1.456-3 0 100 20 0 0 0 528 1 i Feldberg, Germ - Bann, Germ 11/19 1426 1.24E-4 0 100 4 0 0 0 164 i Hillingdon, Eng 11/23 0728 1.00E-5 0 100 6 0 0 0 20 164	~	Feldberg, Germ - Wasserkuppe, Germ	81/11	1535	5	0	8	200	000	132	0	2.50E-6	4.12E-6	2.50E-6	ľ	28	2-21
Feldberg, Germ - Gablingen, Germ 11/18 1640 1.45E-3 0 100 20 0 0 0 0 528 1 * Feldberg, Germ - Bann, Germ 11/19 1426 1.24E-4 0 100 4 0 0 0 0 164 * Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng 11/23 0028 1.00E-5 0 100 6 0 0 0 92 1		Fektbery, Germ - Hahn, Germ	81/11	1623	c	0	8	4 0 0	000	198	0	5.12E-5	0	0	Ţ	30	2-22
Feldberg, Germ - Bann, Germ 11/19 1.24E-4 0 100 4 0 100 6 0 0 0 164 Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng 11/23 0928 1.00E-5 0 100 6 0 0 0 92 1		Feldberg, Germ - Gablingen, Germ	11/18	1640	1.456-3	0	8	20 0 0	000	528	1.455-3	2.886-3	1.93E-3	1.516-3	4	23	2-23
1 Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng 11/23 0928 1.00E-5 0 100 6 0 0 0 0 92 1		Feldberg, Germ - Bann, Germ	61/11	1426	1.24E-4	0	8	4 0 0	0 0 0	164	0	0	1.256-6	0	4-4	g	2-24
	~	Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng	11/23	0928	1.00E-5	0	8	0 0 9	000	92	1.00E-5	3.00E-5	3.00E-5	8.75E-6	4	27	2-25
i Hillingdow, Eng - Croughtom, Eng 11/23 1515 2.65E-4 0 100 6 0 0 0 0 2 2 2		Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng	11/23	1515	2.65E-4	0	8	0 0 9	0000	62	5.46E-5	3.756-5	5.50E-5	5.37E-5	4	27	2-26

٩.

1.0

448 km x's'A

Table C-2. European Access Loops (Sheet 1)

187/188

.

Table C-2. European Access Loops (Sheet 1 Continued)

West Galerine

;

à

* +1.40T	2-27	2-28	2-29	2-30	2-31	2-32	2-33	2-34
N, 'S	\$	25	30	24	27	22	22	8
Sγ°¢ NH-zeinI	1	4	4	ľ	4	4	4-4	7
ا9-C 84ه	1.25E-6	2.00E-5	0	3.326-4	1.376-5	1.086-3	9.876-5	0
111-91 838	3.75E-6	1.87E-5	2.085-6	2.546-4	4.006-5	1.14E-2	1.256-4	0
19-130 Beg	2.50E-6	8.25E-5	1.00E-5	6.62E-4	4.62E-5	1.106-3	1.916-4	0
011-91 (9) 839	5.00E-6	1.125-5	٥	1.896-4	1.37E-5	1.066-3	4.706-5	0
. 43:0	256		146	860	860	266	20	88
х т р L R DIG.	1200000	00200	000009	00200	000200	4 0 0 0 0 0	000200	400000
918	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8
011-8 839	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
9€8 :∀) 9€8 :∀)	5.006-6	1.12E-5	0	1.896-4	1.37E-5	1.066-3	4.70E-5	0
Line	1645	1002	1028	1050	1705	1120	1145	1615
)مەھ	11/23	11,'23	11/23	11/23	11, 23	11/23	11/23	11/23
Location	Hillingdon, Eng - Croughton, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng - Chicksands, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng - Mild en hall, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng - Londonderry, N. Ire	Hillingdon, Eng - Londonderry, N. Ire	Hillingdon, Eng - Upper Heyford, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng - London, Eng	l'illingdon, Eng - London, Eng
(۱۰ ز	147	8	140	Ħ	1:18	1.12	1:13	91.1
a contra	2-27	2-28	2-29	2-30	3-3	2-32	2-33	2-34

189/190

N17.67

اعاند

Table C-2. European Access Loops (Sheet 2)

۰.

12

	-	5	ů	7	ý	Ŷ	ċ	œ	ē.	9	Ę	-12	-13	z.	-15	·16	-11	81.	61-	8	-21	ä	Ŗ	54	52
Toble 6	'n	'n	'n	'n	ά Υ	÷	Ņ	'n	ÿ	'n	ż	Ä	'n	ċ.	ч. У	ż	й 8	'n	'n		ά α			'	'n
Character.	-	2	1		2	•	9	2	~	-	5	2	2		2 2	9	я ч	-	-	-	-	· -	1 3	~	2
eni l	S	2	ŝ	•	2	Š	ŝ	1	Š	Š	1	z	5	Ś	^	Ś	^	S	Š	,	ŝ	ŝ	Ś	Ś	-
	Q AVO	V2 AVO	2 VCA	CA CA	V2 VCA	V2 LEG	ŋ	BRN	-2 BRN	2 BLN	2 BLN	⊢8 FKT 44UZ83-9 BL	S IN WBVN VI S	2 SGI	NHV [-	H12 FKT	1 VHN 44UMJ-24 KSL R HDG	9 LSY	10 TSY	6 BDM	-4 WSE	8 HAN	I GAB	VI BAN	/2 CRO
Routing	CLO PCTL V	CLO 905M	CLO SCUP	010 V	CLO 9CUT	CLO 9DUK	CLO UE	FEL 9A JF V2	FEL 44CZG2	FEL 9AUV V	FEL 9AUT V	FEL 44CMN8	FEL 44CZHI-	FEL 9CUW V	FEL 44CZHI-	FSL 44CMN8	FEL 44C2HI- SGT WFQM	FEL 44JMP1-	FEL 44JMP9-	FEL 44JZ81-	FEL 44JMN4	FEL 44 JM14-	FEL WF8L V	FEL WEGV	HIN 9ECY
kecorqu ð Lype of	ĩ	5	A-3	ł	ŝ	9 -5	A-10	ĩ	υ	F 2	3	۲V	1	ł	I	υ	€-4	υ	٩-١	A-9	υ	υ	υ	υ	A-8
kecording Location of	1-1,000	1-1,251	1-1,033	ı	1-1,270	1-1,070	1-1,445	2-1,370	2-2, 251	2-1,399	2-1,455	2-2,260	2-2, 300	3-1, 188	2-2,018	2-2,213	2-2,221	2-2,290	3-1,127	3-1,056	3-1,183	3-1,211	3-1,218	3-2,000	3-2,009
Pictures		8		ı	9				,	y		ų		,		,					,		ğ		
00	•	•	` 0		•	` 0	۰ ٥	` 0	- 0	ч е	~	~. 0	` 0	` 0	0	` 。	•	` 0	• •	× 0	` 0	`	` 0	` 0	•
67	0	0	Ŷ	•	~	0	0	37	8	59	କ୍ଷ	۰	0	0	0	0	0	m	-	0	0	•	0	0	4
3	-	-	٥	1	13	o	•	214	408	294	8	14	0	0	٥	0	58	161	-	-	0	•	0	0	ŝ
28	2	ŝ	7	1	48	0	•	478	699	ខេត	357	26	0	0	Э	0	1309	879	9	2	0	•	0	•	Ŷ
ын 50₀	•	•	0	ī	0	0	0	ო	13	0	3	0	0	0	٥	0	0	-	0	0	•		•	0	0
6+ нө	•	0	0	١	0	0	0	0	0	-	-	•	8	0	21	0	61	7	0	•	0	•	0	•	0
%ан	2.03	2.	5	.95	8,	4	.45	.49	.70	0	1.12	.32	Ŀ.	3.	1.09	.35	\$.87	.70	19.	.42	3.	٩.	.38	Ę
HD 34	ş	Ŧ	S	\$	F 3	48	47	47	8	8	ŝ	8	4	\$	48	49	45	49	4	\$	48	4 8	48	49	48
HD 3M	4	ន	¥	4	\$	5	S	z	\$	8	42	8	47	R	4	65	8	42	20	49	57	49	60	57	6 0
°L9	\$	Ŷ	*	4	4	0	0	~	ŝ	80	ŝ	e	ç	Ŷ	e	-	4	e	-	7	7	-	٧	-	ŝ
(2H71 [) N/S	Ř	36.5	36.5	35.5	¥	\$	57	S.	R	32	Я	38	*	×	41	47	3.16	ន	\$	Į.	4	49	42	45	37
(alad) N/S	T	4	39.5	*	49.5	65.5	65.5	35.5	30	30	38.5	37	42	45	42	48.5	R	32	¥	4]	স	ጽ	6 4	46	4
(#H4 1) 5507 9017	T	-7	0	?	ኖ	0	0	-	-	2	٥	s	-	ግ	-	0	7	2	0	-	-	0	۲	0	¢
(Dota) (Dota)	٣	ï	0	7	- ⁷	0	0	-	7	2	٢	s	7	7	7	-	٥	2	0	-	-	~	٣	-	-
لمعانوم (۱۹۹۰ره)	CLO-AVO	CLO-AVO	CLO-VCA	CLO-VCA	CLO-VCA	CIC-LEG	CIO-LEG	LEL-BRN	FEL-BRN	LEL-BLN	18-13 I	NTO-T3.	FEL-SGT	FEL-SGT	FEL-VHN	FEL-FKT	FL-HDG	FEL-LSY	FEL-LSY	FEL-BOM	FeWSE	FEL-HAN	FEL-GAB	FEL-BAN	HIN-CRO
Call V	-	18	e	19	8	ŝ	26	20	16	7	ц	8	7	124	75	26	8	8	911	110	123	125	126	137	138
* əldəT	5	2-2	2-3	ž	2-5	۶ 2	2-7	2-8	2-9	2-10	F-7 -7 -191/	2-13 192	2-13	2-14	2-15	2-16	2-17	2-18	2-19	2-20	2-21	2-22	2-23	2-24	2-25

-1 P.

-• • • مب

كالنكنك

and the first of the second second second

A marked and a set of a set of

	↓ •idoT	12 0		/7-7 000 0	87-7	67-7		10-7 10-7	2-32 2 22	7 7 7	5
	Line Choracter, Comments	5	5 5	5 5	7 5	ז א 2	5 5	⊼ a	5 5	2 2	}
	Routing	HIN 9ECX V2 CRO	HIN 33 IMP3-10 CBO		HIN SUME V2 MIL		HIN OBILY V2 LDB	HIN SUND SI THO	HIN SDCI VO TON	HIN 33EMAS-10 LDN	
	Type of Recording	4	U	1	, s c	₹-9			-4-10	: : U	
1200000	Location of Recording	3-2,113	3-2, 142	3-2.027	3-2.041	3-2.046	3-2,150	3-2.066	3-2.075	3-2,136	
	Types of Pictures	<	<	<	•	٩	•	4	•	<	
	ca	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	¢	o	
	67	4	-	0	0	ę	e	26	0	0	
	63	10	2	0	2	50	91	88	0	0	
	59	315	ه	0	5	35	6	74	0	0	
	6H 506	•	0	0	0	•	0	0	C	c	
	6н +3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
	%ан	8 5.	8.	8.	.40	1.49	.55	8.	1.14	.13	
	HD 3'9	45	58	40	51	æ	8	4	ጽ	60	
	HD 549	\$8	8	52	5	4	4	\$	2	61	
	°L9	Ŷ	2	0	-	e	2	\$	s.	2	
	(ZH3 L) N/S	ጽ	ଞ	50.5	\$	37	&	32	5 4	45	
	(0400) N/S	37	జ	5	3	38.5	36.5	38	42	42	
	(2H1 [) ssoj au[]	7	~	e	7	0	,	0	~	m	
ļ	(Dato) (Dato)	2	2	٥	0	2	-	7	e	4	
	Location. (Abbrev.)	HI 4-CRO	HNACRO	HI-LCKS	11W-7 II		H-LDR	HU-NH	HINHLDN	HINFLON	
	Call 🖌	145	147	<u>8</u>	140	Ŧ	148	142	2	¥	
	V able V	2-26	2-27	2-28	2-29	2-30	2-31	2-32	2-33	3-35	

and a set of the

Table C-2. Euro

WEDDOWN 4.

The state of the second second

Sheet 1)
) soloon
Access
lemote
European I
TableC-3.

		•	-	_				-	•	0	-	2	e	4	5	\$	2	8	6	0		2	5	z	3	8
¶ eldo⊺	2	3-3	2	ĩ	. б	ŗ	£	5	ž	2	F	£	5	ጟ	ጟ	2	۲	ጟ	સ	3-2	42	2	3-2	32	4	3-2
N/S	a	8	ន	18	18	17	19	12	15	8	8	16	18	8	8	21	91	2	28	28	2 29	20	21	ង	38	23
Sync HiH-teit	6-5	1	1	. 5	2-2	4-2	Ξ	÷.	4	7-5	1	3-3	н. Н	1	1	1	1	4	ľ	ľ	1-21	ĩ	2-2	1	1	7-5
) ۵-۵۲ ۱۳۰۵	•	6.33E-3	7.50E-3	2.30E-2	3.27E-2	8.06E-2	•	4.758-2	1.716-1	1.276-2	4,496-3	4.80E-2	3.93E-2	4.66E-3	5.45E-2	3.99E-3	1.55E-1	7.326-3	2.50E→6	0	0	1.68E-2	,	2.386-3	1.836-4	1.825-4
111-91 838	•	5.821-3	5.77E-3	1.416-2	5.46E-2	6.40E-2	6.42E-2	4.236-2	2.06E-1	1.62E-2	4.596-3	3.62E-3	6.98E-2	4.93E-3	6.11E-2	5.39E-3	1.816-1	4.70E-3	5.00E-6	1.25E-6	0	2.17E-2	1.20E-2	3.086-3	9.265-4	2.19E-4
061-61 BER	2.65E-3	6.32E-3	1.04E-2	1.186-2	4.236-2	9.02E-2	•	5.83E-2	,	1.216-2	5.41E-3	3.62E-3	4.59E-2	4.976-3	5.43E-2	7 .44 E-3	1.576-1	4.046-3	1.66E-5	0	0	4.SIE-2	1.26E-2	2.64E-3	3.316-4	2.006-4
011-91 (8) ¥38	2.80E-3	5.896-3	5.366-3	1.266-2	3.46E-2	7.796-2	6.38E-2	4.94E-2	1.586-1	1.43E-2	2.67E-3	3.73E-2	3.77E-2	2.926-3	4.30E-2	1.36E-2	1.406-1	3.67E-3	1.75E-5	2.12E-5	•	1.60E-2	1.05E-2	2.29E-3	1.046-4	1.365-4
45!Q	16.88	2012	28:38	2838	4460	4460	4460	7316	3888	2392	2392	·	ı	١	١	۰	۱	486	229	934	Ś	2076	1474	1474	1344	776
۲C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7	0	0	•	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ר ר	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	\$	•	0 2	0 2	4	4	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	с С	0	0
1	v	8	2	2	16	ې او	2	ຂ	2	8	8	2	0	8	2	Z	2	0	0	0	0	0	õ	0	~	0
٤	•	4	4	4	22	22	22	4	24	4	4	7	5	2	2	~	4	01	Ŷ	32	R	ጽ	28	28	8	58
918	87	95	86	11	1	،	•	67	•	8	68	62	ឌ	98	57	16	13	8	8	8	8	8	•	8	8	86
956 8-110	2.67E-4	1.446-3	7.50E-6	9.75E-5	ı	ı	ſ	4.956-4	2.67E-2	1.876-5	5.37E-5	4. IOE-4	2.31E-4	5.25E-5	4.81E-3	2.95E-3	2.44E-2	1.37E-5	0	3.756-6	0	5.00E-6	,	0	0	6.25E-5
(A) 838 011-01	2.80E-3	5.89E-3	5.36E-3	1.266-2	3.46E-2	7.795-2	6.38E-2	4.94E-2	1.586-1	1.436-2	2.67E-3	4. 88E-2	3.77E-2	2.92E-3	4.30E~2	1.36E-2	1.40E-1	1.066-2	1.75E-5	2.126-5	0	1.605-2	1.05E-2	2.296-3	1.04E-4	1.366.4
لأسو	1105	1318	1410	1550	1325	1336	1425	1635	1205	1620	1113	0060	0955	0955	1125	1040	1220	6160	:025	1047	1250	1340	0630	0648	1707	1420
ə4c.j	11/4	01/11	01/11	01/11	81/11	81/11	11/18	11/26	11/5	01/11	11/11	11/11	11/11	11/11	91/11	81./11	11/23	11/16	91/11	91/11	91/11	11/16	81/11	11/18	11/26	12//2
Location	Colhano, Italy - Athens, Greece	Colhano, Italy - Iraklion, Crete	Colhano, Ihaly - Ankara, Turkey	Colhano, Italy - Ankara, Turkey	Fel dber g, Itoly - Ankara, Turke _y	feldb e rg, Itoly - Ankaro, Turk _s y	Feldberg, Italy - Ankara, Turkey	Hillingdon, Eng - Ankara, Turkey	Coltano, Italy - Tarrejon, Spain	Coltano, Italy - Tarrejan, Spain	Colrano, Italy - Tarrejan, Spain	Coltano, Italy - Sidi Yakia, Morrocco	Coltano, Italy - Sidi Yahia, Morrocco	Coltano, Italy - Sidi Yahia, Morrocco	Feldberg, Germ - Dye 5, Iceland	Feldberg, Germ - Dye 5, Iceland	Hillingdon, Eng - Keflavik, Iceland	Feldberg, Germ - Ree se- Augsburg, Gorm	Feldberg, Germ - Ramstein, Germ	Feldberg, Germ - Croughton, Eng	Feldberg, Germ – Laken Heath, Eng	Feldberg, Germ – Vicenzo, Haly	Feldberg, Germ - Vicenza, Italy	Feldberg, Germ – Vicenza, Itały	Hillingdon, Eng – Bremerhaven, Cierm	Hillingdon, Eng - Spangdohlem, Germ
Coll 🖡	80	09	ډ	63	118	611	120	182	21	2	68	65	\$	67	\$	117	144	82	2	33	87	88	114	115	8	226
¶ ∍idu⊺	3-1	3-2	с. С.	3- F	3-5	3-5	3-7	3-3	3-0	3-10	ີ ເມື	ट्र इ∕1'	% 3-13	3-14	3-15	3-16	3-17	3-18	3-19	3-27	3-21	3-22	3-23	3-24	3-25	3-26

i Neo

a sum a static da la su a su da s

Material

25.0

in a state of the second s

وأجادته المنارك والمرا

- **F**

ſ

1	i																	
Toble	ž	3-2	3-3	Ţ	3-5	ę	5	3-8	Ъ,	3-10	3-11	3-12	3-13	3-14	3-15	3-16	3-17	3-18
Comments													7		~			_
Line Chorocter	5	5	22	5	•	•	5	5	5	5	8		5	5	א ז	ß	SI	5 2
	V2 MRE 9CWZ V2 PAT	v2 MRE PAI	/2 MRE 9/CXD 53 PAT IK	3 MRE 9CXE S3 PAT K	MRE PAT 9CSD	PAT ANK	PAT ANK	2 HUM - MRE - 2 ANK	2 DON 9DGC 53	72 WRE 9CHX S3 HUM	nz MRE - S3 HUM V	E HUM SYH	r2 MRE - 53 HUM 1	72 MRE - 53 HUM	MAM 33JTD2-3 DIC	MAM 33JTD2-11 DIC	2 MAM 98QJ V2 KEF	LKF 44CMM5-6 GAB G
Routing	CLO 9CVN 9EPK V2 ATH	CLO 9CVN	CLO 9CVN	CLO PCVR S PCSE V2 AN	FEL 9CEX V2 S3 ANK	FEL MRE	FEL MRE	HIN 9CMC	CLO 9CVT V	CLO 9CVN 1	CLO 9CVN 1	CLO MR	CLO 9CVN 1	CLO 9CVN V 9BXJ V2 RTA	FEL 34JZB3-8	FEL 34JZA6-3	HIN 9CMF V	FEL 9AAF V2 WC5M V1 RA
Recording Type of	A-5	A-1	A-3	A-4	r	,	•	ı	Б. Г.	A-5	A-8	ı	·	A-7	۲-4	Ъ2	υ	A-9
lo cotiosol Bribioses	011,1-1	2-1,110	2-1,136	2-1,197	•	•	ı	•	61E'1-t	2-1,223	2-1,288	•	ı	2-1,250	2-2,176	3-1, 152	3-2,098	2-2, 121
Types of Pictures	۷	AB	A ^B C	AD	ı	•	٩	ABD	A8	AC	۲	۵	ABC	AB	AC	۲	AC	ABC
oa	~	•	ŝ	۰	•	۰	ı	·	•	0	2	ı	2	•	18	•	8	•
¢,	94	~	59	§	ı	•	ı	•		135	44		184	\$	259	75	907	42
ß	167	۶I	233	4	·	•	ı		,	754	213	•	950	286	Å	545	2007)	70
58	708	6001	1573	1355	•	•	,	•	•	1732	1371	•	1854	1733	1613	1712	£791	253
-02 114	4	•		-						e	~		•	~	_	5	_	<u>ب</u>
54 40	2	-	~	0				•		0	-		0	•	2 5	0	ч С	6 0
%ОН	\$	2.04	1.26	7. N	ı	ı	۲.	2.29	0	1.61	1.18	•	<u>8</u>	14.1	.45	8.	6 .1	- 9
HD 3rg	48	35	38	38	•	ł	43	6 E	8	38	4	·	ŧ	4	8	49	35	48
нр 2мд	\$	40	42	4	·	•	8	8	P	40	40	•	9	\$	47	4	Ŧ	8
۹۱ _۵	~	۰	01	10	·	•	12	91	25	2	8	١	2	13	13	Ξ	8	2
(zhà l) N/S	\$	õ	28.5	30	ı	ŧ	25	25	61	8	8	•	28	\$	25	8	17.5	ŝ
(04 0 0) N/S	8	54	27.5	31.5	,	ŧ	24	24	18	27.5	31.5	T	27	99	8	8	17.5	8
(1 KHz) 1 KHz	\$	e	80	Ŷ	•	•	=	=	13	0	Ŷ		•	ø	ę.	•	13	÷
Line Loss (Data)	0	ŝ	\$	Ś	4	•	Ξ	13	7	Ξ	2	•	9	Ŷ	7	-	2	\$
لوهاوم (<u>Abbrev.)</u>	CLO-ATH	CLO-IRK	CLO-ANK	CLO-ANK	FEL-ANK	FEL-ANK	FEL-ANK	HIN-ANK	CLO-TJN	CLO-1JN	CLO-1JN	сго-уүн	сго-зүн	CLO-RTA	FEL-DIC	FEL-DIC	HIN-KEF	Fel-RAG
C°II ،	œ	99	61	63	118	÷	120	182	3)	3	68	65	8	67	8	112	¥.	8
, -1901	3-1	3-2	3-3	T.	3-5	9	3-7	3-8	9-C	3-10	3-1	3-12	3-13	۹. ۲	3-15	3-16	3-17	3-18

Table C-3. European Remote Access Loops (Sheet 2)

Ē

197/198

677515111

Ĩ

. 3*

Table C-3. European Remote Access Loops (Sheet 2 Continued)

Ι.

فمكما أنصل

1 eldeT	3-19	3-20	3-21	3-22	3-23	3-24	3-25	3-26
rtnemmoD				ສ				8
Line Character,	5	51	51	5	ı	5	5	12
Routing	FEL 44JMQS-11 LKF 44CMJ4-3 DON WGNL VI RSN	FEL 34JMAA-4 HIN 9GIN DI CRO	FEL JUMMA-4 HIN WEFV VI LAH	FEL 9CUY S3 CLO 9CUM V2 VCA	FEL 9CUX V2 CLO 9DGB V2 VCA	FEL 9CUX V2 CLO 9DG8 V2 VCA	HIN 9ACJ S3 FEL 44CZGI-4 BRN	HIN 9ADP S3 LKF 9CJN V2 SCH 9BRM: SPM
Recording Type of	A-10	U	U	۰	ı	A-10	₹ V	A-5
Location of Recording	2-2,146	2-2,170	2-2,207	1	,	3-1,102	4-2,030	140'1-5
Types of Pictures	۲	٩	۷	Aß	•	۲	۲	AB
٥٥	-	۰	0	•	•	-	0	~
67	0	e	0	•	•	1883	e	172
ß	0	e	0	·	ı	1993	°.	80
59	\$	4	0	•	•	1941	=	228
6H 300	o	0	0	1		0	Ŧ	4
6+ нэ	-	•	•	ł	•	4	-	e
% 0н	.57	IE.	С¥.	.45	١	28.	.32	1.19
HD 3'9	\$	57	48	8	٠	43	51	\$
HD 5~9	ŝ	5	Я	4	,	41	38	4 8
°Lq	-	v	4	7	•	ŝ	S	2
(ZHY L) N/S	37	£	42.5	25	1	32	8	32
(a)a) N/S	\$	4	43	27	۱	ខ	37	ጽ
(גאא ו) נגאא ו)	-	-	e	12	٠	S	Ŷ	10
(Data) Line Lots	~	.	4	12	2	\$	Ŷ	9
roiteau) (.verddA)	FEL-ISN	FEL-CRO	FEL-LAH	FEL-VCA	FEL-VCA	FEL-VCA	HIN-BRN	HIN-SPM
e tieo	æ	85	87	8	1	115	ã	226
1 •IdoT	3-19	3-20	3-21	3-22	3-23	3-24	3-25	3-26

PERSONAL PROPERTY AND

- - - -

199/200

Toble * N/S	25 4-1	25 4-2	30 4-3	20 4-4	28 4-5	4 8	28 4-7	19 4-8	25 4-9	25 4-10	27 4-11	27 4-12	28 4-13	25 4-14	22 4-15	22 4-16	22 4-17	25 4-18	22 4-19	21 4-20	22 4-21
27nc	-4 3-3	-5 5-5	4-4	: -3 5-5	-4 4-4		-4 4-4	:-3 6-5	-1 5-5	5-5 4-4	1	5-5	5-5 4-4	-4 +4	11 1	:-3 6-5	5-3 3-3	5-3 5-4	-3 4-4	E-2 5-5	5-4 4-4
966	1.805	5 4.50E	5 0	3 9.6IE	1.97E	4 1.21E	4 3.20E	3 3.67E	1 1.336	1 2.29E	5 7.50E	1.875	5 6.37E	t 7.35E	¢ 4.60E	3 6.59E	3 3.69E	4 1.23E	3 5. 4 3£	2 7.NE	4 7.226
111-91 838	1.19E-4	3.12E-5	4.506-2	9.72E-0	5.02E-4	3.44E-	1.926-4	2.156-2	1.706-:	3.34E-	1.37E-	1.25€-€	1.87E-	7.12E-	5.66E-4	6.25E-	4.27E-	6.86E~	6.05E-	4.43E-0	1 9.96E~
19-130 Bee	1.22E-4	2.30E-5	0	3.72E-3	6.76E-4	1.075-4	4.365-4	1.95E-2	2.27E-4	2.08E-4	3.62E-5	8.75E-6	3.665-4	7.84E-4	3.60E-4	1.06E-2	2.37E-3	7.84E-4	7 .57E- 3	3.84E-2	1.21E-4
011-91 (87839)	1.40E-4	7.00€-6	0	5.916-3	1.11E-4	5.516-4	5.19E-4	2.48E-3	8.056-4	B.72E-4	6.25E-6	6.255-6	5.25E-5	1.01E-3	1.08E-3	6.96E-3	2.40E-3	2.%E-4	1.07E-2	4.51E-2	4.56E-4
رد ۱۹:۰۹	[% 0	0 %1	0 421	1 2119	1 2119	1 2119	0 1024	0 1788	0 961	0 %	0 421	0 421	0 446	0 446	1 3078	, 1	1 2119	1 2119	0 1788	0 2648	196 0
	0	0	0	e	n	ო	0	-	•	0	0	۰	0	0	2	•	e	e	-	0	•
0	0 0	0 0	0 0	4	4 0	4	3 3	4	0 0	0 0	0	0 0	2 1	2 1	52	י י	4	4	4	6 1	0 0
٤	23	23	13	-	-	-	8	91	23	23	13	13	•	9	-	•	-	-	16	କ୍ଷ	23
918	8	8	8	2	8	8	8	8	8	67	8	8	8	8	8	87	8	8	8	%	16
011-8 838	2.50E-6	1.32E-3	0	1.506-5	1.256-6	4.516-4	6.25F-5	0	1.00E-5	7.50E-6	0	0	0	1.706-4	1.25E-5	3.50E-5	2.50E-6	0	2.50E-6	3.64E-4	6.25E-5
(A) 938 011-51	1.406-4	7.005-6	0	5.91E-3	1.116-4	5.51E-4	5.19E-4	2.486-3	8.05E-4	8.72E-4	6.255-6	6.25E-6	5.25E-5	1,01E-3	1.08E-3	1.35E-2	2.405-3	2.%E-4	1.07E-2	4.516-2	4.565-4
əmiT	1445	1515	1330	1545	06.60	1145	1645	1035	1448	1550	0111	1435	1530	1040	1630	1245	86.80	1115	0560	1140	1413
910C]	8/11	8/11	61/11	8/11	6/11	6/11	8/11	6/:1	6/11	6/11	11/15	11/15	11/15	61/11	11/15	61/11	11/24	11/24	11/24	61/11	11/24
	- Hillingdon, Eng	- Hillingdon, Eng	n- Hillingdon, Eng	- Hillingdon, Eng	n - Hillingdon, Eng	m - Hillingdon, Eng	n - Hillingdon, Eng	g - Coltano, Italy	g - Coltano, Iraly	g - Colhano, Ihaly	g - Coltano, Italy	g - Caltario, Italy									
Location	Coltano, Italy	Caltano, Italy	Feldberg, Gem	Colhano, Italy	Coltano, Italy	Coltano, Italy	Coltane, Italy	Caltano, Italy	Coltano, Italy	Caltano, Italy	Feldiverg, Gerr	Feldberg, Gen	Feldberg, Gerr	Feldberg, Ger	Feldberg, Gen	Feldberg, Gen	Hillingdon, En				
* 110D	37	8	135	ą	1	8 4	4 2	\$	8	52	72	76	R	621	80	133	149	153	151	131	155
1 oble 1	1	-2	-3	1	t- 5	ĩ	۲7	8-	t-9	t-10	Ē	t- 12	⊢ 13	14	115	4-16	4-17	1 18	≁ 19	27	1-21

「「「「「「「「「「「「「「」」」」」」

中国におってあるとないようではないです

1.000

and the second secon

and the state of t

「二、「「「「「「」」」」

Table C-4. European One-Way IST Calls (Sheet 1)

¶ ●IdoT	1	-1	1	1	4-5	4	+1	4	4	4 10	14	4-12	4- 13	41	4-1 5	4-16	4:1	4 18	4-19	4-20	4-21
Line Charocter, Comments	5	. 7	; 9	5	22	З	я	V2 27	١	15	З	2	53	α	5	5	5	V2	5	5	5
Routing	HIN 9ACF 53 FEL 9CUX V2 CLO	HIN PACE SI FEI PCVD SI CLO	HIN 9ACF S3 FEL	HIN 9CMM 53 HUM 9CHL 53 MRE 9CVR 53 CLO	HIN 9CMP S3 HUM MRE 9CVS S3 CLO	HIN 9CMN 53 HUM MRE 9CVM V2 CLO	HIN 9CMA 53 MAM 9DTY V2 DON 9CVU V2 CLO	HIN 9AEC V2 MRE 9DGF 53 CLO	HIN 9ACH 53 FEL 9CUN 53 CLO	HIN PACG S3 FEL 9CUW 53 CLO	HIN 9ACF 53 FEL	HIN 9ACL S3 FEL	HIN 9CLM S3 MAM 9CKD S3 FEL	HIN 9CLL 53 MAM 9EPR V2 FEL	HIN 9CMT V2 HUM 9DQV V2 DON 9CFC V2 FEL	HIN 9CMR 53 HUM DON 9CFB V2 FEL	CLO 9CVN V2 MRE HUM 9AEF S3 HIN	CLO 9CVN V2 MRE 9AEG 53 HIN	CLO 9CVN V? MRE 9AEA V2 HIN	HIN 946A V2 MRE 9CEP V2 FEL	CLO 9CUY 53 FEL 9ACF 53 HIN
Type of Recording		٩-١	4-9	A-2, 3	i-v	ł	A-4	A-2,3,4	A-5,6	A-8	A-1	A-2	A-3	A-6	A-4	A-8	ł	A-2	A-1	A-7	A-3
Locotion of Recording		1-2,108	3-1,489	1-2,180	1-2, 293		1-2,246	1-2,351	1-2,457	2-1,000	2-1,426	2-2,035	2-2,059	3-1,341	2-2,087	3-1,450		3-2,209	3-2,158	3-1,401	3-2,258
Types of Pictures	ABC	Aß	۷	ABC	AD	٩	٩	٩	I	AB	∢	٩	٩	٩	٩	۲	٩	۲	AC	۲	۷
00	•	0	0	a	0	0	0	0	ر،	0	-	0	0	2	0	-	•	0	-	•	-
67	\$	13	¢	8	Ŷ	7	20	•	¢	6	2	•	o	ନ	8	12	6	16	7	286	e
63	42	1	0	103	24	10	86	64	-	17	n	Э	27	8	310	521	IE	911	5	1385	2
59	52	61	•	215	89	62	320	1275	ы	82	ო	•	49	203	1442	759	127	498	8 %	816	13
PH 200	-	0	0	8	0	•	2	ø	0	-	0	0	•	e	0	m	0	3	2	62	-
€+ нЭ	•	¢	0	-	0	0	0	0	o	0	-	0	0	0	0	33	0	-	•	0	0
%ан	.55	.42	.25	1. Ł	1.70	1.41	.32	.63	69.	8.	.25	8.	4 .	.72	1.12	68.	.67	.55	84	2.70	8.
HD 3'9	ନ	51	55	37	ጽ	\$	ନ	\$	45	\$	55	51	8	45	\$	4	4	8	42	\$	8
HD 3 ^{wq}	4	8	55	8	4	9	8	8	4	52	55	8	9	47	4	8	53	47	5	32	55
٥ ^٢ ٩	~	2	-	~	\$	÷	~	12	Ξ	12	4	4	9	30	\$	12	Ŷ	ŝ	01	13	~
(ZHN () N/S	\$	33	육	37	8	ጽ	<u>8</u>	ନ୍ଥ	41.5	32	47.5	45.5	æ	R	29	25	3	33.5	33	27	35
(999) N/S	35	37	¥	6	6 6	8	2	R	41	\$	46.5	4	35	16	\$	23.5	34. 5	¥	35.5	8	ጽ
(2H3 [) 220] euij	7	٩	0	ī	ŝ	ŝ	7	ę	2	2	-	-	0	4	œ	4	P	en	7	-	-
ן (Doto) (ניסים)	T	،	-	ĩ	Ŷ	-5	m	e	~	e	-	0	-	4	~	ŝ	-5	4	۰ ع	-	3
Locetion (,verddA)	CLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	FEL-HIN	CLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	ÓLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	CLO-HIN	FEL-HIN	FL-HIN	FL-HIN	FL-HIN	FEL-HIN	I:EL-HIN	HIN-CLO	HIN-CLO	HIN-CLO	HIN-CLO	HIN-CLO
Coll 1	37	筹	135	\$	4	8	42	\$	ጽ	52	72	8	R	129	8	133	149	153	151	161	155
1 eldoT	1	4-2	+3	4	+5	4	4	ې 203	€ ↓ 1⁄20	01 4 4	4	4-12	4-13	4-14	4-15	4-16	4-17	1 18	4-19	4-20	4-21

Table C-4. European One-Way IST Calls (Sheet 2)

CLEAR Y THE RANGE STREET, STREE

and the second

Ĵ

¶ ∍¦d¤1	Y	5-2	5.5	I	5-5	Ĵ	5-7	3	5	5-10	ž	5-12	5-13	۲.	5-15	5-16	5-17	5-18	5-19	5-20	5-21	5 5-22	5-23	5-24	5-25	5-26
N, S	18	5	22	2	18	12	17	10	12	Ξ	19	01	18	=	2	5	61	15	61	15	2)	20	16	2	2
Sync Tries-Hits	4	-	4	1	5-5	-	ζ,	Ξ	4-4	Ξ	4-4	2-2	4-4	Ξ	44	1-1	4	1	4	-	1	Ξ	4	-	4	Ξ
ן ס-9ין פנא	8.21E-3	2.53E-1	4: 826-3	2.226-1	¢.57E-3	,	3.245-2	•	1,03E-2	2.512-1	4.42E-3	No Sync	1.85E-2	2,76E-1	2.60f-2	1.76[-1	1.826-2	1-311.1	1.616-2	1.651-1	4.66E-3	1.01E-1	1.286-2	1.36E-1	2.68E-3	3.99E-2
111-91 830	8.79E-3	۱	6.46E-3	,	3.95E-3	ι	2.02E-2	,	8.47E-3	,	4.72E-3	ı	1.686-2	ı	3.106-2	•	1.786-2	•	1.536-2	ţ	4.71E-3	١	1,37E-2	ł	2.836-3	ı
061-91 199	9,836-3	1	4.81E-3	ı	4.086-3	١	1.87E-2	ı	5.84E-3	١	3.69E-3	ı	1.45E-2	•	2.8!E-2	·	1.76E-2	,	1.66E-2	•	3.80E-3	١	1.286-2	ŀ	2.06E-3	,
011-91 (8/839	6.39E-3	2.04E-1	4.46E-3	1.926-1	4.02E-3	2.37E-1	2.4UE-7	1.87E-1	4.87E-3	2.44E-1	2.62[-3	2.66E-1	1.306-2	2.446-1	2.37E-2	1.516-1	1.61E-2	1.02E-1	1.336-2	1.34E-1	3.396-3	8.996-2	1.14E-2	9.34E-2	1.82E-3	3.71F-2
V TAT	0	,	0	•	0	•	0	ł	0	ī	0	۱	0	ŀ	0	١	٥	۲	o	۱	0	•	0	ī	0	۱
VI T ≜T	0	١	0	•	0	۱	د	ı	0	١	0	١	0	۱	0	۲	0	۲	0	١	0	ı.	0	ī	0	۱
10 TAT			0		•	•	°		0	•	0	•	0		5	•	2		2	`	2		Ĉ		2	
1 171	' G		Š		0		0		0		0		0	Ż	3		5	÷	0			Ì	0	÷	0	
S OTAN	0		۔ د		-		2		ñ	,	~		~		0		0	ì	0		0		0		0	,
LOIAN	2		5	,	0		0		0		0		0	,	0		0		0		0		0		0	
418 	3	1	8	,	8		8	1	8¢		8		8		86	1	8		95		8		8	•	8	
011-9 8(6	0	ı	0	·	1.756-5	•	0	•	1.12E-5	ı	0	ı	0	•	5.00E-6	,	1.37E-5	•	1.005-5	·	8.75E-6	•	1.256-0	•	0	۱
0((-9(∖∀≀ 838	6-396-3	2.046-1	4.46E-3	1.926-1	4.02E-3	2.37E-1	2.406-2	1.876-1	4.87E-3	2.44E-1	2.62E-3	2.66E-1	1.30E-2	2.446-1	2.376-2	1.516-1	1.616-2	1,026-1	1.33E-2	1.346-1	3.39E-3	8.97.R-2	1.146-2	9.346-2	1.826-3	3.71E-2
ခမ႑	2155	2218	1751	1805	1537	1601	1625	1648	2137	2158	2220	2240	2020	2040	1 050	2015	1944	2005	2123	2141	1551	1610	1650	1707	0261	1950
(Jeno)	12/1	12/1	12/1	12/1	11/30	11/30	06.11	11/30	12.'2	12./2	12/1	12/1	12.'2	12/2	12/1	12/1	12/2	12.'2	12.1	12/1	12/1	12/1	12/2	12/2	12 /1	12/1
	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hilfingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng	Hillingdon, Eng
Location	FI. Diemich, Md - (Ft. Dietrich, Md - i	Fr. Dierrich, Md - I	Ft. Diemich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md - 1	Ft. Dietrich, Md - I	Fr. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Fr. Dietrich, Md – 1	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Fr. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md - I	Fr. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, MJ -	F1. Dietrich, Md - 1	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dierrich, Md -	Fr. Diemich, Md -	Fr. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Fr. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md -	Ft. Dietrich, Md -
כייו ג	222	223	210	211	1 8	187	188	189	248	249	224	225	244	245	214	215	242	243	220	221	204	205	236	237	212	213
tokie *	<u>-</u>	5-2	5-3	5-4	5+5 5	ŗ	5-7	۶. ۲8	و-ر د	5-10	5-1	5-12	5-13	5-14	S-15	5-16	5-17	5-18	5-19	5-20	5-21	5-22	5-23	5-24	5-25	5-26

このかってきょうのです いいている かかち

and a state of the second state

1.14

All the second se

2

Trans - Atlantic Colfs (Sheet 1)

Toble C-5.

ŧ

12221219.71.71

Table C-5. Trans - Atlantic Calls (Sheet 1 Continued)

10000

	3	8	\$	30	16	32	ñ	z	35	8	37	38	39	ç	;	42	t 3	4	15	2	Т. •	13	10	50	51	52
1 eldoT	'	s. Y	Υ	Ŷ	2	5.5	Υ	Y	Ŷ	ų	Ŷ	Y	Y	si Y	Y	5	Υ	γ	s Y	Y	Υ	Υ	5	Y	Υ	Y
	1	Z	z	17	3	12	25	18	ន	17	24	2	23	2	61	15	20	15	12.	14	20	=	20	드	21	19
Sync Sync	1	1-1	4	Ξ	4	Ξ	4	Ξ	1	Ξ	4	-	4-4	Ξ	4-4	Ξ	4	1	4	1	4-4	1	4-4	1-1	2-2	4-4
ו 9-C מנא	1.58E-2	2.316-1	2.816-3	1.326-1	6.64E-4	6.30E-2	9 .94 E-4	3.35E-2	1,75E-3	ı	7.986-4	4,37E-2	1,496-3	5.07E-2	2.45E-3	6.73E-2),20E-2	1.346-1	3.94E-2	1-366-1	7.965-7	2.04E-1	2.51E-3	5.716-2	2.236-3	6.72E-3
111-91 866	1.69E-2	ı	2.086-3	1	5.756-4	•	9.08E-4	ı	1.316-3	'	7.85E-4	·	1.40E-3	•	3.655-3	ı	1.276-2	ı	3.53E-2	ı	9.336-3	t	2.716-3	·	2.45E-3	7.16E-3
19-130 856	1.615-2	•	1.176-3	•	1.81E-4	•	6.54E-4	ı	7.32E-4	ı	2.946-4	•	1.366-3	'n	4.37E-3	ı	1.32E-2	•	3.636-2		8.86f-3	•	3.236-3	1	2.05E-3	6.42E-3
19-110 BEK (B)	1.34E-2	1.29E-1	2.48E-3	7.49E-2	2.87E-4	3.67E-2	3.231-4	3.22E-2	3.35E-4	4.13E-2	7.10E-4	3.821-2	2.94E-3	4.081-2	5.22E-3	4.80E-2	1.06[-2	1.116-1	3.41E-2	1.40E-1	7.75E-3	1-3 48.1	4.05E-3	5.28E-2	i.65E-3	5.92E-3
V 1AT	0	•	0	•	0	0	~	2	-	2	-	~	-	7	0	•	0	0	¢	۰	0	0	0	¢	0	0
VI TAT	0	٠	0	•	o	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	¢	~	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
111 TAT	2	۱	7	•	-	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
I TAT	0	•	0	'	0	0	0	0	0	c	0	0	0	0	-	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	c	•
TAZJƏTUL	0	'	0	1	0	0	0	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	2	~	~	-	2	-	-
\$ OTAN	Ô	'	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C
LOIAN	۰ ۲	'	0	'	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	د د	0	0	0	с С	0	0	0	0	0
918	0	ľ	5	'	Š	ł	æ	•	2	•	ē	,	0	١	0	•	¢.	١	0	'	Ĺ.	١	ē	•	ſ	ğ
958 9110	7.506-6	•	0	·	0	ı	8.376-5	ı	0	•	0	•	4.505-5	ı	1.756-3	•	8.756-6	•	6.251-6	•	2.7214	•	ç	•	•	c
(A) 938 011-51	1.34E-2	1.296-1	2.486-3	7.49E-2	2.87E-4	3.67E-2	3.236-4	3.22E-2	3.35E-4	4.136-2	7.106-4	3.82E-2	2.94E-3	4.08E-2	5.22E-3	4.80E-2	1.06E-2	1.116-1	3.416-2	1.40E-1	7.75E-3	1.846-1	4.C5E-3	5.28E-2	1.65E-3	5.92E-3
Time	2030	2045	1520	1537	1424	1440	1710	1735	1401	1417	1755	1813	1437	1449	1918	1935	1541	1552	9061	1924	2045	2110	8171	1737	1453	1625
Date	12/1	12/1	12/1	12/1	12/2	12/2	11/30	11/30	12/2	12,'2	05,111	06/11	12/1	12/1	11,30	02/11	12/21	12/2	12/2	12/2	12/2	12/2	1771	12/1	12/2	12/2
	l- Hillingdon, Eng	1 - Hillingdon, Eng	1 - Hillingdon, Eng	t - Hillingdon, Eng	l - Hillingdon, Eng	l - Hillingdon, Eng	1 - Hillingdon, Eng	1 - Hillingdon, Eng	I - Hillingdon, Eng	! - Hillingdon, Eng	1 - Hillingdon, Eng	' - Hillingdon, Eng	l - Hillingdon, Eng	1 - Hillingdon, Eng												
Location	Ft. Dietrich, Md	H. Diehich, Md	Ft. Dierrich, Md	Ft. Diemich, Md	Ft. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Diemich, Md	Fr. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Dierrich, Md	Ft. Dietrich, Md	FI. Dietrich, Md	Fr. Dietrich, Md	Fr. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Dietrich, M	Ft. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Diemich, Md	Ft. Dietrich. Md	Ft. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Dienich, Md	FL. Dietrich, Md	Ft. Diet.ich, Md	Ft, Dierich, Md	Fr. Dietrich, Md	Ft, Dietrich, Md
دەוו 🖡	216	217	õ	203	229	230	061	161	227	228	152	631	200	201	194	195	2::2	2:1J	240	1172	2:16	2.47	2.38	239	182	234
V aldoT	5-27	5-28	5-29	96. 3	5-3)	5-32	5-33	S-34	5-35	5-36	5-37	5-38	5-39	5-40	Ī	542	5-43	5-44	5-45	-46 0	5-47	5-48	5-49	5-50	5-51	5-52

Purification of a second second

Les and the second

l "nido]	5.53	Y.Y	5-55	5-56	5-57	5-58	5-59	5.60	ž	5-62	j.
! N/S	15	51	13	ន	18.5	20	81	22	12	ũ	I
anys MiH-zaint	Ξ	1	Ξ	Ţ	Ξ	1	Ξ	1	2-2	1	Ξ
	1.056-1	1.866-3	5.27E-2	1.126-3	2.876-2	5.706-4	2.016-2	2.786-3	4.62E-2	1.426-3	1.456-1
111-91 839	•	2.396-3	,	1.926-3	•	4.126-4	•	3.056-3	•	1.38E-3	•
19-130 858	•	1.816-3	•	3.01 F-3	۰	2.32E-4	•	2.146-3	١	9.586-4	٠
011-91 011-91 011-91	B. 50E-2	1.12E-3	3.48E-2	6.54E-4	3.39E-2	4.246-4	1.976-2	1.736-3	4.25E-2	B.72E-1	B.25E-2
V 1AT		0	0	0	0	°	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	о О	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	0	0	•	0	•	•	- 0	•	- 0	•
TAZJƏTNI	~	-	~	_	2	_	2	-	~	_	8
\$ OTAN	e	0	0	0	0	c	0	0	0	0	0
IOTAN	0	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	G
Bib	•	8	٠	8	4	8	ı	8	ı	8	•
938 0/1-8	,	0	,	o	•	Ð	•	0	•	o	•
011-91 (V) 838	8.505-2	1.126-3	3.486-2	6.SKE	3.396-2	4.246-4	1.976-2	1.736-3	4.256-2	e.726-4	8.25E-2
[بسد	1640	1646	1705	1721	E#21	2133	2150	2030	2044	2056	2115
÷10()	i										
, 	12.2	17/21	12 '1	12.2	12,/2	11,30	06/11	02/11	02/11	12/1	1.2.1
	Hillingdon, Eng 12.2	Hillingdon, Eng 12/1	Hillingdon, Eng 12/1	Hillingdon, Eng 12/2	Hillingdon, Eng 12/2	Hillingdon, Eng 11/30	Hillingdon, Eng 11/30	Hillingdon, Eng 11/30	Hillingdon, Ens. 11/30	Hillingdon, Eng 12/1	Hillingdon, Eng
Lacoton	Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	Fr. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	Ft. Diewich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng			
Coll *	735 Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	206 Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	207 Fr. Cierrich, Nd - Hillingdon, Eng	238 Fr. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng 12/2	239 Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng 12/2	198 Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng	199 Fr. Dierrich, Nd - Hillingdon, Eng 11/30	196 Fr. Diewich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng 11/30	197 Fr. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng 11/30	218 Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng 12/1	219 Ft. Dietrich, Md - Hillingdon, Eng i2/1

Toble C - 5. Trans-Atlantic Colls (Sheet 1 Continued)

r

·····

i

ANT ANT AN ANT AND A CARDON

∎ topie	ž	5-2	5	Ţ	5-5	Ĵ	۲,	5-8	6-؟	5-10	Ē	5-12	5-13	5-14	5-15	5-16	5-17	5-18	5-15	5-20	5-21	5-22	2-23	5-24	5-25	5-26
stnemmoJ					80	\$	0				-															
Line Character.	5	5	5	5	5	Z 12	23	5	۶	5	23	17	2	5	S	5	SI	5	5	2	S	5	5	8	5	51
geoceang 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	NH 20 0440 CT1 4	- Some as 222	B FTD CED M88 V2 HIN	- Some os 210	5,A-6 FID POI 8242 V2 HIN	- Some of 186	7 FTD POT 8243 V2 HIN	- Some as 188	6 FTD POT 6243 V2 HIN	- Some os 249	5 FTD CED 8246 V2 HIN	- Some as 224	4 FTD CED 8247 V2 HIN	- Some as 244	10 FTD POT 8430 S3 HIN	- Some as 214	3 FTD POT 8430 S3 HIN	- Some or 242	3 FTD POT B432 S3 HIN	- Some os 220	5 FTD CED MAN STHIN	- Some as 204	10 FTD CED 8475 S3 HIN	- Some as 205	P FTD CED BABI S3 HIN	- Same os 212
, 1	×		¥		¥		¥		×		¥		*		¥		¥		¥-		Å		۲ ۲		¥	
ζοσοίου οί Κεσιαίου οί	5-1,058	I	4-2,397	ļ	4-2,052	ł	4-2,099	1	5-1,373	ł	5-1,071	ł	5-1,315		4-2,463	ł	5-1,289	1	5-1,038	ł	4-2,306	1	5-1,210	I	4-2,431	I
Typer of Pictures	۲	۲	AD	۲	AD	٩	AD	۲	۷	۲	AD	AD	۲	۲	<	۲	۲	۲	۲	۲	٩	۲	۲	۲	۲	۲
00	0	,	0	ı	ı		-	1	0	,	o	ı	0	,	0	ł	•	ı	0	,	•	,	0	,	0	ı
67	•	۰	0	ı	1	•	80	٠	æ	•	۰	۱	32	·	214	•	21	,	-	ı	0	1	15	ı	•	•
ន	e		e				16		10		8	1	7	ł	865		892	ı	585	ı	0	ı	33		2	
59	5211	•	467	·	ı	1	47	•	Z		157		269	•	874 19	•	839		14	ł	270	,	198		394	1
-07 H4	_		~				~		~		~		_		~		_		_		_		_		_	
6+ HO	0		-		,	,		•	•		0		0		0		0	•	0		•		õ	•	õ	;
	8	26	2	2	5	8	2	ę	8	Z	77	76	4	32	2	2	8	3	8	5	8	8	8	2	8	8
%0н	-		2.	*	2.	ň	-	ë.	-	4	-	'n	ŗ.	5.	4	8.	~	¢	-	ъ.	~	5.	-	4	<u>.</u>	.5 4.
HD 3'9	8	8	~	27	8	*	8	30	R	%	8	% ~	32	58	27	22	8	24	8	5	33	\$	3,	28	3	8
PHC UH	4	ਲ	ਲ	×	¥	6	4	ਲ	4	8	4	ਲ	ñ	2	ਲ	ĸ	7	4	8	S	4	4	ŝ	Ř	¥	R
010	<u>с</u> ,	=	s. S	v	~	2	8	2	ŝ	æ	ه	2	~	80	2	1	2	2	13	13	Ś	æ	?	13	5 6	2
(*H1 I) N/S	90	5 28	8	27	8	&	ۍ ع	30	35	•	32	30	82	27	24	22	5 35	2)	5 25	5 23	32	27	5 25	5 25	Ŕ	5 25
(2400) N/S	8	8	37	R	8	27	ģ	8	37	R	ង	28	ខ	28	*	27	ä	28	ġ	23.	33	8	33.	8	88	Ŕ
(1 KHZ) 5100 F012	-3	-	-	Ÿ	-	•	-7	1	ň	٦	7	ç	-	-7	-	7	2	٥	-	7	2	7	-5	Ŷ	e	\$
Line Loss (Dota)	m	e	-	-2	2	-	-	-7	٦	۲	0	0	-	-7	7	Ŷ	-	7	2	-7	2	•	\$	7	4	ŝ
Locotion (.verddA)	FTD-HIN	Luoped	FTD-HIN	bedoci	FTD-HIN	Looped	FID-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	looped	FTD-HIN	Looped	FTD-HIN	looped
Coll ،	Z	£	210	112	8	187	88	6 81	248	249	224	225	244	245	214	215	242	243	82 22	នេ	Ŕ	<u>3</u> 6	236	237	212	213
1 •IdoT	ĩ	5	I	I	ž	Ĵ	5-7	8 7,	6-S	5-10	15	5-12	5-13	5-14	5-15	5-16	5-17	5-18	5-19	5-20	5-21	5-22	5-23	5-24	5-25	5- 3

•

`**.**

Table C-5. Trans - Atlantic Calls (Sheet 2)

Ę.

							ļ															
* eld	- 11 0	noitaso (,vsiddi	(oto) tio (oto)	(ZH) Me Foss	(0400) N/	(ะหา () พ/	٥٢	D 349	רי <u>-</u> סיט	a A	н 50 ₀ £+ Н1	2		ć	ŗ	0	yp es of ictures ocotion of	6u ib 100a	ecorgiuð Abe ol		ine horacter, ittammo	oble 1
•1	2	۲¢	ן (נ וינ		⁄s	⁄s	6	н	л н		ง อ	~		2	6		רי שור 1	в	E L	Kouting	2 2 1	
5-27	216 F	FID-HIN	4	e	30	25	21	8	38 1	.26	0 0	ð	17	743	e	•	1-5	♦ 000		FTD CED B478 S3 HIN	5	5-27
-28	217 1	looped	s	•	25	22	1	8	۲ ۲	.55	1 1	•		•		•	۱ س	I		Some as 216	č	5-28
&-s	202 F	FTD-HIN	-	-	*	33	s	43	31 2	167	00		٩	-	-	•	1 4-2,	,280 A	۲	FTD CED 8482 \$3 HIN	12	5-29
-30	۲ gg	Looped	~	ı	26	30	2	47	25 5	5	•	•			ı	•	ן י	1		Same as 202	5	66-3
E.	4 62	FTD-HIN	-	0	R	35	5	42	34 2	сı.	0 0		0	0	Ċ	•	1-5-1	, 137 A	-1	FTD CED 8482 S3 HIN	21	5-31
5-32	1 053	bagad	-7	٣	8	8	2	35	27 4	18.	· ·	•				۹ ,	1	1		Same as 229	5	5-32
-33	5	FTD-HIN	2	2	35	R	4	42	35	.95	0 0	4	25	1	12	•	VD 4-2	, 135 A	60	FID CED 8485 S3 HIN	S	5-33
ъ К	1	Looped	-5	-7	\$	g	~	R	26 5	.32	י י	•				•	1	1		Same as 190	5	5-34
5-35	2:7 F	FTD-HIN	8	2	R	ន	4	4	33 2	Ę.	ပ ၀	~	8	0	0	۹ 0	י אין	, 116 A	Ŷ	FTD CED BABS S3 HIN	SI	5-35
8-3	2:18	looped	'	÷	,	,	ı	•	,	,	י י			,		'	1	1		Some as 227	•	5-36
5-37	192 F	FTD-HIN	2	~	36.5	33.5	¢	ę	35 2	8	0	. 4	Q	2	-	•	1 4-2,	, 154 A	6-1	FTD POT 8439 53 HIN	23	5-37
87-5	3	Looped	٦	-5	28	28	8	30	27 5	47	'	•			ı	4	1	1		Same as 193	5	5-38
2-39	200 F	FTD-HIN	2	0	8	я	\$	8	33	ч.	•	-	8	0	•	•	1 4-2	,257 A	<u>-</u>	FTD POT 8439 53 HIN	5	5-39
ĩ	201 f	Looped	-7	ę	38	\$	01	2	28 4	.45	•	•		•	•	•	1	1		Some as 200	5	5-40
Ĩ	194	FTD-HIN	'n	ŝ	37.5	32	\$	R	33 2	8.	0 0	4	-	33	28	4	4-2	, 176 A	-10	FTD POT 8438 53 HIN	51	Ī
Ĩ	5	baged	5	ŝ	8	34	Ξ	2	25 5	- 62	•	•		•	ı	۹	1	1		161 W. S. M.	5	ĩ
۲. ۲	1 22	FTD-HIN	4	4	33.5	25	2	42	40 1	.28	2 42	18	30 1£	â	21 3	•	1-5-1,	, 159 A	8	FTL: - POT 8434 S3 HIN	5	5-43
Ţ	ĩ	Looped	'n	ę	28	22	15	32	25 6	.15	•	•				•	-	1		Some as 232	5	Ţ
SF.	240 F	FTD-HIN	0	•	33	25	۵	28	•	8	0	181	8	2	0	•	10 S-1,	, 260 A	-2	FTD POT BUSI 53 HIN	5	Ĩ
ł,	241 1	looped	0	•	8	ន	=	8	24 7	.28	•	•				•	1	1		Same as 240	2	Ĵ
Ĵ	246	FID-HIN	-	0	8	8	~	8	32	ж .	•	5	3	Ξ	e	•	, <u>-</u>	A 543	5	FTD CED B477 S3 HIN	8	Ĵ
9	247 1	pedoor	T	T	32.5	34	20	27	24 7	R	•	•		•		•	•	1		Same as 246	5	5-48
ŝ	508	FTD-HIN	4	4	31	29.5	80	8	32 3	.53	0 0	ġ	15 12	245		۹ 	1 4-2,	, 363 A	- 2	FTD POI 2436 53 HIN	23 33	Ĵ
8	ŝ	padoon	7	-7	27	27	۰	8	5 7 4	10	•	•				•	1	ł		Same as 208	5	5-50
5-51	3	FTD-HIN	•	•	•	,	,	ı	,	,	•	•					1	1	,	FTD POT BU36 S3 HIN	ł	5-51
5-52	1 Sa	FTD-HIN	-3	-7	ĩ	27	13	42	30	8	•	18(۲ ع	151	3	•	2	, 185 A	6 -	FTD POT 6437 S3 HIN	SI	5-52

•IdoT	5-23	2.5	3-5		8	5-57	۲. 28	559	09-5		\$	ĩ	595	
Line Character, Conments	5	5	5	ļ	77	5	13	5	\$: !	۶	S	8	
Routing	Some as 234	FID - POI M35 ST HIN	NG3		FID CED BAX SA HIN	Same as 238	FTD CED B480 S3 HIN	Some as 198			Same as 196	FTD CED 8479 53 HIN	(mail: m 218	
Recording Ype of		ŶŦ	•	•	۹-۱	1	A-2	,			•	A-2		•
Location of Recording	ł	111 1-4		I	5-1,236	1	4-2,225		-	9.1.7-1	ł	5-1,019		ł
Types of Pictures	۸	đ	2 :	AB	۲	۲	۸	4		AD	٩	۲		¢
00	•	¢	>	•	•	•	o	1		•	•	0		
67		07	8		0	•	0			•	٢	0		
З	1	034	5	١	~	1	c		I	0	•	-		•
8	•		8	٠	1444	•	18	2	•	£	•	\$%		•
6H 500	,		ç	•	0	•	c	•	•	0	•	0		•
6+ нЭ	I	•	>	'	•	,	c	•	•	0	,	0	,	•
%ОН	5 13		2.23	4.61	1.68	4.99	5		A .C	3.07	5.47	16.1		5,47
HD 3'9	*	3	3,	27	ని	27	36	3 7	2	32	27	35	}	27
HD 5V9	8	5	40	ጽ	45	33		2	7	35	ğ	5	ł	ଛ
ه۱ _۵	9	2	12	8	Ŷ	æ	, u	`	4	Ŷ	~	<	•	~
(ZHY I) N/S	5	07	30	27	8	25.5		7	R	32	8	30.5	2.22	8
(0400) N/S	6	9	R	8	3	3 7 6		5 , 1	88	32	Я	5		&
(באא 1) נוחפ נסגנ		7	-	7	4		r 4	n i	m	ſ	4	, ,	v	2
Line Loss (Data)		7	-	-2	4		, ,	n	m	4	v	, ,	4	3
Location (.verddA)		pedog	NHOL	luoped	FTD-HIN		nobed	NIH-OLI	Loped	FTD-HIN			スピーシュ	pedocj
Coll و		â	8	207	97.0	3	427	8	<u>8</u>	8	107		817	219
*•IdoT		5-53	S-S	5-53	5		À.	5-58	5-59	5-60		ξ.	ž	i I

_

late self dail?

interkisionet is

101

di tata di

13 Dati

**

Toble C-5. Trans - Atlantic Colls (Sheet 2 Continued)

пр. . .

:

* s1./sT	ĩ	6-2	6-3	6-4	6-5	9- 0	6-7	6-9	6-9	6-10	1-0	6-12	6-13	6- Iz	6-15	6-16	6-17	6-18	61-9	6-20	6-21	6-22	62-9	6-24	6-25	6- 2
14/5	3	ž	52	17	23	18	3	18	25	ଟ୍ଟ	2	17	24	ଛ	8	36	22	8	*	ឌ	*	21	8	21	ង	8
sri li - za ist Trier-Hits	4	-	4-4	7	4.4	Ξ	Ţ	ī	4-4	Ξ	1	Ξ	1	Ξ	3-3	4-4	-	Ξ	1	Ξ	ļ	Ξ	1	Ξ	1	1
२-२। ४३१	5.94E-3	2.22E-1	3.786-4	1.016-2	5.69E-4	2.87[-2	3.61E-3	8.17E-2	3.366-4	1.586-2	1.506-3	5.94E-2	7.206-4	1.07E-2	2,155-4	1.165-4	4.386-3	۰	4.876-5	5.61E-3	1.166-4	9.47E-3	9.12E-5	4.82E-3	1-396-1	•
111-91 898	5.62E-3	ı	2.916-4	•	5.366-4	ı	2.836-2		3.23E-4	ı	1.946-3	•	7.965-4		1.665-4	1.196-4	ı	•	2.37E-5	,	9.87E-5	ł	1.126-4	•	1.87E-4	ı
061-31 866	5.30E-3	•	1.546-4	•	3.58E-4	ı	2.596-3	,	5.12E-5	۲	1.066-3	•	3.726-4	ı	1.216-4	7.60E-6	ı	•	2.756-5	,	4.00E-5	·	6.37E-5	ı	5.625-5	•
011-91 (8/838	1.24E-4	1.946-1	1.19E-4	8.76E-3	2.116-4	3.02E-2	1.686-3	6.295-2	5.126-5	1.336-2	8.90 E.4	5.74E-2	2.665-4	1.056-2	4.006-5	1.876-5	4.47E-3	3.206-4	6.62E-5	5.396-3	3.12E-5	9.385-3	5.00E-6	4.976-3	3.00£-5	8.81E-3
Ш ПАМАН	-	۲.	-	2	-	8	~	~	-	7	-	2	-	~	_•	-	(5)		-	2	0	0	0	0	0	•
н наман	0	•	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	5	0	0	3	0	0	-	2	0	0	•	0
т паман	0	۰	c	0	0	•	0	•	0	0	•	۰	¢	0		•	•		•	•	0	•	-	3	~	2
ITA2 J9THI	•	•	۰	0	•	0	•	0	Ŷ	•	•	0	0	Ŷ	•	•	•	•	0	0	0	0	•	0	0	0
ITA2 JETUI	0	0	•	•	0	0	•	¢	0	•	0	0	0	0	•	¢	0	•	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
sosa	0	0	0	0	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
918	8	ı	8	ı	8	ı	8	۱	<u>6</u>	•	8	١	8	•	8	8	ı	1	8	•	8	۱	8	•	<u>8</u>	•
011-8 338	3.50E-5	ı	0	·	0	ı	0	•	0	•	0	ı	ى	ı	c	0	ı	ı	0	•	0	•	0	•	0	•
(A) 938 011-81	1.246-4	1.946-1	1.196-4	8.76E-3	2.11E-4	3.02E-2	1.68E-3	6.29E-2	5.12E-5	1.33E-2	8.906-4	5.74E-2	2.66E-4	1.05E-2	4.00E-5	1.a7E-5	4,47E-3	3.206-4	6.62E-5	5.39E-3	9.12E-5	9.38E-3	5.00E-6	4.97E-3	3.00E-5	8.81E-3
Lime	1245	1307	1451	1512	1533	1555	1355	1112	1520	1535	1319	1335	1417	1440	1448	1604	1623	1310	1618	1637	1348	1407	1628	1640	1255	1315
βαie	12/14	12/14	12/14	12/14	12/14	12/14	12/15	12/15	12/16	12/16	91,/21	12/16	12/16	12/16	12/ 16	12/14	12/14	12/16	12/15	12/15	12/16	12/16	12/16	12/16	12/17	12/17
	r, Howaii	, Hawaii	, Hawaii	, Howaii	, Howoii	, Hawaii	, Hawii	, Hawaii	, Hawaii	, Hawaii	, Hawaii	, Howaii	, Hawaii	r, Hawaii	, Hawaii	, Howaii	, Howaii	, Hawaii								
Location	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Peorl Horbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Horbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Peorl Horbor	Stockten, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Peurl Horbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Horbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Colif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Shockton, Calif Pearl Horbor	Stockton, Calif Peerl Herbor	Stockton, Colif Pearl Horbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Peorl Horbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Peorl Harbor	Stockton, Calif Pearl Harbor			
¢ IIPO	278	274	285	286	28:1	268	300	300	326	32.7	319	320	32:1	324	325	280	290	318.4	ŝ	310	321	322	8	ŝ	35	336
° sidoT	l-9	6-2	6-3	1	6-5	Ŷ	6-7	6- 8	6-9	ó'-9	(-9 ,	6-12	6-13	6-14	6-15	6-16	6-17	6-18	6-19	6-20	5-21	6-22	6-23	6-24	6-25	6- 26
											4															

Table C-6. Irans-Pacific Colls (Sheet 1)

ĉ

.

9 8 6-3 3 €-9 6-32 6-34 6-37 6-38 6-39 6-28 5 5-3 6-3 ĩ ŝ 5 Ĩ 1 oldoT 3 5 18 ଛ 8 8 5 8 ង 8 8 8 ន 8 ន 9 8 N/S HiH-min 1 Ξ Ξ 4 Ξ 1 Ξ 2-2 3 Ξ I Ξ 1 1 Ξ 1 1 SYnc 6.00E-5 4.065-3 6.456-3 1.886-2 3.126-3 1.766-2 4.566-3 3.666-3 2.89E-4 3.836-0 1.126-3 1.46E-2 7.595-4 6 7.E-3 9.876-4 1.156-4 , 3-91 838 8.50E-5 5.586-3 9.84E-5 7.556-3 1.416-4 2.156-4 3.396-4 7.965-4 7.0014 111-91 888 1 1 1 • . ı. . 5.60E-3 9.376-5 9.00E-5 7.596-3 2.95E-3 1.516-4 9.386-5 6.84E-4 4.195-4 6.09E-4 021-91 1 1 , . , 858 2.25E-5 5.678-3 3.78E-3 5.25E-5 5.04E-3 6.37E-5 3.60E-3 4.386-3 1.296-4 6.46E-3 2.016-2 1.536-2 1.45E-2 2.35E-3 5.246-4 5.265-4 1.746-4 011-91 (8) 838 Coble Coble Coble 0 0 ç 0 C 0 0 0 0 0 c ш наман ¢ 0 II IIAWAH I IIAWAP II TASJETNI 0 TAZJETNI 0 SOSO 8 S 98 8 5 5 8 \$ 8 . d19 1.756-5 7.256-5 5.005-6 6.25E-6 1.716-4 2.506-5 2.505-6 . 0 , . , . 011-8 . 0 век 5.256-5 2.25E-5 7.376-3 1.31E-2 5.246-4 5.04E-3 3.60E-3 5.67E-3 1.295-4 3.78E-3 5.26E-4 2.01E-2 2.355-3 1.53E-2 1.45E-2 6.37E-5 1.746-4 (4) 838 (4) 1240 1300 1532 1600 1400 ENCL 1615 1430 1458 1319 131,7 1249 1324 1344 1640 1314 606 ∍mi1 12/15 12/15 12/15 12/16 12/16 12/13 12/13 12/14 12/15 12/15 12/14 12/17 12/17 12/13 12/13 12/15 12/15 91nQ Hawaii Hawaii Howaii Hawaii Hawaii Hawaii Hawaii Hawaii Hawoii Hawaii Hawaii Hawaii Hawaii Hawaii Hawaii Stockton, Calif. - Pearl Harbor, Hawaii Hawaii Stockton, Calif. - Pearl Harbor, Shockton, Calif. - Pearl Harbor, Stockton, Calif. - Pear: Harbor, Stockton, Calif. - Pearl Harbor, Stockton, Calif. – Fearl Harbor, Stockton, Calif. - Pearl Harbor, Stockton, Calif. – Pearl Harbor. Stockton, Calif. - Pearl Harbor, Stockton, Calif. - Peorl Harbor, Stacktan, Calif. - Pecrl Harbor, Stockton, Cutif. - Pearl Harbor, Stockton, Calif, - Pearl Harbor, Stockton, Calif. - Peorl Harbor, Location 318 267 26.8 80 303 ğ ŝ 317 2% <u>S</u> 202 33 88 270 28 ŝ 5 , 11°D 66-33 9E-9 6-31 6-32 56--9 97.9 6-12 6-28 67-9 9C-9 κ.-9 6-37 6--38 6--39 F 6-27 Ī I GE LE

1

11.0

Table C-6. Trans-Pacific Calls (Sheet 1 Continued)

Libellanning " a sa

6-13 6-15 6-16 61-9 6-10 ę- ۱۱ 6-12 <u>6-14</u> 6-17 6-18 2-2 2-3 2 2-2 7 **6-3** 6-5 9 6-8 6-9 6-21 2-5 2-5 3 Ĩ 1-1 1 aldol dinammo.D Chorocier. 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 S α 5 5 5 S З 5 8 רועה ST PHR STK --- SLO B304 S3 WAH KC41 S3 PHR SJ PHR 5TK --- 5LO B325 -- WAH KC41 \$3 PHR SH EX STK --- SLO B322 S3 WAH KC41 S3 PHR 51K --- 5LO 8303 53 WAH KC41 53 PHR SS PHR WAH KC41 S3 PHR 51K -- LOD 6390 S3 WAH KC41 S3 FHR PHR V2 WAH KCAT S3 PHR STK - LOD B360 S3 WAH KC41 S3 PHR 3 ¥04 STK --- SLU 8305 S3 WAH KC41 S3 WAH KCAL 8323 S3 WAH KC41 STK - LOD 8377 V2 WAH KC41 WAH Ø STK - SLO 8303 51K - LOD 8387 STK - LOD 8391 Same as 285 Some ns 287 Some as 302 Some as 278 Some as 319 Some as 326 Same 05 323 Some of 289 Same as 309 Same as 321 Some os 330 Some as 335 Reuting SIK | SIK | STK A-3 Recording 8-6 A-7 A-1 A-5 A-8 Ĩ ĩ å Ŷ ĩ I ا ۲۹۹ مر PI-2, 285 P1-2,093 P1-2, 181 P1-2,404 P2-1, 184 P2-1, 119 2-1, 163 PI-2,205 2-1,010 2-1,138 2-1,219 2-1,318 6 colding to noitosol Pictures ٩ æ đ ∢ • đ jo sedkj ОG 0 0 0 0 o \$ 0 3 59 242 22 133 269 8 ĝ ĝ 2 7 X 5 0 6H 300 0 C CH +3 0 C a 8 2.50 3,28 2.12 4 8 2.81 4.75 8 3.35 ٩. 3.78 6.0 2.88 <u>8</u> 8. 8 2.45 6 :05 8 6 4Da² PIE OH R 8 4 ę 2 g 2 2 e 2 22 2 Ş ä £ g X 2 2 ድ 8 3 5 ç S ŝ 5 2 2 ç PVZ OH s 2 6 33 ہ ا (ZH14) N/S 80 8 8 g æ 8 8 28 5 2 5 2 S R \$ 3 . 4 32 9 Ξ 27 33 38 33 (1440) N/S ខ 8 3 5 3 38 8 2 33 2 2 8 ຄ 8 33 2 저 8 8 2 2 3 $\mathbf{\Sigma}$ (7H4 [) 550] 9017 (040C) ? c stoj anij STK-PI IR STK-PHR STK-PHR STK-PHR STK-PHR STK-PHR **5TK-PHR** STK-PHR STK-PHR STK-PHR STK-PHR STK-PHR STK-PHR looped bedool Pedool boped boped TK-PH (*varddA) bound badro boped page boped becoo bego Location 3184 1100 319 320 278 2 285 2 288 ğ g 326 325 8 010 28/ 327 33 3 8 8 ន្ត g g 321 ສິ 8 6-10 Q--9 6-12 EI -9 ÷-1 6-14 6-15 6-16 5-17 6-18 و ا 5-22 2-21 2-3 ž 5-25 8 1 1001 3 6-2 -9 6-5 ž 9 8-9 6-5 -•

C-6. Trans-Pacific Calls (Sheer

lable

A DESCRIPTION OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER O

1 . . . I

2

* eldoT	6-27	6-28	6-29	6-30	6-31	6-32	6-33	6-34	6-35	6-36	6-37	6-38	6-39	6-40	6-41	6-42	6-43	
themmoD								2					_			35	_	
Line Character,	5	5	1	5	5	2	S	5	5	2	3	S	2	SI	2	51	5	
	PHR		PHR 1	B PHR		3 PHR		PHR		PHR	PHR (PHR 1	PHR		унд		
	5 5		AL S	E S		S S		41 53		N S	4		4	<u>1</u> ک		EX I		
	нXО		Ч¥	нKC		H KO		нко		нКО	¥		нКС	ЧKO		Ŭ ¥		
	WA		۸A	3 WAI		WA WA		3 WA		AW 8	A		AW E	3 WAI		WA:		
				5898 S		3	_	869 S		888	374 S.		318 S	S 2		87 S	_	
		* 298		20 8	304	20 8	s 317	20 8	1 267	20 8	20 8	300	DD R	3	s 337	о Ж	1 269	
gnitu B		e e e		5	o me	Ц Ц	amo	<u>ت</u> ا	oure o	1	3 	è u u o	<u>د</u>	۱ د	e e e	ب ۲	ame	
Ŕo	STK	~	STK	STK	5	STK	~	STK	Š	STK	SIK	~	STK	SIK	5	SIK	~	
Recording Recording	A-9	ļ	ļ	A-2	1	A-4	l	A-1	١	٩	A-10	1	A-5	8-5	ļ	A-2	۱	
	346	1	1	,435	1	, 398	1	, 240	1	, 113	,374	i	134	338	1	8	ļ	
Location of Recording	P1-2		ł	P1-2	ł	4	1	1-1-	ł	P1-2	P1-2		P1-2	Ę.		P1-2		
Types of Pictures	۷	<	I	۲	٩	۲	٩	۲	۲	٩	٩	۲	۲	۲	٩	٩	∢	
DO	0	ŀ	•	0	ı	-	ı	-	ı	0	-	•	0	0	,	0	•	
67	0	•	ı	0	ı	2	ı	-	•	0	0	۱	•	-	,	0	•	
63	•	1	•	•	ı	13	•	2	•		0	,	c		1	•	1	
59	\$36	•	ı	e	•	457	,	ო		~	S	•	200	z	۱	4	•	
6H 306	0	•	•	0	•	0	١	0	۲	þ	0	•	0	-	۱	•	•	
6H +3	0	•	۲	0	ı	0	•	0	•	0	0	٠	0	-	•	•	ı.	
°₀OH	1.19	2.57	ı	.87	2.23	.95	2.75	.95	2.57	1.43	1.00	2.37	2.27	1.74	3.32	2.74	4.35	
HD 3'9	8	33	۱	ę	Ŗ	43	32	43	33	4	43	R	35	8	ຮ	8	32	
P ^u Z CH	8	45	•	46	40	4	39	4	සී	39	43	42	37	43	40	33	53	
°L9	œ	۰	1	Ŷ	¢	Ŷ	¢	\$	8	v	٩	80	10	æ	12	Ŷ	æ	
2H3 1) N/S	8	\$	١	Ŗ	28	32	27	æ	29	33	g	28	ιe	ĩ	28	8	28	
(0400) N/S	8	ន	ı	35	27	ĸ	29	R	5	ĸ	8	28	33	3	~~	ĸ	28	
(גאא (ג) גנסל איל	-	7	ı	7	•	2	Ś	ĩ	~	7	-	e	•	۲	7	Ŷ	0	
Line Loss (Data)	?	7	•	Ċ,	,	7	e	،	0	?	-2	2	0	-5	٦	۴	٦	
roit∞oJ (,v∋iddA)	SIK-PHR	Looped	STK-PHR	STK-PHR	Looped	STK-PHR	Looped	JTK-PHR	lonped	STK-PHR	STK-PHR	looped	STK-PHR	STK-PHR	Looped	STK-PHR	looped	
, 11₽⊃	298	8	308	304	305	317	318	267	268	280	300	301	282	337	338	269	270	
1 eldeT	6-27	6-28	6-29	6-30	(6-3)	6-32	6-33	6-34	6-35	92-9	6-37	6-38	6-39	6-40	1	6 -1 2	6-43	
											22	12/2	74					

TableC-6. Trans-Pacific Calls (Sheet 2 Continued)

:

.

,	eldoT		1-2	2-2		n - 1	7-4	7-5	4	1-1	7-8	6-2	2-10	11-2	7-12	7-13	7-14	7-15	7-16	7-17	•			61-2	2-20	12-2	1-1	; ;			2-2
	1N/S		8	27	2	G	26	27	25	8	25	22	25	8	22	24	26	26	27	. 2		4		2	23	8	8	1 7	5 7		×
чŀ	Srine Tries-t		4	4-4		4	4-4	4-4	4-4	2-2	4-4	Ξ	44	4-4	4-4	4-4	4-4	4-4	4-4	4		1		4-4	3-3	5	ĩ		: :	4	3
	ופ-⊂ 9נצ 9נצ		2.50E-4	2 426 - 6	0, 202 J	1.52t-4	5.006-5	2.12E-5	5.31E-4	1.066-3	4.27E-4	1	5.01E-4	2.25E-5	B.22E-4	7.966-4	3.10E-4	2.10E-4	0 17E-5	1 20E-4		6.3JE-4		5.42E-4	5.52E-3	4.44E-3	1 075-1	C - 170-7	1.001-3	د-164.1	2.416-2
	111-91 830		3.60E-4	1 076 6	C-3/8.1	1.82E-4	3.00E-5	1.39E-5	7.87E-4	1.46E-3	4.86E-4	1	7.156-4	4.25E-5	1.93E-3	9.70E-4	3.90E-4	2.67E-4	0 125-5	N 306-4		6.02E-4		5.326-4	1.586-2	4.41E-3	1 20C 2	0.20C-J	1.53E-J	1.80E-3	2.51E-2
	19-130 פנא		4 66F-4		1.62E-3	1.826-4	7.37E-5	2.27E-4	6.14E-4	2.15E-4	6.22E-4	•	6.15E-4	1.70E-4	1.85E-3	1.205-3	3.54E-4	3.57E-4	1 36C-1			1.13E-3		5.70E-4	6.67E-3	4.06E-3	0 0/1E - 2	2-UZE-3	1.32E-3	1.956-3	2.12F-2
	011-91 (8) 838		9 50F.A		1.12E-5	1.27E-4	2.87E·5	1.12E-5	4.46E-4	1.226-4	ø.51E-4	2.55E-3	4.31E-4	5.87E-5	1.566-3	7.526-4	1.17E-3	3 095-4		J. 125-J	J. D) [-4	4°.9E-4		5.62E-4	3.81E-3	4.88E-3		2.04E-3	9.256-4	1.03E-3	2 856-2
	lropo		c		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	c	, c		с	þ	0		~	2	c	, ,	2	~	3	¢
	Sable		ç	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	•	0	~	2	c	, c		0	Þ	2		0	0	~		•	•	•	ſ
	٥٥٢٥		ć	>	•	0	0	0	2	7	~	2	2	0	0	- c		• •	v	0	P4	•	S N	~	2	ſ	•	2	0	~	ſ
 	AZMOD		, ·	>	~	5	2	2	0	0	•	3	0	2	0	, c		, c	.	2	0	0	ROUT	0	0	c	>	•	7	•	¢
	قلة	5NIU		3	8	8	8	ĕ	8	•	8	4	8	8	801	8	8	: 8	\$	8	8	8	RNARY	8	35	ş	3	8	8	8	•
	8-110 Bek			0	0	c	0	0	0		¢	•	2.50E-6	0	c	, c	2 505 5		5.00E-6	0	0	0	NRY AND TE	0	1.77E-3		>	•	2.50 [-6	2.50E-6	C
	011-51			2.59E-4	1.12E-5	1.27E-4	2.87E-5	1.12E-5	4. 4 6E-4	1.22E-4	4 51F-4	2.55E-3	4.31E-4	5.87E-5	1 646-2	- 30C-1	- 37C. /	1.1/E-3	3.096-4	3.12E-5	3.26E-4	4.996-4	SECONDA	5.62E-4	3. ALE-3		4.886-3	7.03E-3	9.256-4	1.03E-3	
	ي سو	ı ¦		0817	0848	1234	0753	1359	0011	0757	1080		0918	1316		2.00		2	0942	1045	1335	1002		08.35	0111		85.60	1258	1005	1006	
Ì	915(a		213	213	213	212	513	2/13				2/13				01/7	EI/Z	2/13	2/13	2/13	2/13		2/14			274	2/3	3/16	12/1	
		Location		Harbor, Hawaii - Fuchu, Japan 12	Harbor, Nawaii - Fuchu, Japan 12	truttor theorem - Earthin tenen		Horoot, Howard - Found, Jopen	Harbor, Hawaii - Found, Jopen.		Horbor, Howell - FT, Buckher, California - 1	Harbor, Hawaii - Ff, Buckner, Okinawa 12	Horbor, Howall - Fr. Dickner, Chinawa		Harbor, Hawaii - Finegeran, Guain	Harbor, Hawaii - Finegeyan, Guam) Harbor, Hawaii - Finegeyan, Guam - 1.	l Harbor, Hawaii - Finegeyan, Guam 🛛	l Harbor, Haweii - Finegeyan, Guam 1	l Harbor, Hawaii - Clark, Philippines 🛛 1	l Harbor, Hawaii - Clark, Philippines 1	l Harbor, Hawaii - Clark, Philippines 1	•			Harbor, Howaii - Fuchu, Jopan	ł Harbor, Hawaii - Fuchu, Japan	-) Harbor, Howaii - Fi. Buckmer, Okinawa 🤰	rl Harbor, Hawaii - Ft. Buckmer, Okinawa 1	I Hurbur Howaii - Clark, Philippines	
				ō				2	8	ē	Š	Peor	ě,	Į,	Š	Ped	Peor	Peor	Peor	Peor	Peor	Peor			8	ŝ	8	å	8	2	5
				P	å		2 4	ž d	<u> </u>	_	_				_	-	<u>~</u>	0	\$	m	<u>ب</u>	-	,		m .	~	-	3	ŝ	, e	<u>م</u>
	, 11'	cr		252 Pe	233 Pe			265 27	0		271	272	314		10	5	316	:59	::55	258	345	256			£/2	42	274	58	315	375	ŝ

Table C-7. Pacific IST Loops (Sheet 1)

.

いたがまたはなりたというないのである。

∎ sido]		7-1	7-2	7-3	7	7-5	76	7-7	7-8	2-9	2-10	11-2	21-12	7-13	2-14	7-15	2-16	2-17	7-18		2-19	7-20	7-21	<i>u-1</i>
rtnemmo)																								
Line Character.		SI	2	72	22	72	22	ı	5	•	72	72	5	72	5	51	5	ß	51		72	ı	۲ų ۲	27
Routing		PHR KC41 S3 WAH KH55 S3 FUC	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KH47 S3 FUC	PHR KC41 \$3 WAH FUC	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KH50 S3 FUC	PHR KC41 53 WAH KHA7 53 FUC	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KK05 S3 FTB	PHR KC41 S3 WAH FTB	PHR KC41 53 WAH KK85 53 F78	PHR KC41 S3 WAH F1B	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KK85 S3 FTB	PHR KCA1 S3 WAH KE48 S3 FIN	PHR KC41 53 WAH KE37 53 FIN	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KE46 S3 FIN	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KE20 S3 FIN	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KE19 S2 FIN	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KP15 S3 CLK	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KD75 S3 CLK	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KD96 S3 CLK		2 PHR KC41 S3 WAH KK83 BUC TROPO FUC	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KKB1 BUC TROPO FUC	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KE18 FIN CABLE	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KD73 CLK TROPO BUC
Recording Type of		A-8	A-9	6-3	1	8-4	9 -2			۱	፯	8-4	8-8	J	ĩ	B-3	۳.	8- 3	B-5		-a -		•	ı.
Location of Recording		000'I-Id	P1-1,025	P1-1,167	P2-1,234	PI-1, 221	P1-1,145	ł	P1-2,022	1	P1-1,048	PI-1,185	P1-1,232	060'1-24	P1-1,129	PI-1,065	P1-1, 109	PI -1,202	P1-1,083		P1-2,037 B	I s.	ł	.
Tytes of Pictures		A	۲	٩	۲	٩	٩	ı	۲	,	٩	٩	۲	٩	٩	٩	٩	٩	٩	ŝ	٩	ı	4	•
٥٥		0	0	0	0	Q	0	ı	0		0	c	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Ň	-	ı	4	
67		•	0	0	•	٩	0	•	0	,	0	-	0	~	m	2	0	0	0	ð.	-	•	,	•
63	UTINGS	0	0	٥	-	0	-	ı	0	ı	0	-	0	·-	Ξ	16	0	0	0	ERNARY	9	۰	ı	1
56	ARY RO	ę	e	-	e	-	3	•	-	•	-	Ŷ	131	21	55	35	0	2	650	Y AND 1	80	,	١	·
07. Hd	PRIA	•	0	0	0	3	•		0		0	\$	0	0	0	•	0	¢	0	NDAR	0		,	ı
€+ НЭ		0	0	0	С	0	പ		c		0	0	0	0	o	0	0	0	0	ECO	0	ı	,	٠
₩Dŵ		.63	74	.87	.87	к.	1.50	۰	2.65	•	1.37	.72	1.23	1.30	1.29	1.08	8.	1.34	1.0	S.	1.16	1.68	1.21	2.06
PP2 OH		9	4	43	43	4	37	۰	6	ı	39	45	39	38	36	40	43	38	42		36	R	36	R
bns ak		\$	48	4	¥	50	46	•	ส	,	42	47	4	50	44	43	47	47	4		49	45	47	\$
Pla		e	2	e	٣	e	2	,	'n	'	2	~	e	e	e	en	4	r)	4		4	4	s	4
ZHY I) N/S		g	ጽ	2	;;	ጽ	8	•	ह	•	ষ	37	31	32	ĸ	æ	35	¥	32		ĸ	75	32	ន
(and) N/S		30.5	ষ	3	33	3	33	,	32	•	32	ĸ	Ē	3	32	ຄ	33	32	30		32	ĸ	28	27
(ZH3 1) 3507 8417		-7	۰.	ę	-7	e.	۲	t	7	,	٩	4	ř	-7	7	7	٣	Ŷ	Ÿ		7	·-	ç	s.
Line Lous (Dota)		٦	?	-7	7	-3	ñ	ı	ę	١	٩	-7	-2	٦	-2	o	-2	۰,	-7		-5	٦	-5	?
noilaoJ (,v∋iddA)		PHR-FUC	PHR-FUC	PHR-FUC	PHR-FUC	PHR-FUC	PHR-BUC	PHR-BUC	PHR-BUC	PHR-BUC	PHR-BUC	PHR-FIN	PHR-FIN	PHR-FIN	PI1R-FIN	PHR-FIN	PHR-CLK	PHR-CLK	PHR-CLK		P-IR-FUC	P-IR-FUC	PHR-FUC	PHR-BUC
, 11°C		252	253	262	332	266	260	271	272	314	254	264	291	316	259	255	258	265	256		273	277	274	263
, 91901		1-7	7-2	7-3	7	7-5	7-6	7-7	7-8	2-9	01-2 2	۲ ۲- 27/2	21-2 28	7-13	7-14	7-15	7-16	21-2	7-18		61-2	7-20	7-21	7-22

Table C-7. Pacific ISI Loops (Sheet 2)

10.00
.

والمحالية والمحالية والمستحدية

	1 oble	1	RZ-1	7-24	7-25
	(Comments				*
	Choracter.		<	5	5
	۱		-		-
	Kouting		PHR KC41 S3 WAH KH48 FUC TROPO BUC	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KK93 BUC TROPO CLK	PHR KC41 S3 WAH KE49 FIN CABLE CLK
	lype of Recording	<u>ج</u> .	U	B-3	8-4
ued)	Locotion of Brifing	CONTINUE	P2-1,082	P1-2,062	P1-2,078
2 Contin	Types of Pictures	INGS (۲	۲	ABC
heet	00	Ъ	•	o	0
s (S	67	JARY	~	0	1305
c IST Loop	çş	AND TERN	, ,	6	1735
. Pacifi	59	NDARY /	₽	1418	1835
5	6H 300	ECO 0.1	~	с	-
Table	6н •3		•	0	•
	PSOH .		.59	1.49	3.23
	HD 3יק		55	37	31
	HD 5P9		45	46	36
	610		ŝ	S	15
	(ZH3 L) N/S		ጽ	29	36
	(0400) N/S		ŝ	28	25
	(1 KHZ) Cine Loss		-7	7	÷
	(Dato) Line Loss		-	0	ŗ
	ocation √.vandd∆l		PHE-BUC	PHK-CLK	PHR-CLK
	, 1IPC		315	275	276
	aldo		10-2	7-24	7-25

229/230

1111

MARKED

Table C-B. Pacific Remote Access Loops (Sheet 1)

.....

•

•

, elde i	8	8-2	8-3	1	8-5	Ĵ	8-7	8-8	8-9
N/S	2	25	24	5	8	20	6	11	91
or y2 ztiH+zøinT	4-4	4-4	4-4	5-5	3-3	4-4	4-4	5-5	44
ו 9-C 868	1.276-3	1.136-4	2.33E-3	4.75E+3	8.45E-2	6.22E-3	1.30E-2	7.30E-2	5 ,41E-2
LLL-91 839	1.36E-3	2.046-4	3.32E-3	9.52E-4	4.996-2	1.076-2	1.26E-2	8.26E-2	7.87E-2
061-91 BEK	1.786-3	9.53E-5	2.64E-3	1.42E-3	4.84E-2	6.44E-3	1.25E-2	5.31E-2	4.62E-2
011-91 (8) 838	1.42E-3	1.35E-4	2.08E-3	8,59E-4	3.866-2	6.37E-3	9.486-3	4.18E-2	5.05E-2
٤	4	ŝ	2	0	2	c	0	c	0
Iropo	0	0	c	0	0	c	э	2	2
C ^e PI ^e	0	0	7	0	0	0	2	0	0
٥٢٢٥	0	0	0	II:te	7	¢	ç	~	7
T≜2MOD	۲٦	3	c	elos S	0	3	0	0	0
a19	8	1 <u>0</u>	100	100	%	001	8	52	51
8-110 BES	0	0	0	0	3.00E-5	o	0	I.72E-3	2.36E-4
011-91 (V) 838	1.42E-3	1.356-4	2.08E-3	8.59E-4	3.866-2	6.37 F- 3	9.481-3	5.47E-2	5.05E-2
ز با ھ	1055	1000	6180	1025	0760	6190	1350	0855	0928
ەەم	12/15	12/15	12/16	12, 15	12/15	12/16	12.716	12/15	12.76
	we, Japan (Secord 58)	usuka, Japan (Secord 16)	ota, Jopun (Secord 44)	l, Korea (Secord 12)	ota, Okinawa (Secord 13)	ota, Okinawa (Secord 73)	k, Philippines(Secord 16)	ei , Taiwan (Secord 17)	el, Taiwan (Secord 17)
Location	Pearl Harbor - Misa	Pearl Horbor - Yoku	Pearl Harbor – Yoko	Pearl Harbor – Seou	Pear! Harber - Kade	Pearl Harbor – Kodo	Pear! Hurbor – Clarl	Pearl Harbor – Taipe	Pearl Horbor - Taipe
כייוי י	29¢	294.	31.	295	29%	312	328	28	313
* aldeT		8-2	8-3	8-4	8-5	₹ 8	2-8	8-8	8-9

231/232

٦.

. .

-

-0

.

	cinémnej Volici	8-1	8-7	8-3	37 8-4	6-5	8-6	8-7	8-8	8-9
	Line Choiseter,	HAR SI FUC V2	H50 53 FUC V2	M92 \$3 FUC V2	53 3EO (12) VI :	iscs s3 BUG	H49 S3 FUC TROPOV)	D% 53 CLK	D75 53 CLK IROPOV2	D71 S3 CLK TROPOVI
	Kouting	PHR KC41 53 WAH R M(S (58)	PHR KC41 53 WAH K YKS (16)	PHR KC4) 53 WAH < YOK (44)	KC42 53 WAH KA98	РНК КС41 53 И/АН D КАD (13)	PHR KCAT 53 WAH K FTB KAD 73	PHK KC41 53 WAH K	PHR KC41 53 WAH K TAP (17)	PHR KC41 53 WAH K TAP (17)
	Recording Lype of	B-10	U	A-10	8-8	ł	₽ 7	8-8	8-8	8-5 2
eł 2)	Location of Recoraing	P1-2, 302	PI-2,270	P2-1,029	P1-2,280		P2-1,048	B61,1-59	PI-2,251	P2-1,064
ps (She	Types of Pictores	٩	٩	4	٩	ı	Ā	¥	ACD	ABCD
ess Loo	DO	0	0	0	0	ı	0	0	0	o
ote Arc	67	0	°	2	ని	1	~	8	-	-
ic Rem	رې د ک	0	-	4	24	ı	e	239	6	4
. Pacil	59	r)	2	565	1461	,	183	1774	1053	868
5	ьн ऽः _o	0	٥	0	0	٠	0	0	0	0
Toble	6н •3	•	0	0	0	٠	G	0	•	~
	⊴ан	1.23	1.23	۲.	2.27		3.24	2.06	4.99	4.23
	HD 3*9	36	Q T	¥	35	١	90	З	27	8
	HD S ^{uq}	\$	F	\$	37	ı	43	\$	33	E
	۹۹°	ы	en	4	e	•	Ŷ	~	~	ø
	-2411-N/S	R	35	90	\$	،	31	8	&	8
	- NRG- N.S	32	33	29	33	29	32	27	8	3
	:28117 2291 - 12	ę	Р 1	0	7	,	e	<u>-</u>	ŝ	-S
	1,0000 (Data)	-2	÷	ī	-2	î	ę	0I-	7	ŗ
	Location VanddAt	PHR-MIS	PHR-YKS	рне- УОК	FHR-SEO	PHR-KAD	PHR-KAD	PHR-CLK	PHR-TAP	PHR-TAP
	• II°D	8	294	311	295	5	312	328	242	313
	ا تمان ،	8	8-2	8-3	8-4	8-5	8	8-7	8-8	8-8

233/234

ļ

1 able	9 -1	0 9-2	0 9-3	7	1 9-5	J J	8 9-7	7 9-8	6 9-9	s 9-10	3 9-il	4 9-12	5 9-13	0 9-14	0 9-15	9-19	1 9-17	9-18	4 9-19	2 9-20	2 9-21	0 9-22	9 9-23	1 9-24	2 9-25	4 9-26
Tries-Hill	-3	е С-	ه ۲	-3	-3 2	-3	-3 2	-9 -9	-3 2	-3 2	-3	~ -	-3 2	-3	-3	ñ	-3 2	-9 -9	-3 5	-9 -9	-3	-3 2	-	-3 2	-3 2	-3
рғи 19-С	2.50E-6 3	1,12E-5 3	1.62E-5 3	1.316-4 3	3.09E-2 3	1.71E-4 3	7.50E-5 3	3.37E-5 3	1.645-4 3	8.62E-5 3	5.796-4 3	2.04E-4 3	2.29E-4 3	3.86 E-3 3	1.746-2 3	6.19E-3 3	5.006-3 3	5.386-3 3	2.176-4 3	3.116-3 3	4.90E-3 3	5.25E-3 3	4.156-2 3	4.486-3 3	3.106-3 3	9.44E-4 3
16-11) 858	2.506-6	0	0	1.356-4	2.926-2	2.15E-4	9.25E-5	3.00E-5	1.646-4	1.116-4	4.39E-4	2.55E-4	2.46E-4	3.36E-3	1.94E-2	7.75E-3	4.73E-3	5.116-3	2.11E-4	3.22E-3	4.20E-3	4.136-3	3.396-2	3.216-3	3.291-3	1.256-3
19-130 BEB	2.505-6	•	7.50E-6	1.60E-4	2.93E-2	1.446-4	8.12E-5	4.37E-5	1.27E-4	6.62E-5	7.25E-4	2.546-4	5.72E-3	3.70E-3	1.67E-2	7.66E-3	5.25E-3	5.57E-3	3.16E-4	4.35E-3	4.61E-3	6.31E-3	3.95E-2	4.21E-3	3.60E-3	9.856-4
16-110 8נג ופי	6.256-6	1.256-6	1.62E-5	1.55E-4	2.88E-2	1.495-4	4.25E-5	2.00E-5	5.12E-5	B.25E-5	3.41E-4	2.516-4	1.59E-4	3, 54E-3	1.796-2	6.28E-3	4.74E-3	4.546-3	1.65E-4	3.08E-3	4.50E-3	4.336-3	3.56E-2	3.00E-3	2.99£-3	7.406-4
818	3	8	001	8	8	8	8	8	1 00	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	8	97	8	92	8
938 011-8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2.50É-5	0	0	0	0	1.256-6	0	0	0	0	0	4.37E-5	0	4.25E-5	0
(A) 858 16-110	6.25E-6	1.256-6	1.62E-5	1.556-4	2.885-2	1.496-4	4.25E-5	2.006-5	5.12E-5	8.25E-5	3.416-4	2.5:6-4	1.596-4	3.546-3	1.79E-2	6.28E-3	4.74E-3	4.94E-3	1.65E-4	3.086-3	4.506-3	4.33E-3	3.566-2	3.036-3	2.99E-3	7.40E-4
əm ¹¹	1002	0840	8001	0060	1104	0%20	1337	0935	4C2	955	40	2	8	8	50	52.0	g	120	824	015	845	045	905	1105	0630	1215
Date	Ξ	ŗ.						-	-	Q	<u> </u>	2	=	2	2	ž	8	-	0	-	0	-	0			
	-	2	11/1	1/17	11/1	21/1	1/11	1/12	1 11/1	1/17 0	1 11/1	1/12 10	1/11 16	1/12 10	51 H/I	1/17 10	1/15 O	1/12	1/12 0	1/24 1	1/12 0	1/24 1	1/12 0	1/24	1/12	1,/24
Location	Metbourne, Fla 1 - Polk City, Fla	Melboume, Fla #2 - Polk City, Fla 1/1	Melboume, Fla 1 - Ellisville, Fla	Melbourne, Fla #2 - Eilisville, Fla 1/17	Melbourne, Fla #1 - Dranesville, Vir 1/11	Melbourne, Fla #2 – Dranesville, Vir 1/17	Melbourne, Flo 🗂 - Brewton, Alo 1/11	Melbourne, Flo #2 - Brewton, Ala 1/17	Melbourne, Fla 🕅 - Jasper, Ala 🛛 1/11 1	Melbourne, Fla P2 - Jasper, Ala 1/17 C	Melbourne, Fla 1 - Chatham, N. Cor 1/11 1	Melbourne, Flo #2 - Chatham, N. Ccr 1/17 10	Melbourne, Flo 1 - Stanfield, N. Car 1/11 15	Melbourne, Fla #2 - Stanfield, N. Car 1/17 10	Melbourne, Fla [#] 1 - Leedburg, Vir 1/11 15	Melbourne, Fla ⁶ 2 - Leesburg, Vir 1/17 1(Melbourne, Fla 1 - Charlattesville, Vir 1/12 0	Meibourne, Fla 12 - Charlottesville, Vir 1/17 14	Melbourne, Fla ¹ 1 - Mosely, Vir 1/12 0	Melbourne, Fla 12 - Mosely, Vir 1/24 1	Melbourne, Fla #1 - Williamstown, Ken 1/12 0	Melbourne, Fla P2 - Williamstown, Ken 1/24 1	Melbourne, Flo 1 - Hagerstown, Mld 1/12 (Melbourne, Fla #2 – Hagerstown, Mld 1/24	Melbourne, Fla #1 - Toledo Junction, Ohio 1/12	Melbourne, Fla ⁶ 2 - Toledo Junction, Ohio 1,/24
Call Location	340 Metbourne, Fla 1 - Polk City, Fla	380 Melboume, Fla #2 - Polk City, Fla	3r 1 Melboume, Fla 01 - Ellisville, Fla 1/11	381 Melboume, Fla #2 - Eilisville, Fla 1/17	342 Melbourne, Flo 41 - Dranesville, Vir 1/11	382 Melbourne, Fla ⁶ 2 - Dranosvitle, Vir 1/17	343 Melbourne, Fla #1 - Brewton, Ala 1/11	383 Melbourne, Flo #2 - Brewton, Alo 1/17	344 Melbourne, Fla [#] 1 - Josper, Ala 1/11 1	384 Melbourne, Fla [#] 2 - Jasper, Ala 1/17 C	345 Melbourne, Fla ¹ 1 - Chatham, N. Cor 1/11 1	385 Melbourne, Fla #2 - Chatham, N. Ccr 1/17 10	345 Melbourne, Flo 1 - Stanfield, N. Car 1/11 15	386 Melbourne, Fla #2 - Stanfield, N. Cor 1/17 10	347 Melbourne, Fla [#] 1 - Leedburg, Vir 1/11 15	38/ Melbourne, Fla ⁰ 2 - Leesburg, Vir 1/17 1(348 Melbourne, Fla 1 - Charlottesville, Vir 3/12 0	388 Meibourne, Fla 12 - Charlottesville, Vir 1/17 1-	349 Melbourne, Fla ⁸ 1 - Mosely, Vir 1/12 0	38 ⁴¹ Melbourne, Fla ¹ 2 - Mosely, Vir 1/24 1	350 Melbourne, Fla ⁴ 1 - Williamstown, Ken 1/12 0	390) Melbourne, Fla ¹ 2 – Williamstown, Ken 1/24 1	351 Melbourne, Fla 1 - Hogerstown, Mld 1/12 (391 Melbourne, Flo ⁸ 2 - Hagerstown, Mld 1/24	352 Melbourne, Fla "1 - Toledo Junction, Ohio 1/12	392 Melbourne, Flo ⁰ 2 - Toledo Junction, Ohio 1/24

ante California, Tanua

بطري تسليف

Table C-9. CONUS IST Loops (Sheet 1)

235/236

9-28 8.4 06-9 9-33 9--38 66-9 3 9-27 16-6 9-32 9-34 9-35 9-36 9-37 Ŧ 9-42 Ĩ Ŧ 12 4 Ĵ 1 -1301 8 8 14/5 2 8 3 8 5 2 ž 2 8 8 5 5 21 21 8 3 ม ន 5 stiff-saint 3-3 3 6-6 5.5 5 3-3 3-3 Е Н 3-3 ĩ 3-3 2 2 5-3 3-3 6-6 3-3 5 3 33 2 suks 2.736-3 3.856-3 5. l6E-3 5.016-3 9.185 3 3.386-3 4.826-3 5.546-3 6.00E-3 7.366-3 7.266-3 4.546-3 6.00E-3 4.21E-2 1.30E-4 3.966-3 6.54E-3 6.74E-3 5.44 E-3 1.76E-3 2.656-3 2-91 886 3.33E-3 1.346-2 3.116-3 4.61E-3 4.636-3 B.09E-3 5.00E-3 5.59E-3 5.56E-3 6.226-3 7.366-3 3.826-3 7.776-3 5.306-3 4.74E-3 6.086-3 3.50E-2 5.926-3 9.006-4 2.36E-3 1.625-4 111-91 888 5.096-3 6.776-3 3.316-3 1.116-2 4.80E-3 6.326-3 5.636-3 4.67E-3 9.00E-3 3.766-3 6.3ME-3 6.05E-3 7.156-3 4.396-3 7.936-3 5.456-3 4.08E-2 6.55E-3 1.38E-3 2.916-3 3.57E-4 19-130 Ber 3.50E-3 4.336-3 2.716-3 1.836-3 1.08E-3 8.236-3 4.06E-4 4.72E-3 5.255-3 5.88E-3 5.986-3 4.17E-3 7.12E-3 1.74E-3 5.48E-3 3.796-2 6.006-3 1.00E-4 4.52E-3 6.17E-4 2.88E-3 (8) 911-91 919-110 8 8 8 8 8 8 95 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 § 88888888 8 81b 1.12E-5 1.256-6 4.12E-5 2.506-6 0 0 011-8 0 0 0 0 0 Э 0 ¢ a o 0 ¢ 0 0 838 4.52E-3 4.086-3 8.236-3 4.175-3 7.12E-3 4.74E-3 3.796-2 6.00E-3 2.885-3 2.71E-3 4.836-3 3.506-3 4.06E-4 4.72E-3 5.25E-3 5.886-3 5.986-3 4.336-3 5.48E-3 6.17E-4 1.0014 :A) 938 011-21 1245 1320 1230 ŝ 1249 1345 1305 1325 345 445 500 1415 0350 1015 30 1207 1405 1425 81 1520 1435 թար 1, 24 21/1 1/24 1/12 1/24 1/12 1/24 1.'24 1/12 1/12 1//24 1/12 1/12 1/:2 1/24 1,12 1./24 1/24 1/24 1/24 1/12 ~10(] Melbourne, Fla ⁶2 - Memphis Junction, Ark Melbourne, Flo 81 - Memphis Junction, Ark Melbourne, Fla 12 - Dover Foxcrait, Mne Melbourne, Flo ¹1 – Dover Foxcraft, Mne Melbourne, Fla ⁶1 - Stevens Point, Wisc Melbourne, Fla #2 - Stevens Paint, Wisc Melbourne, Flo ⁶2 - Chesterfiuld, Mass Melbourne, Fla ⁶1 - Chesterfield, Mass Melbourne, Fla "I - Cedar Brook, NJ Melbourne, Fla "2 - Cedar Brook, NJ Melbourne, Fla ⁸1 – futtstown, Penn Melboume, Fla "2 - Pottstown, Penn Melbourne, Fla 11 - Wyoming, Minn Melbourne, Fla #2 - Wyoming, Minn Melbourne, Fla ^A1 - Littleton, Mass Melbourne, Fla #2 - Littleton, Mass Melbourne, Fla 11 - Netcong, NJ Melbourne, Fla 72 - Netcong, NJ Melbourne, Fla 🎝 - Seguin, Tex Melbourne, Fla 🎵 – Tully, NY Melbourne, Fla #2 - Tully, NY Loco'ion 350 ક્રે 301 363 357 Ř 393 362 80 363 402 365 353 3 394 ž 333 18 38 Ę Z + 11º2

28 Ĵ 9-50 5-2 2-52

8

Ĩ ĥ 6-6 6-6 2

4.376-5 5.75E-5

4.506-5 5.25E-5 4.27E-3 9.256-5 2.486-3

9.00E-5 7.376-5 4.656-3 3.25E-5 9.876-4

8.37E-5 1.62E-5

8.37E-j .62E-5 3.98E-3 3.75E-6 5.97E-

560

1/24

1555

1/24

520 0755

1/12

Melbourne, Flo 🌓 - Socorro, N. Mex Melbourne, Fla #2 - Socorro, N. Mex

1/25

ŝ

1/12

Melbourne, Fla 8) - Sweetwater, Tex Melbourne, Fla P2 - Sweetwater, Tex

Melboume, Fla #2 - Seguin, Tex

ŝ

8 ž 33,7 8

9-50

9-52

9-51

5 ន

4.42E-3

2

1.126-5

3.756-6 5.976-4

88

3.986-3

2.50E-3

8

lable C-9. CONUS IST Loops (Sneet 1 Continued)

9-39 237/238

3

Ţ 42 f 44 9-45 9-46 44 978 9-49

9-35

9-37 9--38

9-36

9-30

9-31

9-32 9-33 9-34

9-27 9--28 9-29

, *P491

l eldet	9-53	P-54	9- 55	8	9-57	9-58	9-59	9-60	9-61	9-62	9-63	7 9-6	9-65	9-66	29-5	9-68	69-6	9-70	9-71	9-72	9-73	9-74	9-75	9-76	9-77	9-78
N/S	2	8	3)	21	ឌ	ខ្ល	ន	21	2	21	18	9	33	8	61	51	22	21	23	20	61	18	61	18	18	18
Sync Tri ss -Hits	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	3-3	5	3-3	с- Н
אס-כ 166	3.066-2	7.706-3	5.90E-3	5.47E-3	5.29E-3	1.19E-2	5.16E-3	5.62E-3	6.355-3	8.765-3	7 . 82E-3	3.69E-2	3.401-3	5.84E-3	1.296-2	7.72E-3	6.02E-3	6.77E-3	2.546-3	2.15E-2	3.71E-2	3.42E-2	3.206-3	2.116-2	3.60E-2	3.261-2
111-91 838	2.91E-2	8.63E-3	5.83E-3	5.29E-3	5.43E-3	9.65E-3	5.486-3	7.28E-3	6.18E-3	°.43E-3	1.06E-2	3.38E-2	5.64E-3	6.75E-3	1.65E-2	8.01E-3	6.28E-3	7.63E-3	2.69E-3	2.15E-2	3.196-2	2.72E-2	2.79E-2	2.08E-2	3.31E-2	3.116-2
061-91 838	3. 16E-2	8.24E-3	6.24E-3	5.996-3	6.07E-3	1.00E-2	5.82E-3	8.05E-3	7.096-3	1.136-2	7.59E-3	3.516-2	3.94E-3	7.87E-3	1.37E-2	6.70E-3	6.98E-3	8.535-3	2.776-3	2.34E-2	3.51E-2	3.01E-2	3.06E-2	2.94E-2	3.34E-2	3.56E-2
011~91 (8) 838	2.75E-2	7. 89E- 3	5.246-3	4,786-3	5.026-3	8.49E-3	1.98E-2	7, 196-3	6.92E-3	9.62E-3	6.23E-3	2.916-2	4.126-3	8.281-3	1.211-2	5.91E-3	6.30E-3	7.51E-3	1.126-2	2.165-2	3.176-2	2.55E-2	2.74E-2	2.02E-2	2.93E-2	3.176-2
÷.																										
918	8	8	8	\$	8	¥	9	\$	8	8	8	94	8	<u>8</u>	98	\$	8	001	86	8	\$	8	8	8	8	8
8-110 BEK	0	0	0	2.376-5	0	4 .87E-5	0	2.50E-6	0	0	0	1.396-4	0	0	5.00E-6	1.87E-5	0	0	8.75E-6	0	5.005-6	0	5.00E-6	0	3.756-6	2.505-6
(A) 838 011-51	2.75E-2	7.896-3	5.24E-3	4.786-3	5.02E-3	8.49E-3	1.986-2	7.196-3	6.92E-3	9.62E-3	6.23E-3	2.916-2	4.126-3	8.286-3	1.216-2	5.916-3	6.30E-3	7.51E-3	1.12E-2	2.16E-2	3. 17E-2	2.556-2	2.74E-2	2.025-2	2.536-2	3.17E-2
] ime	1545	0820	0 80	0640	0825	06 0	5160	5160	0940	0640	0160	0945	0101	1000	1000	1025	1040	1005	1112	<u>1055</u>	1140	0111	1150	1230	1220	1245
910()	1/12	1/25	E 1/1	1/25	1/13	1,'25	1/13	1,′25	1/13	1/25	5	1/25	1/13	1/25	1/13	1/25	1/13	1/25	1/13	1/25	1/13	1/25	1/13	1/25	1/13	1/25
Location *	Melbourne, Fla 11 - Apache Junction, Arz	Melbourne, Fla P2 - Apache Junction, Arz	Melbourne, Fla 11 - Cheyenne Mountain, Col	Melboume, Fla ¹ 2 - Cheyenne Mountain, Caf	Melbourne, Fia ⁰ 1 – Lamar, Col	Melbourne, Fla 12 - Lamor, Cal	Melboume, Fla ⁸ 1 – Mounds, Okla	Melbourne, Fla ¹ 2 - Mounds Okla	Melbourne, Fla 闭 – Lyons, Neb	Melbourne, Fia 82 - Lyons, Neb	Melbourne, Flo ?! – Hel a nu, Mont	Melbourne, Fla 12 - Melena, Mont	Melbourne, Fla 41 - Lodi, Cal	Melbourne, Fla 42 - Lodi, Cal	Melboume, Fla 🎙 – Julian, Cal	Methoume, Fla #2 - Julian, Cal	Melboume, Fla 🌗 – Mojave, Cal	Metbourne, Fla P2 - Mojave, Cal	Melbourne, Fla ¹ 1 - San Luis Obispo, Cal	Melboume, Fla F2 - San Luis Obispo, Cal	Melbourne, Flo 11 - Smith Falls, Ontar	Melboume, Fla 02 - Smith Falls, Ontar	Melbourne, Fla 🎝 - Sherbroake, Quebc	Melbourne, Fla 12 - Sherbrooke, Quebc	Melbourne, Fla 🚺 - Fredericton, Nwbm	Melbourne, Fla ⁶ 2 - Fredericton, Nwbrn
, ‼⁰⊃	368	%	349	407	370	90 4	371	\$ \$	37	10	6 53	۱۱	573	712	374	113	375	4 4	376	415	37	91 r	378	417	379	418
* aldoT	9-53	252	9-55	9-56	9-57	٩-58	9-59	09-6	19-6	9-62	9-63	9-64	9-65	9 - 66	9-67	9~68	69-6	6- 70	12-6	6-72	6-73	9-74	9-75	9-76	9-77	9-78

Surveyor States a distance of the second second

and the second second

•

• ;

Table C-9. CONUS IST Loops (Sheet 1 Continued)

239/240

1 sldoT	l-6	9-2	9-3	7	9-5	ŝ	9-7	9-8	6-6	01-6	9-11	9-12	9-13	9-14	9-15	9-19	6-17	81-6	61-6	9-20	9-21	9-22	6-23	9-24	9-25	9-26
Line Choracter . Comments	V2	SI	۷2	21	5	SI	22	51	22	21	۷2	SI	٧2	5	5	5	5	22	2	2	5	Ņ	5	5	2	\$
DO	c	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	c	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	0	0	0	
	0	с г	¢	ম	0	-	0		0	-	0	0	0	0	¢	-	~	2	0	0	0	Ś	=	0	~	s.
3	c	ŝ	2	S	e	2	2	\$	-	5	-	2	~	0	7	e	7	٥	-	-	14	16	102	12	~	• =
	-	ŝ	~	3[992	572	5	15	s	15	8	117	12	ø	792	014	488	598	519	20	253	1373	920	203	78	1219
02	~	~			0	0	0	0	0	0	-	~ 0	0	0	0	0	. 0	0	•	0	3	~	-			2 0
ен 306 СН +3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	•	0	0	• •	0	•	0	0	-	-	. c		, o
HDar	.43	8 .2	.47	1.80	4.23	1.89	8.	1.26	1.07	1.61	1.41	1.69	8.1	2.27	3.74	3.5	3.35	2.81	2.38	2.99	3.35	191	1	54.6		2.66
אם איק	8	80 17	\$	37	31	37	40	ጽ	40	R	ę	R	4	35 St	30	4	8	32	8	6	8	38		, r	3 8	3 8
PUZ OH	48	37	47	39	õ	R	47	ጽ	48	40	\$	8	4	3	2	\$ 8	8	8	R	40	e e	9	, e	3	; ;	7 4
o rd	~	-	2	~	'n	S	2	2	7	ę	Ŷ		-	8		• •	·	· ·	8) ~	, o ,	. a	0 v	יי	2 4
(ZH1 () N/S	40.5	9	ę	28.5	28	ŝ	ĸ	ষ	స	31	ŝ	8	: X	33	8	3 8	3 7	2	9	Ş	3 7	5 8	2 7	5 8	57	5 &
(040C) 14/S	39.5	45	07	42	37	ង	8	\$	89	37	R	1 2	3 6	; 7	ä	2 Y Y	? ?	; 7	ş	2		;	5 7	3 5	3 3	3
(1 KH2) Line Loss	-		-	0	-	-	-	. 0	-	2	-	• -	• •									• •		- ·	• •	* ~
(Doto) Line Loss	-	0	-	• <u>-</u>	. 0	-	-		-	-	-	· -		• •	? -			- ~	, -					v c 1	~ ~	~ ~
Location (Abbrev.)	MEL-POL	MFI-POL	ME1-FLL	MEL-ELL	MEL-DRA	MEL-DRA	MEI-BRE	MEL-RRF	MEL-JAS	MEL-JAS	MEL-CHA	MEL-CHA	MEL-CIN	MEL-STN		אנו יכנ אנו יכנ	MEL-166					MCL-WIL		Mel-HAG	MEL-TAG	MEL-TOL
, 11°)	240	080	1		342	8	1		3	a de la compañía de la Compañía de la compañía	, in the second s			ξ ĝ	3 5	È,	2	ŝ	8	j ş	6	3		ត រ	5	202 20 2
table *		0	1.0	2	9-5	1		a 0	0-0	9-10	2.1.0	241	2 S 2 d /242				₽ ; }		2 0	2 2 2 0	2 2 0	5 5 4 6		5		к и 5 2

Table C-9. CONUS IST Loops (Sheet 2)

٠.

1 m • 1

adard control bes 24

1	5	æ	ò	Q	-	2	9	4	5	29	5	8	2	0	=	2	Ē	T	5	29	2	89	6	9		22
Loble 4	9-2	9-2	9-2	6-9 1	،	6	6-9 -	6-6	6-9	6-9	6-9	6-9	6-9	7	ĩ	9-4	Å	Å	7	ž	4	ĩ	1	9-6	5	2
Line Character, Comments	5	5	5	5	5	۷2	۷2	5	5	۷2	5	۲2	5	5	5	5	7	5	5	72	5	73	۶	17	۶	SI
:1																										
		_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	-	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Od	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	U	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Q
67	0	0	\$	۰	0	3	0	3	0	2	0	-	0	2	0	0	0	e	•	0	2	~	•	2	2	_
3	2	13	=	e	112	16	-	12	~	Ξ	7	61	-	184	•	15	-	730	o	\$	21	45	ŝ	251	4	86
\$	ส	1316	156	897	1805	1581	75	1271	98 8	1486	412	1182	1005	1830	1192	1521	1062	1831	-	1642	67	ß	36	1672	2	1434
6H 300	¢	¢	0	0	7	0	0	0	0	•	0	•	0	0	12	•	65	-	Ŷ	0	0	•	2	0	451	0
6H +3	0	0	0	0	0	-	۰	0	0	-	0	-	0	•	•	¢	¢	0	0	¢	0	•	•	•	0	•
%0H	3.21	2.88	3.8	3.03	3.88	1.87	3.83	2.95	2.70	3.X	3.8	3.83	3.03	4.19	2.95	3.40	5.63	2.65	91.I	2.67	1.61	1.5	1.34	3.32	1.0	2.10
HD 3rq	32	32	31	31	8	8	ĩ	31	32	្តា	٦3 ۱۳	31	3	8	3	30	28	ន	42	8	8	8	Ŧ	30	43	8
HD 349	ð	37	6E	38	ጽ	9	\$	4	C 	42	8	8	8	&	4	8	8	37	4	ສ	9	4	ą	9	42	R
P1 ⁰	-	80	2	2	0	7	80	2	2	÷	9	v	10	~	12	æ	Ŷ	80	٩	\$	\$	4	\$	2	0	\$
(ZHA L) N/S	31.5	&	29.5	E	27	\$	32	28	3	ଛ	۳	9Ç	8	8	29.5	\$	38	25	ສ	36.5	ង	ē	ង	£	8	8
(04¤Q) N/S	35.5	35.5	38	3	8	3	æ	33	37	27.5	37	ន	ತ	31.5	37	8	ĸ	8	æ	ĸ	36.5	ន	R	32	36.5	8
(2H41) \$\$03 8011	~	-	-	- 2	-		-	-	•	- 2		~ ~	ŝ	-	0	- 2	0	~ '	-	0	2	-	~	-	• •	-
(Doto) (Doto)	-	7	- 2	- 2	-	- 2	-,	-	-	- 2	-	0	e	0	- ,	ы С	-	т г	•	•	-	0	-	0	9 -	-
• - • •	9	e	2	2	10	10	¥	¥	Ļ	F	ò	ò	2	2	, د	≻	Š	Š	EM	EM	ပ္ပ	Ő	ž	Ň	X	8
دەت (، \Abrev.) (Abbrev.)	VEL-CE	VEL-CE	VELAN	¥€[-N	AEL-P(AEL-PC	AEL-CI	AEL-CI	אפר-רו	אבר-נו	MEL-D	AEL-D	NEL-SI	אפר-ט	אנו-דו	MEL-TI	VEL-W	VEL-W	NEL-M	NEL-M	NEL-SE	NEL-SE	אנו-ט	MEL-SI	NEL-S	NEL-S
רסוו <u>,</u>	53	¥ 64	4 15	394 N	X57 A	X 295	358 A	¥ 96	359 A	¥ 264	¥ 098	¥ 86	¥ ا	¥ 665	362 A	2	363	tc1	204	ខ្ន	365 A	1C3	~ 998	₹ Z	367	ŝ
11.2	2	28 33	8	8	E E	8	8 8	8	3	- Sộ	37	Ŗ	Ř	9	4	4	9 9	Ŧ	- 1	¥	4	- 40 - 40 - 41	6 6	- Si	ŝ	ŝ
, 91901	14	4	4	2	~	4	4	4	4	4	- ۲	~ ~	~	- Y	~ *	- 4	ፈ	~~~	o.	୍ଦ	~ ~	- 4	~ ~	- 6 -	\$	4

Table C-9. CONUS IST Loops (Sheet 2 Continued)

الا ۲

Ŋ

:

•

243/244

1 oble	9-53	8-S	9-55	9-56	9-57	9-58	9-59	09-6	7 61	9-62	6-63	9-64	9-65	8 96	9-67	9-68	6 9- 6	9-70	12-6	9-72	57 2	9-74	9-75	9-76	9-77	9-78
Comments																										
Line Character	2	V2	V2	\$	2	72	~	2	2	V2	5	2	5	\$	12	2	V2	2	2	72	22	22	2	2	5	۲۷ ۲
00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	•	0	1	٥	0	0	0	٥	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	o
	0		0	\$	0	-	0	2	0	-		~	0		_		0	\$			8	2	0		0	2 2
¢ D	e	g	-	۳ ۲	0	4	_	•	0	-	•	~ ج	-		5	5	e	=	7	2	٥	\$	5	3	2	8
ن ې ۱	4	2 50	\$	8 8	-	Ë	0	•	_	8 8	,	×	~	κ.	*	2 15	~	1 24	ŝ	0 13	-	8 0	1 18	5 67	8 8	0)8(
59	ĸ	38	8	140	49	189	2	123	75	187	•	172	2	172	176	178	24	176	~	164	17	181	21	181	185	21
ьн 30 ₀	0	0	۰	0	0	2	-	0	0	۰	۰	317	0	s	8	•	0	-	0	0	0	-	0	•	•	0
CH HO	0	0	٥	0	•	8	0	۰	0	0	۱	-	•	٩	•	•	•	0	•	۰	•	0	•	0	0	0
% 0 H	4.22	3.22	2.03	2.88	2.54	3.24	2.93	3.36	2.59	2.95	2.54	3.33	3.45	2.75	1.77	2.97	1.58	3.23	1.19	4.36	4.58	3.66	3.97	3.60	2.74	4.28
HD 3 ^r 9	28	8	8	33	32	õ	3	8	g	ເຄ	32	ຣ	31	32	R	32	8	ē	4	8	27	8	8	\$	8	5 8
የካያ ሪዝ	37	4	48	37	49	4	40	8	7	Ŧ	8	x	¥	8	75	8	8	8	4	ĸ	9	Ŧ	£	\$	ន	*
6 la	81	8	~	8	•	٥	ŝ	ŝ	2	8	ĭ	18	۰	2	z	\$	80	~	~	~	12	13	2	۰	15	=
(ZH7 L) N/S	31.5	36	29.5	27	31	36	õ	28	30.5	36	28	25	28	25	24.5	27	29.5	28	29.5	8	28.5	24	\$	24	R	34
(arad) N/S	36.5	g	30.5	39.5	32	\$	34.5	32.5	2	30.5	32	38	33.5	8	32	8	3	82	29.5	8	35.5	IE	2	35	8	93
(1 KHZ)	6	2	ŝ	0	0	e	e	0	2	-		2	-	0	Ś	~	ŝ	-	80	~	0	-	~	e	-	~
(01e0) 2001 eoi1	<u>'</u>	י ~	-	~	0		~	0	_	_	_	•	0	_	\$	-	\$	_	8	י פ	_	-	י פ	י רי	-	י פ
nol enil		1	•		-	ï		-		•		1	-	1		•	-,	•	-	•	•	1	•	•	ı	•
noitesel (-verddA)	MEL-APA	MEL-APA	MEL-CMC	MEL-CMC	MEL-LAM	MEL-LAM	MEL-MOU	MEL-MOU	MEL-LYO	ΜΕΙ-ΙΥΟ	NEL-HEL	ME L-HEL	MEL-LOD	MEL-LOP	MEL-JUL	MEL-JUL	MEL-MOJ	MEL-MOJ	MEL-SLO	MEL-SLO	MEL-SMF	MEL-SMF	MEL-SHE	MEL-SHE	MEL-FRE	MEL-FRE
د•اا ،	88	8	698	407	370	408	371	409	372	410	8	411	373	412	374	413	375	414	376	415	377	416	378	117	379	418
1 oble #	9-SJ	3	9-55	9-56	9-57	9-56	9-59	09-6	19-6	9-62	9-63	9-64	9-65	8	9-67	9-68	69-6	9-70	l <i>1</i> -6	9-72	57	\$-24	9-75	9-76	6-77	9-78

è

Table C-9. CONUS IST Loops (Sheet 2 Continued)

;

Act and a

245/246

Tuble C-10. Special Culls (Sheet 1)

9**6**.1973.177

.

*. t

THE R. LEWIS CO., NAME

.

義会(業) 当今

. ورد محدد

-

1 oble 4	כיוו נ	Lacation	Date	lime	(A) 938 011-51	858 8-110	81P	Type of Call	(8) 911-61 011-61	19-130 BEK	111-91 858	२~१। ४३१	Sync Tries-Hits	N/S	• =[do]
15	257	Pearl Harbor, Hawaii - Wahiowa, Hawaii	12/13	1022	0	0	8	Pacific Access Loop	0	0	1.256-6	1.256-6	1	ŝ	10-1
10-2	157	Calramo, Italy - Hillingdon, Eng	11/24	1612	4.25E-3	5.12E-5	88	Combination Call	4.256-3	4.336-3	7.84E-3	4.00E-3	1	8	10-2
10-3	158	locoed on 157	11/24	1632	3.80E-2	i .32E-3	24	Combination Call	3.806-2	4.85E-2	3.286-2	3.86E-2	1	15	10-3
ī	ŝ	Pearl Harbar, Hawaii, Lua Lua Lei, Hawaii	21,/21	0032	9.87E-3	0	8	HF Loop	6.236-3	7.60E-3	6.56E-3	7.04E-3	5-5	21	Ī
10-5	1834	Christchurch, Eng - Oakhanger, Eng	11,'29	1020	0	•	•	GPO Loop	0	0	0	0	ų		10-5
10-6	1838	Christchurch, Eng - Whiteholl, Eng	11/29	1000	5.00E-6	•	•	GPO Loop	5.006-6	1.256-5	5.00E-6	2.506-6	2-2	,	10-6 1
10-7	250	Hillingdon, Eng - Cedar Brook, NJ	E,/21	1846	1.126-2	•	•	Cedar Brook Loop	1.12E-2	•	ı	•	Ξ	ଛ	10-7
10-8	217	Hillingdon, Eng - Ft. Dietrich, Md	12/1	2030	1.29E-1	١		Ft. Dietrich Loop	1.29E-1	ı	ı	2.316-1	Ξ	14	10-8
10-9	251	Hillingdon, Eng – Polistown, Pa	12/3	1855	7.69E-2	·	ı	Pottstown Loop	7.69E-2	•	ı	ı	-	18	10-9
10-10	241	Hillingdon, Eng - Ft. Dietrich, Md	12/2	1906	1.406-1	•	ı	Ft. Dietrich Loop	1.40E-1		•	1.936-1	Ξ	Ξ	10-10
10-01	129A	Feldberg, Germ – Pottstown, Po	61/11	0915	7.77E-2	•	ı	Pottstown Loop	7.776-2	•	٠	•	4	ł	10-11
° 10-12	86 21	Feldberg, Germ - Pottstown, Po	61/11	0915	2.52E-3	0	8	Pottstown Loop	2.52E-3	ı	ı	1.796-3	3-3	8	10-12
€1-0 	306	Peurl Horbor, Howaii - San Luis Obispo, Cal	12/15	1518	1.02E-3	0	<u>00</u>	San Luis Obispo Loop	1.02E-3	1.785-3	1.37E-3	1.436-3	1	ជ	10-13
1 - 	307	Pearl Harbor, Hawaii - San Luis Obispo, Cal	12/15	1543	1.936-3	0	8	Majavi Loop	1.936-3	2.22E-3	2.116-3	1.886-3	1	51	10-14
10-15	326	Pearl Harbor, Howaii - Stockton, Cof	12/16	1520	1.32F-2	•	,	Stockton Loop	1.326-2	,	ı	1.585-2	1	20	10-15
10-16	111	Feldberg, Germ - ?	12/17	1605	2.826-2	1.176-4	8	lost loop	2.82E-2	2.27E-2	6.69E-2	3.136-2	5-5	8	10-16
10-17	127	Feldberg, Germ - ?	12/18	1702	2.826-2	2.62E-5	ጽ	lost Loop	2.82E-2	3,66E-2	3.186-2	2.726-2	3-3	20	10-17
10-18	49	Hillingdon, Eng - Colhano, Italy	6/11	1440	1.50E-5	ı	•	No routing	1.50E-5	ı	ı	•	2-2	ន	81-01
10-19	=	Coltano, Italy - Legham, Italy	₩/II	1528	7.505-6	,	ı	2 Wire Loop	7.50E-6	•	ı	١	Ξ	æ	10-19
10-20	15	Coltono, Italy - Ankora, Turkey	11/5	0652	2.856-1	•	,	2 Wire Loop	2.856-1	,	•	•	2-2	0	10-20
10-21	31	Caltano, Italy - Ankora, Turkey	11/5	0060	3.65E-2	2.62E-5	8	2 Wire Loop	3.65E-2	4.07E-2	•	•	Ч.	20	10-21
10-22	25	Pearl Harbor, Haweii - Hillingdon, Eng	12/17	1100	1.256-1	4.116-4		WAH-HIN Loop	1.25E-1	•	•	•	2-2	ł	10-22
10-23	69A	Coltano, İtaly - Wahidwa, Hawaii	11/11	1132	1-318.1	1.346-2	•	CLO-WAH Loop	1.816-1	•	•	•	3-3	12	10-23
10-24	17	Coltano, Italy - Aviano, Italy	11,/5	2640	1-304.1	ı	•	SF Filter	1.406-)	ı	•	۱	1	15	10-24
10-25	2	Caltano, Italy – Mt. Vergine, Italy	8/11	101	7.726-2	6.14E-3	•	1600 Norch	7.726-2	1.75E-1	1.52E-1	6.46E-2	Ę	I	10-25
10-26	8	Fektberg, Germ - Romstein, Germ	91/11	001	ı	۱	٠	Teletype Channel	,	•	ı	١	0-1	,	10-26

المتحديق وتحديك حدقوم

••

Construction of the state of the Construction

· . . .

·• .

.

· ~ ~

ৰ প্ৰথম প প্ৰথম Table C-10. Special Calls (Sheet 1 Continued)

and the second
,

F

۰.

F

.

to to the site of an

and the solution

aldo1		10-27	10-28	10-29	10-30
N/S		1	12	•	15
Sync RiH-reint		2-2	2-2	3-0	9-3
רכ 19-C 19נא		•	ı	ł	1-318.1
111-91 8E6		5.19E-2	1	ı	1.236-1
19-130 Bek		3.90E-2	•	۱	1.216-1
(8) 858 (8) 858		1.68E-2	1.54E-1	•	1.22E-1
Type of Call		SF Filter	Bod Channel	Bod Channel	Pilat Stop Filter
c19		•	1	1	,
8-110 BE&		•	2.19E-3	ı	2.49E-3
011-91 190		1.68E-2	1.546-1	,	1.22E-1
 		1048	1453	1225	1640
Date		11/11	12/25	12/13	91/11
Location		Feldberg, Germ - Colhano, Italy	Hillingdon, Eng - Mt. Pateros, Greece	Pearl Harbor, Howaii - Fuchu, Japon	Feidberg, Germ – Stuttgart, Germ
, 11º2	Ì	8	165	261	8
, əiyoI		10-27	10-28	6 10-29	10-30

249/250

....

ล
(Sheet
Sel-
Special
-10. -10.
Table

Ę.

:
;

I

.

:

.

ida. With

1 . art.

÷

.

·················

• eldo T	ē	10-2	ī	ī	10-5	ĩ	6-7	9-9 9-0	9-01	10-10	1 <u>0</u>	10-12	10-13	10-11	10-15	10-16	10-17	10-18	10-19	10-20	10-21	10-22	10-23	10-24
Comments																								
Choracter.	8	5	5	S	5	2	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	,	ı	ı	۶	5	5	۱
ed11		6(V2)		A HF WAH				FTD		FTD			- 310	FOW -	— SIK	د.	(V2) MRE- 7			- ANK	VI – ANK		WAH	
Routing	PHR KC41 WAH	CLO9CUR(V2) VCZ9CUR(V2 (V2) MRE9AEH(S3) HIN9DC(LDN9DCG(V2)HIN	157 on 157	PHR KCA1 WAH LUL KCA1 PHR	CHR PW19673 OAK	CHR PW46307 WTL	HIN 8478 (S3) CED	HIN B478 (S3) CED	104 (53) 1649 NIH	TOA (ES) LENG NIH	FEL 8418 (V2) POT	FEL 8400 (S3) POT	PHR KC41 WAH 8361 LOD	PHR KC41 WAH B322 SLO	PHR KCAI WAH 8322 SLO	FEL 9CFB (V2) DON	FEL 9CFC (V2) DON 9CK2	HIN CLO	CLO LEG	CLO	CLO 9DQD (V2) MRE - PA	I PHR KC41 WAH LOI HIN	CLO MRE	CLO 9DSM (V2) AVO
Type of Kecording	U	₩	ł	1	١	•	ı	•	ı	•	¥	Ă	3	U	3	υ	'	•	١	٠	'	ę N	5	1
Location of Baibiocea Baibiocea	660'l-ld	3-2,302	3-2, 158	682-1,249	ł	I	ļ	ł		ł	3-1,272	03-1,303	P1-2,471	1,000	181,1-29	3-1,081	İ	I	I	ł	١	P2-1,280	2-1,318	1
Types of Pichures	<	A C	A C	۹	۲	۲	۲	۹	۲	۲	٩	A C	۲	۲	۲	AC	٩C	ſ	•	ŀ	۲	۲	۲	٠
00	0	•	3	0	0	0	•	•	•	١	•	١	0	•	ı	0	~	ł	,	ľ	ı	0	0	•
67	•	2	ŧ	۳	0	•	ı	,	ı	•	٠	,	2	•	,	233	70	ı	1	1	•	•	118	·
63	0	8	8	۲	0	¢	,	•	•	ł	•	۱	m	0	•	1614	284	ı	۱	•	I	28	1997	•
a	0	1224	1846	8	0	2	٠	,		1	ł	•	72	-	•	1878	1130	ı	ı	•	·	9141	1876	۱
PH 200	0	-	2	•	0	0	•	1	•	۲	1	•	•	0	۱	ප	27	•	١	•	'	19	8	•
6H +3	•	0	0	0	•	0	ı	'	•	•	'	•	0	0	1	20	7	'	'	'	•	0	•	r
%ан	2	.32	Ľ.	2.06	8.	8	1.15	3.55	4.28	7.24	1.24	1.23	1.91	2.29	3.35	1.28	1.12	•	1	•	1.94	5.76	2.9	•
HD 3'9	8	3	4	ጽ	5	48	Ą	8	8	2	4	4	35	Ŗ	30	42	4	'	'	•	39	25	R	•
HD 5PG	\$	45	\$	\$	3	4	45	8	28	\$	9	40	64	39	39	9	42	•	•	1	ጽ	38	7	•
bla	-	a 0	1	•	~	-	• •	11	•	Ξ	2	2	•	4	- 00	=	. 1	•	ľ	•	9	œ	61	•
(ZH11) N/S	ŝ	30	8	8	\$	4	27	ង	R	8	ĸ	37		న	28	25	8	•	•	27	2	27	2	1
(0470) N/S	8	28.5	25	1	ş	4	8	2	8	8	S. 5	32	33	R	\$	*		•	4	E	: 2	38	2	•
(באל 1) נותא נאני	?	•	α.	°	c) m	-	ŝ	· ~	-	-	· •	•	-	. w	-	1 1	' '	(, v	' [,]	<u>9</u> -	80	•
(Data) Line Loss		• •	=	: 7	c	~ 4	Ś			0		-			• ~		•	• •	,	, <i>«</i>	, 2	-15.5	\$	•
Location (,vatddA)	PHR-WAH	CLO-HIN	12011	PHR-LUA	CHPLOAK	CHR-WTL	HINHOED	HINFTD		IO1-NIH	FFI-POT	EEL-POT	PHR-SLO	PHP- MOI	PHP-STK	EEL_ 2		HIN-CLO	010-160		CLOCANK	PHR-FIN	A CLO-WAH	CLO-AVO
, 11°C	257	12	931	<u>8</u>	1974		5	21	5	1	1204	100		200	ŝ	3	2	9	; ;	= 1	2 2	2 8	494	2
, eldoj		10-2	6.01	<u>]</u>	9-01 10-0		2			251	2	12										10-22		10-24

44

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

1

61 20 1

1001	10-25	10-26	10-27	10-28	10-29	10-30
Line Charocter	2	ج ن	None	None	None	5
Routing	CLO 9CUV (V2) FEL 9CEX (V2) MRE	FEL 44 JNQ5-12 (RC) LKF 44 JMH 5-2 (SC BAN 564TX, 565REG	FEL 9CUV (V2) CLO	HIN 9AEA (V2) MRE PAT	PHR KC41 WAH KM93 FUC	Fel wC7Y VI SGI
Type of	ı	٠	٠	•	ł	·
Location of Recording	I	I	1	l	ł	1
Types of Pictures	٩	۲	۲	٩D	۲	٩
٥٥	,	•	•	•	ſ	7
67	, ,	•	ı	•	•	-
63	•	۱	٠	•	ı	7
59	•	•	•	۰	•	e,
ьн 50 ₀	,	ı	•	•	ı	-
CH +3	•	,	۱	,	١	0
%0H	0	•	•	2.65	,	.49
HD 3'9	8	I.	١	27	•	47
HD 3M	8	٠	•	R	،	2
610	2	•	١	2	•	ŝ
(ZHY I) N/S	30.5	•	'	91	•	ਲ
(mpa) N/S	33	•	1	22	ı	4
(זאא 1) ניחא וסאז	~	1	•	61	•	v
Line Loss (Data)	0	•	•	=	•	7
Location (,vsiddA)	CLO-MRE	CLO-RSN	FEL-CLO	HIN-PAT	PHR-FUC	FEL-SGT
, 11°D	স	ង	8	165	ાજ્ઞ	8
' sidoT	10-25	9 - 28	10-27	10-28	10-29	96-91

Table C-10. Special Calls (Sheet 2 Continued)

ni nätitvaaitti

253/254

. .

s. Se	Comment No.	Table C-11, Comments
2	1	Noticeable amplitude variation
3	14	SF filter inserted before recordings
20	15	Signal cut on and off several times prior to the 8 kb test
24	7	Faded for about 1 minute and came back prior to the 16-C test
33	9	Lost signal for several seconds during measurement of 16–C and at
		beginning of 8kb test
35	8	Line dropped out during hit measurement
36	6	Line dropped during 16–130 measurement and came back
39	5	Appeared to be alternate routed for a brief period
43	12	Very bursty. No errors except for bursts
46	27	Bursty during recording
66	22	Lots of signal losses between BER and Line Test Data
75	17	Errors in bursts only
82	24	Gain varied 2 dB during 8 kb recording
86	23	S/N ratio varied widely
88	25	Very full weights. Periodic noise. Signal level jumped by 24 dB during
		bit count. Hit count not taken
90	18	Severai signal level changes during measurements
92	16	Fine structure in amplitude response due to channel fading
95	3	Most errors are amplitude errors

ALC: NO.

and the first state

ł

1

255

the maint the fait

	ment	Table C-11. Comments (Continued)
S.S.	Š.	
97	4	Most errors are amplitude errors
9 9	2	Lissajou fattem shows periodic phase jitter
123	19	Several dropouts after sync
126	20	Line frequency A.M.
128	10	Lost line for 1 second – then 20 seconds – came back 8 dB down then
		back to original level
141	21	Dropped line for a second prior to 8 kb test
180	11	Appeared to be a change in channel characteristics during 16-C measure-
		ment 8 dB change in level
186	28	Low frequency phase jitter (1 Hz 30 ⁰ p-p) not registered on Halcyon
187	29	Bad echos
188	30	Low frequency phase jitter
192	32	Interuption with test tone for about a minute
208	33	Double terminated at HIN
224	31	30° p–p low frequency phase jitter
226	26	Level changes of 6 dB during initial setup and hit measurement
267	34	Dialed datagrade
269	35	Dialed datagrade
276	36	36° p-p phase jitter at approximately 10 Hz
295	37	Signal level fluctuations of 6 dB and back
81	13	Receive level fluctuations of 6 dB

ŝ

ALCONOMIAL A PR

APPENDIX D

PHOTOGRAPHS

D-1 INTRODUCTION

This appendix contains the data collected in the form of CRT photographs, and is divided by the type of data presented.

D-2 AMPLITUDE AND ENVELOPE DELAY PHOTOGRAPHS

As described in Paragraph 2.4, the Halcyon line tester presents the line amplitude response and envelope delay and a stored CRT display. This was photographed with a Polaroid camera for a hard copy record. Unfortunately, the line tester is not equipped with a camera mounting bezel so there is some variation in geometry between different photos, and in some cases the marking of frequency, amplitude and delay are not visible in individual pictures. However, the scales are the same on all photos and are as follows:

- a. The horizontal (frequency) axis is 200 Hz per division and starts at 200 Hz on the left margin. The 1.0 kHz line is crossed with small horizontal tick marks.
- b. The relative amplitude scale (vertical) is 2.5 dB per division.
- c. The vertical envelope delay scale is 500 µs per division. (The finer amplitude and envelope delay scales were not used for these tests.)

When making frequency sweeps on the lines, the tester was set to automatically skip a band in the vicinity of the 2600 Hz single frequency (S.F.) signaling tone, to avoid disconnecting the line. This shows up as a discontinuity on some of the amplitude and envelope delay traces; the true response would be a faired curve through this region.

In the tables of Appendix C, the highest level of conditioning met by each test connection is given. In these judgements, the bias was in favor of the line, that is, if the characteristics were close to the specifications it was counted as complying. لتقالعه كالمالك برما أتلاغ كالأشاك شابه وموسا بابدك كالعطاف ومايده

كالطيبط كالمتركم وأكمره فا

For reference purposes, characteristics of the simulated lines in the Axel Model 771 simulator (3002, C1, C2, C4) were measured on the line tester and are enclosed.

All pictures in this appendix are indexed by their call number. To assist the reader in locating the other line data contained in Appendix C corresponding to this call number, a cross-reference from call number to table number is given in Table D-1.

D-3 PHASE JITTER PHOTOGRAPHS

On calls which measured more than approximately 15° p-p on the line tester, the jitter spectrum was recorded and photographed. As a calibration of this setup, the line simulator was set up with known jitter frequency and amplitude and the results photographed. The calibration points were 27° p-p at 150 Hz and 12° p-p at 180 Hz. The horizontal calibration for this photo was 100 Hz/division. For the line tests, it was found that 50 Hz/division gave a more interesting presentation, and all line photos have this scale factor. The vertical calibration is the same for the line and calibration photos, 10 dB per division. All line photos are identified by their call numbers.

D-4 AMPLITUDE VARIATION PHOTOGRAPHS

On calls which exhibited significant amplitude modulation (fading), a constant amplitude 1004 Hz tone was tranmitted and the received line signal photographed. The time base was chosen to best illustrate the nature of the AM, and is noted with each photo. In two cases (calls 41 and 86) two photos were made with different time bases.

Call No.	Table No.	Call <u>No.</u>	Table No.	Call <u>No.</u>	Table No.	Call No.	Table No.
1	2-1	28	1-8	55	1-2	81	1-83
2	1-7	29	1-54	56	1-13	82	3-18
3	2-3	30	1-53	57	1-10	83	10-26
4	1-11	31	1-55	58	1-3	84	3-19
5	2-6	32	1-56	59	1-14	85	3-20
6	1-16	33	1-57	60	3-2	86	3-15
7	1-17	34	10-25	61	3-3	87	3-21
8	3-1	35	1-52	62	1-15	88	3-22
9	1-18	36	1-47	63	3-4	89	2-16
10	1-1	37	4-1	64	3-10	90	2-17
11	10-19	38	4-2	65	3-12	91	2-9
12	1-12	3?	1-44	66	3-13	92	2-12
13	1-6	40	4-41	67	3-14	93	2-18
14	1-20	41	1-4	68	3-11	94	10-30
15	10-20	42	4-7	69	1-21	95	1-26
16	10-21	43	1-81	69A	10-23	96	1-25
17	10-24	44	4-5	70	2-8	97	1-27
18	2-2	45	1-82	71	2-10	98	10-27
19	2-4	46	4-8	72	4-11	99	1-24
20	2-5	47	1-5	73	2-11	100	1-31
21	3-9	48	4-6	74	2-13	101	1-30
22	1-48	49	10-18	75	2-15	102	1-28
23	1-49	50	4-9	76	4-12	103	1-29
24	1-50	51	1-45	77	1-22	104	1-61
25	1-51	52	4-10	78	4-13	105	1-62
26	2-7	53	1-46	79	1-58	106	1-77
27	1-12	54	1-9	80	4-15	107	1-63
				1		1	

Table D-1. Cross-Reference From Table Number to Call Number

ومالي يعالكه يعام كمسترجي الماسيان والمعاد مليات المتاقمين فسيطعط أماسيه الماليات المالية المالية والمنابعة المالية

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					
Table <u>No.</u>	Call <u>No.</u>	Table No.	Call <u>No.</u>	Table No.	Call <u>No.</u>	Table <u>No.</u>
!-66	133	4-16	160	1-34	185	
1-60	134	1-84	161	1-35	186	5-5
2-20	135	4-3	162	1-70	187	5-6
10-16	136	1-23	163		188	5-7
1-64	137	2-24	164	1-40	189	5 -8
1-67	138	2-25	165	10-28	190	5-33
3-23	139	2-28	166	1-37	191	5-34
3-24	140	2-29	167	1-38	192	5-37
2-19	141	2-30	168	1 - 71	193	5-38
3-16	142	2-32	169	1-39	194	5-41
3-5	143	2-33	170	1-43	195	5-42
3-6	144	3-17	171	1-42	196	5-60
3-7	145	2-26	172	1-70	197	5-61
	146	2-34	173	1-73	198	5-58
	147	2-27	174	1-79	199	5-59
2-21	148	2-31	175	1-74	200	5-39
2-14	149	4-17	176	1-80	201	5-40
2-22	150		177	1-76	202	5-29
2-23	151	4-19	178	1-69	203	5-30
10-17	152	1-32	179	1-75	204	5-21
1-65	153	4-18	180	1-72	205	5-22
4-14	154	1-33	181	1-36	206	5-54
10-11	155	4-21	182	3-8	207	5-55
10-12	156	1-68	183	3-25	208	5-49
1-59	157	10-2	183A	10-5	209	5-50
4-20	158	10-3	183B	10-6	210	5-3
1-85	159	1-41	184		211	5-4
	Table No. 1-66 1-60 2-20 10-16 1-67 3-23 3-24 2-19 3-16 3-5 3-6 3-7 2-21 2-14 2-22 2-3 10-17 1-65 4-14 10-11 10-12 1-59 4-20 1-85	TableCallNo.No. $1-60$ 133 $1-60$ 134 $2-20$ 135 $10-16$ 136 $1-64$ 137 $1-67$ 138 $3-23$ 139 $3-24$ 140 $2-19$ 141 $3-16$ 142 $3-5$ 143 $3-6$ 144 $3-7$ 145146147 $2-21$ 148 $2-14$ 149 $2-22$ 150 $2-23$ 151 $10-17$ 152 $1-65$ 153 $4-14$ 154 $10-11$ 155 $10-12$ 156 $1-59$ 157 $4-20$ 158 $1-85$ 159	Table No.Call No.Table No.1-661334-161-601341-842-201354-310-161361-231-641372-241-671382-253-231392-283-241402-292-191412-303-161422-323-51432-333-61443-173-71452-261462-341472-272-211482-312-141494-172-221502-231514-1910-171521-321-651534-184-141541-3310-111554-2110-121561-681-5915710-24-2015810-31-851591-41	Table No.Call No.Table No.Call No.1-661334-161601-601341-841612-201354-316210-161361-231631-641372-241641-671382-251653-231392-281663-241402-291672-191412-301683-161422-321693-51432-331703-61443-171713-71452-261721462-341731472-271742-211482-311752-141494-171762-221501772-231514-1917810-171521-321791-651534-181804-141541-3318110-111554-2118210-121561-681831-5915710-2183A4-2015810-3183B1-851591-41184	Table No.Coll No.Table No.Coll No.Table No.Table No.1-661334-161601-341-601341-841611-352-201354-31621-7010-161361-231631-641372-241641-401-671382-2516510-283-231392-281661-373-241402-291671-382-191412-301681-713-161422-321691-393-51432-331701-433-61443-171711-423-71452-261721-701462-341731-731472-271741-792-211482-311751472-271741-792-211482-311751472-771761-802-221501771-762-231514-191781-651534-1818010-171521-321791-651534-1818010-111554-2118210-121561-6818310-121561-681-851591-41184	Toble No.Coll No.Toble No.Coll No.Toble No.Coll No.Toble No.Coll No.Coll No.Coll No.Coll No.1-661334-161601-341851-601341-841611-351862-201354-31621-7018710-161361-231631881-641372-241641-401891-671382-2516510-281903-231392-281661-371913-241402-291671-381922-191412-301681-711933-161422-321691-391943-51432-331701-431953-61443-171711-421963-71452-261721-761971462-341731-731981472-271741-791992-211482-311751-742002-141494-171761-802012-231514-191781-6920310-171521-321791-752041-651534-181801-722054-141541-331811-3620610-111554-211823-8 <t< td=""></t<>

ż

t

Table D-1. Cross-Reference From Table Number to Call Number (Continued)

260

77727

100.00

57281

1997.5

•							
Call	Table No.	Call No.	Table No.	Call No.	Table No.	Call <u>No.</u>	Table No.
012	5-25	239	5-57	266	7-5	293	8-5
212	5-25	240	5-45	267	6-34	294	9-2
213	5-20	240	5-46 (10-10)	268	6-35	295	8-4
214	5-15	241	5-17	269	6-42	296	8-1
215	5-10	242	5-19	270	6-43	29 7	
216	5-2/	243	5-10	271	7-7	298	6-27
217	5-28 (10-8)	244	5-13	272	7-8	299	6-28
218	5-62	245	J-14	272	7-19	300	6-37
219	5-63	246	5-4/	273	7-21	301	6-38
220	5-19	247	5-48	274	7_24	302	6-7
221	5-20	248	5-9	2/5	7-24	303	6-8
222	5-1	249	5-10	2/0	7-25	304	6-30
223	5-2	250	10-7	2//	/-20	304	6-01
224	5-11	251	10-9	278	6-1	204	10-13
225	5-12	252	7-1	279	6-2	300	10-14
226	3-26	253	7 -2	280	6-36	307	4-20
227	5-35	254	7-10	281		308	0-27 (10
228	5-36	255	7-15	282	6-39	309	6-19
229	5-31	256	7-18	283		310	6-20
230	5-32	257	10-1	284		311	8-3
231	5-51	258	7-16	285	6-3	312	8-6
232	5-43	259	7-14	286	6-4	313	8-9
233	5-44	260	7-6	287	6-5	314	7 -9
234	5-52	261	10-29	288	6-6	315	7-23
235	5-53	262	7-3	289	6-16	316	7-13
236	5-23	263	7-22	290	6-17	317	6-32
227	5-24	264	7-11	291	7-12	318	6-33
238	5-56	265	7-17	292	8-8	318A	6-18
		•					

Table D-1. Cross-Reference From Table Number to Call Number (Continued)

44.237

Call No.	Table No.	Call No.	Table No.	Call No.	Table No.	C III No.	Table <u>No.</u>
210	4-11	346	9-13	373	9-65	400	9-42
220	6-12	347	9-15	374	9-67	401	9-44
221	6-71	348	9-17	375	9-69	402	9-46
200	6-22	349	9-19	376	9-71	403	9-48
202	6-13	350	9-21	377	9-73	404	9-50
222	6-14	351	9-23	378	9-75	405	9-52
924 995	4-15	352	9-25	379	9-77	406	9-54
325	6-15 4-0	353	9-27	380	9-2	407	9-56
320 207	6-7	354	9-29	381	9-4	408	9-58
321	9-7	355	, _:	382	9-6	409	9-60
320	0-7	356		383	9-8	410	9-62
329	6-22	357	9-31	384	9-10	411	9-64
330	6-23	358	9-33	385	9-12	412	9-66
331	0-24 7-4	350	9-35	386	9-14	413	9-68
332	10-4	340	9-37	387	9-16	414	9-70
333	10-4	341	9-39	388	9-18	415	9-72
334	10-22	342	9-41	389	9-20	416	9-74
335	6-25	362	9-43	390	9-22	417	9-76
330	6-20	363	9-45	391	9-24	418	9-78
337	0-40	345	9-47	392	9-26		
338	0-41	365	9-49	393	9-28		
339	9-00	247	0-51	394	9-30		
340	9- 1	249	9-53	395	9-32		
341	9- <u>3</u>	340	9-55	396	9-34		
342	9-5	270	9-57	397	9-36		
343	9-7	271	9-50	398	9-38		
344	у-у 0 11	270	7-J7 0-41	300	9-40		
345	y −11	3/2	7-01		,	1	
		,					

Table D-1. Cross-Reference From Table Number to Call Number (Continued)

N**ages**t⊆ters'

. . . .

AMPLITUDE AND ENVELOPE DELAY PHOTOGRAPHS

6.7191





一日の大利などろ

CALL #4

10.0

مكالخباؤاسية

H LAASUN





a contraction of the second





?67









CALL 129

CALL #31







No. of Lot of Lo



CALL \$50 AD





CALL[#]58



Į.




:

:





Statistical and a second









ŧ





الكرشي كيلا ويهاونه المناسبين

and the second statement of the second

أعمره فمرعار والقريضا ومرو

he have also also and a loss





and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

للاحد ويواذرن

International Control of the Article





in sector

.



通知などのながが最大が現在できたができた。これが我たいまで、そうないの、たちからなたのでなったが、我になっていた。 このまであってはないが、 こうこう こうさん ママン・マン・マン・マン・マン・マン・

Subsection of the



THE # 18 702 101















「「「「「「「」」」」」、「「「」」」、「「」」」、「「」」、「「」」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」」、「」、

ALCONTRACTOR STATE

ň ó CALL #148 CALL #146



CALL #147



A CONTRACT OF A





うちょうちょう うちろう 御天子 ちょうちょう

ź







:

ł



ſ.

. .





AND A REAL PROPERTY OF

Care and the second

لمشاط

ļ

a star de la della de la della de la della d





×...

İ.,









CALL #199






小学があるが、 ちょういん かかっ しょうしょう アッチ アット アット・アイト

そうないしょう ひょうばん かまま かんしょう しょうしょう しょうちょう しょうちょう しょうしょう




भिक्तिकोकोकोकोकोको हिन्द्र प्रतिकारण्डी सिंहिका () विव २००० का सैन्द्रीकी द्वीत्रिकी भीत्रिकारण्ड व राजकोकको दिर्ग्या जन्म -

\$





n.













ì





فانتد فجهجم





an **fi bet diffi**t it an <mark>ales</mark> annound at the state of the

CONTRACTOR AND AND ADDRESS OF ADDRESS

And all the second second



antes est e fliage conflate a sea dat

ą

and the second second

1.18





the second second

The second

- HILLING

÷





anna a hiabh duile anna

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

THE STREET



327

.







ł



Ļ



and a second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second



330

ć



「「「「「「「「」」」」」

Particular States and the second

يهيطك يطحكهمانات

. 25.2









A CONTRACTOR OF

T.

tation and the

A Call

F









.....

1

1 m2 m







r



ÿ

A loop of

ŝ,

336

1.2

and the state of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second

2. 872.



÷



337

C. BREEDER PROTOCOLOGIES

200 Care 10



0

0

7

 A STATE OF A STATE OF A STATE OF A

ARCHICKS

ANNAL AGE CANNAL







CALL #328



339

0

March & Area Same a started







. (6)

and the second second second second second second second second second second second second second second second

ģ

7







....



ALC: NOT

Contraction of the local distance of the loc

Contraction of the local distance of the loc

19.16



i,

344

a start that a set of a set of the

72.75

254 108 207 200 100 20



- **19** 5 • 17 • 74

F,

345

Ĭ.





ŗ



:

347







₹1

.



2

The state

Party and

and the second se

Bitran Section Section



「「二」「二」「二」

350

which have a firm of a first of a first





Ì





- --





Ĩ.





-**T**M





and the second of the second second second second to the second of the second second second second second secon





فالمتكمة بالمتكامسة فالكلام والمتحالية والمعادية والمتحافظ

12

「あいろう」のである

the shift of the

「おお」で、「おおおな」の「おおおな」と、「いった」」という、「いった」という、「いった」をしていた。「おおおな」ので、「おおおなな」」という、「おおお」をしていた。 おおお しょうしょう しょうしょう かいしょう しょうしょう
.



2

States of the local distance of the local di

(a) his as

list of the second



849-44-4-4 19-11-19-1



ALC: MAD

PHASE JITTER PHOTOGRAPHS

. . .

-



Annual States and a second second

1

シャール アンション



and the second s

364

,



ļ

ţ

÷

CLARK H





- 2013年間1月1日には、1913年に、1913年に、1913年に、1913年日に、1913年日では、1913年日では、1913年日で、1913年に、1913年に、1913年に、1913年日

Surful S

5

• • • •

it des parte des









Conception of

and a fight of the c





CALL #313

AMPLITUDE VARIATION PHOTOGRAPHS

No. of Lot of Lot of Lot

foriging and and a second

0.2 SEC/DIV 20 MS/DIV CAIL#37 CALL #31 0.2 SEC/DIV 0.2 SEC/DIV · CALL #35 CALL #30

1000 ···



. . . .

...**k**....







ter (i se i free

فكريك فسيستكمنهم والثقوة

and the second second second



. .







Characteria and second and the second second second second second second second second second second second se

.....



F ١¢ È

-

.

÷

380

i di li di

110

ある

•



State of the second sec

Number of Street

شيكككال كالملك

وللقب كما يعتبنهما يدقار بثله بالقبط

381







an attend

an the state of the second second second

「「「「「「」」」

and the second

2


Several unusual cases were also photographed:

- a. Call number 181 exhibited a high frequency variation which is difficult to distinguish as additive or multiplicative.
- b. Two cases of severe distortion were photographed (calls 240 and 297).
 These illustrate the time-variant waveforms on these calls, presumably caused by combinations of distortion and frequency offset.

D-5 EQUALIZER WEIGHTS

On some calls, photographs were taken of the analog version of the equalizer weights. The calls were usually selected as having unusual or interesting weight patterns. On these photos, the two weight patterns for sine and cosine demodulator outputs are shown. The 25 ms time span of the equalizer occupies 3.75 horizontal divisions on these photos.

For reference, the weight patterns generated by the four simulated lines (3002, C1, C2, C4) of the Axel line simulator are shown.

It was found difficult to assess the significance of the weight patterns, although calls like No. 225 are clearly harder to equalize than, say, call No. 170. Long weight patterns, such as call No. 188 are attributed to reflections due to poor terminations at some point in the circuit.

EQUALIZER WEIGHTS

A ANTINA A

F



É

NACES V

利用





CALL #63

CALL #56

CALL #45 The second •••• 2 CALL #44 . 1

- i -















and the second se

and a stand of the second second second second second second second second second second second second second s

-;

1





ţ



a la sur a sur la sur de la sur de la sur de la sur de la sur de la sur de la sur de la sur de la sur de la su

i

Ì

APPENDIX E

TEST SENTENCES

The following test sentences, from the 1965 revised list of phonetically balanced sentences from IEEE recommended practice for speech quality measurements, ¹² were used during the test program. The particular list used for each call is given in the data tables of Appendix C.

List 1:

The birch canoe slid on the smooth planks. Glue the sheet to the dark blue background. It's easy to tell the depth of a well. These days a chicken leg is a rare dish. Rice is often served in round bowls. The juice of lemons makes fine punch. The box was thrown beside the parked truck. The hogs were fed chopped corn and garbage. Four hours of steady work faced us. A large size in stockings is hard to sell.

List 2:

The boy was there when the sun rose. A rod is used to catch pink salmon. The source of the huge river is the clear spring. Kick the ball straight and follow through. Help the woman get back to her feet. A pot of tea helps to pass the evening. Smokey fires lack flame and heat. The soft cushion broke the man's fall. The soft breeze came across from the sea. The girl at the booth sold 50 bonds. List 3:

The small pup gnawed a hole in the sock. The fish twisted and turned on the bent hook. Press the pants and sew a button on the vest. The swan dive was far short of perfect. The beauty of the view stunned the young boy. Two blue fish swam in the tank. Her purse was full of useless trash. The colt reared and threw the tall rider. It snowed, rained and hailed the same morning. Read verse out loud for pleasure.

List 4:

Hoist the load to your left shoulder. Take the winding path to reach the lake. Note closely the size of the gas tank. Wipe the grease off his dirty face. Mend the coat before you go out. The wrist was badly strained and hung limp. The stray cat gave birth to kittens. The young girl gave no clear response. The meal was cooked before the bell rang. What joy there is in living.

List 5:

A king ruled the state in the early days. The ship was torn apart on the sharp reef. Sickness kept him home the third week. The wide road shimmered in the hot sun. The lazy cow lay in the cool grass. Lift the square stone over the fence. The rope will bind the 7 books at once. Hop over the fence and plunge in. The friendly gang left the drug store. Mesh wire keeps chicks inside.

List 6:

The frosty air passed through the coat. The crooked maze failed to fool the mouse. Adding fast leads to wrong sums. The show was a flop from the very start. A saw is a tool used for making boards. The wagon moved on we'l oiled wheels. March the soldiers past the next hill. A cup of sugar makes sweet fudge. Place a rose bush near the porch steps. Both lost their lives in the raging storm. List 7:

We talked of the side show in the circus. Use a pencil to write the first draft. He ran halfway to the hardware store. The clock struck to mark the third period. A small creek cut across the field. Cars and busses stalled in the snow drift. The set of china hit the floor with a crash. This is a grand season for hikes on the road. The dune rose from the edge of the water. Those words were the cue for the actor to leave.

List 8:

A yacht slid around the point into the bay. The two met while playing on the sand. The ink stain dried on the finished page. The walled town was seized without a fight. The lease ran out in 16 weeks. A tame squirrel makes a nice pet. The horn of the car woke the sleeping cop. The heart beats strongly and with firm strokes. The pearl was worn in a thin silver ring. The fruit peel was cut in thick slices.

List 9:

The Navy attacked the big task force. See the cat glaring at the scared mouse. There are more than two factors here. The hat brim was wide and too droopy. The lawyer tried to lose his case. The grass curled around the fence post. Cut the pie into large parts. Men strive but seldom get rich. Always close the barn door tight. He lay prone and hardly moved a limb.

List 10:

The slush lay deep along the street. A wisp of cloud hung in the blue air. A pound of sugar costs more than eggs. The fin was sharp and cut the clear water. The play seemed dull and quite stupid. Bail the boat; stop it from sinking. The term ended in late June that year. A tusk was used to make costly gifts. Ten pins were set in order. The bill was paid every third week.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

- "16 kb/s Data Modem," RADC-TR-76-311, 14 June 1976, Rome Air Development Center, DCLD, Griffiss Air Force Base, N.Y. 13441, AD B015 627L.
- "European Autovon Channel Study," RADC-TR-72-70, March 1972, Rome Air Development Center, Griffiss Air Force Base, N.Y. 13441, AD 894 903L.
- "DCS Multiplex Configuration," Drawing No. EUR-COM-COS-007, 2 March 1976, Headquarters European Area, Defense Communications Agency, APO, New York 09131.
- "Autovon Access Line Record," Project E06, Sort Fields 230117, 9 Sept. 1976, Headquarters European Area, Defense Communications Agency, APO, New York 09131.
- 5. "CONUS Autovon Routing Philosophy," DCA Circular 370-V120-1, Dec. 1966, Defense Communications Agency, Washington, D.C. 20305.
- Overseas Autovon Network Switching Plans, "DCA Circular 370-V185-7; October 1957, Defense Communications Agency, Washington, D.C. 20305.
- "Circuit and Trunk File Data Elements and Coder Manual of the Defense Communications System (DCS)," DCA Circular 310–65–1, June 1976, Defense Communications Agency, Washington, D.C. 20305.
- "Leased Overseas Circuits and CONUS Extension Report," (DECCO(M) 650-9, 31 Oct. 1976, Pacific Area, Defense Communications Agency, APO 96515 San Francisco, Cal.
- 9. "NCS Transoceanic Circuits," NCS 0070,370-026, 17 Nov. 1976, Pacific Area, Defense Communications Agency, APO 96515, San Francisco, Col.
- "The World's Submarine Telephone Cable Systems," Department of Commerce, August 1975, Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, D.C. 20402.
- 11. DCA Pacific Circuit/MUX Diagrams dated 1 July 1976.
- 12. 1965 Revised List of Phonetically Balanced Sentences from IEEE Recommended Practice for Speech Quality Measurements.

Rome Air Development Center

الم أحد المراجع الم المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع ال المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع

New 1

ر با هي رو

e names på statister. Statister

2011-12 2011-12 2011-12

na di⊈an si

. STANDARD .

anter anter a substantia da substantia da substantia da substantia da substantia da substantia da substantia d

1

.

Lindia el artifica - secondo entretar data de

.

....²

÷ .

u produce de la competencia de la competencia de la competencia de la competencia de la competencia de la comp

يستوفيه فيتجار ويتجار ويتجار المتجار المتعارية

NOCA DE A DE A

station - in it is also

MISSION

-

1.00

MADC plans and conducts research, exploratory and advanced development programs in command, control, and communications (C^3) activities, and in the C^3 areas of information sciences and intelligence. The principal technical mission areas Are communications, electromagnetic guidance and control, gurveillance of ground and aerospace objects, intelligence data collection and handling, information system technology, ionospheric propagation, solid state sciences, microwave physics and electronic reliability, maintainability and competibility.

-1

PENOLUTION



DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE AIR FORCE RESEARCH LABORATORY (AFMC)

1 Jun 04

MEMORANDUM FOR DTIC-OCQ ATTN: Larry Downing Ft. Belvoir, VA 22060-6218

FROM: AFRL/IFOIP

SUBJECT: Distribution Statement Change

1. The following documents have been reviewed and have been approved for Public Release; Distribution Unlimited:

ADB084552, "Project Birdwatch at Dover AFB", RADC-TR-84-7

ADB191869, "Acousto-Optic Beam Steering Study", RL-TR-94-121

AD0800669, "Use of Commercial Broadcast Facilities for Emergency DoD Communications", RADC-TR-66-392

ADB058979, "Multi-Rate Secure Processor Terminal Architecture Study", RADC-TR-81-77, Vol 1.

ADB053656, "16 KB/S Modem (AN/GCS-38) CONUS Test", RADC-TR-80-89

 ADB055136, "VINSON/AUTOVON Interface Applique for the Modern, Digital Data, AN/GCS-8", RADC-TR-80-341

ADB043556, "16 KB/S Data Modem Partitioning", RADC-TR-79-278

ADB029131, "16 Kilobit Modem Evaluation", RADC-TR-78-127.

2. Please contact the undersigned should you have any questions regarding this document. Thank you very much for your time and attention to this matter.

Information Directorate 315-330-7094/DSN 587-7094